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00:46:45 AW: I bet you could. 

00:46:47 

00:46:47 WS: Oh, yeah. 

00:46:48 

00:46:48 AW: All right. 

00:46:49 

00:46:49 WS: I just, you know -- yeah, I think that's it. 

00:46:51 

00:46:51 AW: Okay. Transcriber, we're going to end at this time. The 

00:46:55 time is approximately 1016 hours, and we'll be off the record. 

00:46:59 Thank you. 
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STATE OF NEVADA 

ss. 

COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

I, Darby Talbott, do hereby certify: 

That I transcribed from audio recording the proceedings had 

in the above-entitled matter; 

That the appearances on the cover page are from this 

transcriber's understanding of who was present during the 

proceeding; 

That speaker identification was made to the best of my 

ability through voice recognition; 

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1 

through 57, inclusive, is a full, true and correct 

transcription of said proceeding to the best of my ability. 

Dated at Reno, Nevada, this 11 th of February 2017. 

/s/ Darby Talbott 

Darby Talbott 
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00:30:36 AW: Okay. Have you spoke with the chief judge about this issue, 

00:30:44 this case? 

00:30:44 RH: No. 

00:30:45 AW: Okay. 

00:30:49 RH: The only cOIThlllmication I have with her was how do I handle 

00:30:53 this motion to disqual Ms. Silva recently filed a motion 

00:30:57 to disql.1alify well, I take that back. She didn't file it. 

00:31:00 She served me with it, and I asked the chief judge, what do I 

00:31:05 do because I need to serve an affidavit in response to that? 

00:31:10 AW: Are you going to disqualify yourself from the case? 

00:31:14 RCl . 
.L .L1. I filed an affidavit. The way a motion to disqualify works 

00:31:24 is the party files the motion, and you have so many days to 

00:31:28 file your affidavit in opposition to it. The reason I 

00:31:31 contacted the chief Judge just about the motion was what do I 

00:31:34 do because she didn't file the motion? So if I have been 

00:31:39 served and I serve my B.ffidavit, it's served without a motion 

00:31:42 being there. So I later saw where she filed an affidavit to 

00:31:50 disqualify me. She didn't file the motion that she served me 

00:31:54 with so because of the procedural 

00:31:57 AW: Right, per the statute. 

00:31:58 RH: -- mistakes that she made, I asked the chief judge, what do 

00:32:03 you do I with my affidavit? 

00:32:04 AW: So what's the ultimate outcome? Are you going to stay on the 

00:32:07 case? 

00:32:07 RH: That's up to the chief judge. 
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00:32:09 Kw: 
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That's who makes the decision? 

Yes. 

Why does she want you disqualified? 

Well, she has an affidavit. If you want to read it, it has 

several things on there. 

Okay. Can I get a copy of that? 

Yeah. 

Okay. Okay. Last question. Some of these articles and 

media and stuff paint you as a being biased against women and 

proponent of father's rights. Do you have any response to 

that? 

Yeah. That's a political issue, I think. People like to say 

thing-s. That doesn't mean it's true. 

Okay. Do you have anything that you would like to put on the 

record? 

Well, I would invite you to review the entire case because if 

you take a snippet of a hearing and you view that without 

looking at the entire case and the history, then you can't 

make a fair assessment of what occurred on one particular 

day. 

Okay. So that hearing that you had on the 15th, you 

described it as an exchange hearing, correct? 

It was an exchange in my courtroom. Again, because short of 

a pickup order and the police take her, I had no way 

to give the dad the child. 
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When was the mother notified that this was going to happen? 

It's in the court record. 

Was it in -- was it a hearing that you had? 

I told 

Or was it a minute order? 

I told her at a hearing that if the child didn't go with dad 

on the weekends, she would spend the entire SUIn.lLler with dad. 

And then I issued a minute order when I got the Donna's house 

report that the child was not going on the weekends. 

And that would probably be the minu.te order where you ordered 

her to bring the child to court. 

Correct. 

June 8. 

Correct. 

A'ld then you also had an order to show cc.use that was dated 

the date before, June I believe. fuld she was served 

with that? 

I don't recall. 

Let me just look and see if I have a copy of that. 

Oh, I guess I did issue an order to show cause. I thought 

the attorney didn't prepare it. That was my mistake. So I 

did issue an order to show cause why she couldn't be held in 

contempt for failure to facilitate visitation, it looks like. 

But we never had a contempt hearing after this where I issued 

sanctions for contempt. 
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Okay. So you never had a hearing, a contempt hearing for it. 

A..T1d then the June 15th, that was the court minutes from that 

hearing and where you issued the court order that the -- due 

to mom's failure to facilitate visitation and compel the 

child to visit with dad, the Court ordering dad shall have 

temporary sole custody and sole physical custody. Dad's 

child support obligation to mom shall cease imrnediately. Mom 

shall have an obligation to pay child support to dad at a 

statutory mediuIn rate of a hundred dollars per month based on 

mom's income. Dad shall enroll minor in the public school In 

the school zone of his residence. Mom shall have no contact 

with the minor. How come mom couldn't have any contact with 

the minor? 

Because she's a pathogenic parent. fuld in order to allow 

there to be time -- pathogenic parenting is a whole course 

that you can take. 

Right. 

Okay? And Irom the information that I have and the advice I 

got from the judges up here, is when you make that transfer, 

you stop contact with the pathogenic parent, the one who is 

caus the problems, and it basically puts them in a 

situation where the bonding starts with the dad and the 

child. Otherwise, mom lS going to be calling on a constant 

basis, and she's going to be sabotaging the 

bet,,,een dad and the child the. t they're trying to establish 
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now on their own grounds because she's undermining dad's 

rights all along. She's undermining his relationship with 

the child. And if I were to allow contact during that period 

of time, she would continue to undermine and sabotage their 

Okay. HereTs I think this is a minute order from 

28th, 2016, where plaintiff, which is the mom, appeared 

in Court with attorney Weatherford. Does that ... 

This was an order to show cause on the math testing and on 

the HELOC, I believe. 

And that's H-E-L-O-C? What is the HELOC? 

Home equity line of credit. Stating which location. Order 

to show cause was issued to proceed with the math testing 

issue. She was, yeah, found in contempt for failing to have 

the child math tested at a facility of defendant's choosing, 

which I had ordered about a year before that. I sanctioned 

her $500 for that and attorney's fees, looks like. !hid then 

I set the HELOC order to show cause for an evidentiary 

hearing because, by her own testimony, she adrnitted she did 

not have the child math tested at a facility of defendant's 

choosing. She did what she wanted. She had first a one-page 

test done that had five questions on it. And then after 

months, she said she went to a school teacher, but the 

initial order was that dad can choose a place to have 

the child tested because the child is home schooled, but he 
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00:39:33 had to pay for fuld he had c_dvised her he wanted her to 

00:39:37 take the child to Sylvan, and she just wouldn't do l~. So I 

00:39:43 didn't need a full evidentiary hearing on that. The BELOe, I 

00:39:47 did set an evidentiary hearing for October, and that's when 

00:39:51 they appeared and made their stipulations, I believe. 

00:39:53 AW: So you didn't need to have an evidentiary hearing on the 

00:40:01 conteE'Lpt r correct? 

00:40:02 RH: For math because she admitted to it. 

00:40:05 AW: Okay. Did you need to -- an evidentiary hearing on the 

00:40:10 custody issue about her not allowing the visitation or no? 

00:40:15 RB: No. I didn't need th2_t. That was obvious. 

00:40:28 AW: So you made the detailed findings of fact to support this was 

00:40:34 basically the information that you received, correct? 

00:40:37 RH: The therapist report, Donna's house report, her own 

00:40:42 ac1llissions that visitation wasn't happening. And there was 

00:40:46 no risk to the child. She's -- she continues to claim that 

00:40:51 the father is a risk to the child, but the child's own 

00:40:54 individual therapist sald the fa_ther is no risk. Annie 

00:40:58 reported to Keisha Wei ford the father has never abused her, 

00:41:03 and Keisha Weiford reported there's no evidence of any abuse 

00:41:07 by the father, so there's -- and that there's no basis for 

00:41:10 them not to have a relationship. 

00:41:12 AW: Is the mother any claims about any abuse? 

00:41:15 RB: She says he's a reckless driver and that I don't care about 

00:41:19 her child. She didn't want him to be able to drive. fuld I 
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asked him if he had any moving- violations. He did not. And 

I have reports from the child and the therapist that there's 

no his of abuse. It's a different style of parenting-. 

He's more authoritarian, and mom is very liberal and lax. 

There's no abuse happening-. There's no reason why they can't 

have a relat 

Okay. All Anything- else, Your Honor? 

Not unless you have another question. 

I do not. Thank you very much for being- patient. 

Transcriber, we're going- to be off the record. The time is 

approximately 12:30. Thank you very much. 

(Recording- ended.) 
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STATE OF NEVADA 

COUNTY OF WASHOE 

I, Stephani L. Loder, do hereby certify: 

That I transcribed from audio recording the proceedings 

had in the above-entitled matter; 

That the appearances on the cover page are from this 

transcriber's understanding of who was present the 

proceeding; 

That speaker identification was made to the best of my 

ability through voice recognition; 

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1 

through 27, inclusive, is a full, true and correct 

transcription of said proceeding to the best of my ability. 

Dated at Reno, Nevada, this 7th of February, 2017. 

/s/ Stephani L. Loder 

STEPP~NI L. LODER 
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Case No.: Nevada Commission on Judicial Discipline 
2016-113 
Recorded I nterview of: Welthy Silva 
February 8th, 2017 
IDENTITY OF SPEAKERS: 
AW: Adam Wygnanski 
WS: Welthy Silva 

00:00:01 AW: All right, transcriber, today's date is Wednesday, 

00:00:03 February 8th, 2017. The time is approximately 9:29 a.m. This 

00:00:09 is investigator Adam Wygnanski with Spencer Investigations, 

00:00:14 Reno, Nevada, who are contracted by the State of Nevada 

00:00:18 Commission on Judicial Discipline. This will be a telephonic 

00:00:22 interview. For the record, can you please spell your first 

00:00:24 and last name? 

00:00:25 

00:00:26 WS: Yes. Welthy, W-e-I-t-h-y. Last name Silva, S-i-I-v-a. 

00:00:33 

00:00:33 AW: Okay. And a good address for you? 

00:00:35 

00:00:35 WS: 1433 Cottonwood Place, Las Vegas, Nevada 89104. 

00:00:42 

00:00:42 AW: Cottonwood. And what was the ZIP code again, 89 --

00:00:46 

00:00:47 WS: 89104. 

00:00:48 

00:00:48 AW: Okay. And is this a good phone number for you? 
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00:00:51 

00:00:52 WS: It is my only phone number, yes. 

00:00:55 

00:00:55 AW: Okay. And what is that? 

00:00:57 

00:00:57 WS: 702-460-9438. 

00:01 :01 

00:01 :01 AW: Perfect. And you're aware that this interview is being 

00:01 :04 recorded? 

00:01 :05 

00:01 :05 WS: Yes. 

00:01 :05 
i 

'I 
! 

00:01 :05 AW: And this is with your permission? 

00:01 :07 

00:01 :07 WS: Yes, it is. ! 

00:01 :08 

00:01:08 AW: Okay. Just as a reminder, I just wanted to ask you to 

00:01 :12 please wait for the complete question to be asked before 

00:01 :16 answering. And I'll try -- I'll try and do the same thing 

00:01: 18 because it's obvious that it's hard for the transcriber to 

00:01 :23 pick up two voices talking at the same time. Okay? 

00:01 :26 

00:01 :26 WS: Sure. 
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00:01 :26 

00:01 :27 

00:01 :30 

00:01 :33 

00:01 :37 

00:01 :44 

00:01 :48 

00:01 :56 

00:01 :59 

00:02:02 

00:02:06 

00:02:09 

AW: All right. This interview is in reference to a complaint 

that was received by the Nevada Commission on Judicial 

Discipline on September 6th, 2016. This case was assigned 

Case No. 2016-113. The complaint contains allegation of 

possible violations of Canon Rule 1 and Canon Rule 2, 

specifically 1.1, 1.2, 2.2, 2.6(A) and 2.AB. After the 

commission's review of the complaint against the respondent, 

the Commission on Judicial Discipline concluded that there was 

sufficient reason to conduct a follow-up investigation. All 

right. Welthy, what is your current employment? 

00:02:10 WS: I am a ballet teacher. I have a small ballet school 

00:02:14 downtown. 

00:02:15 

00:02: 15 AW: Okay. And what's that address? 

00:02:16 

00:02:19 WS: 1408 South 3rd Street. Also Las Vegas, Nevada 89104. 

00:02:27 

00:02:28 AW: Okay. And how long have you been at that, doing that, at 

00:02:30 that position? 

00:02:31 

00:02:31 WS: Well, I have been teaching ballet for 13 -- let's see. I 
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00:02:38 started when my daughter was -- when I was pregnant with my 

00:02:42 daughter, so she's 13 now. About 13 112 years. 

00:02:45 

00:02:45 AW: And all of it in Las Vegas? 

00:02:47 

00:02:48 WS: Yes. 

00:02:48 

00:02:48 AW: Okay. 

00:02:50 

00:02:50 WS: Before that I was a professional dancer in various shows 

00:02:53 in Las Vegas and traveling the world. 

00:02:57 

00:02:57 AW: I'll bet that was fun. 

00:02:59 

00:02:59 WS: It was, yeah. 

00:03:01 

00:03:02 AW: All right. You're familiar with the hearing that 

00:03:05 occurred in Judge Hughes' courtroom on June 15th, 2016--

00:03:10 

00:03:11 WS: Yes. 

00:03:11 

00:03:12 AW: -- where you were apparently escorted away from the 

00:03:16 courtroom? 
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00:03:17 

00:03:17 WS: Yes, that is right. 

00:03:18 

00:03:18 AW: Okay. Who were you in the courtroom with initially on 

00:03:20 that date? 

00:03:21 

00:03:24 WS: Just it was myself and my daughter and Rena Hughes, and 

00:03:31 there was a bailiff and a court clerk or court reporter and my 

00:03:38 ex-husband, and he had two -- I believe three -- I believe 

00:03:44 there was three attorneys with him. 

00:03:45 

00:03:46 AW: Okay. And what is your daughter's name? 

00:03:48 

00:03:48 WS: Annie. 

00:03:49 

00:03:49 AW: Okay. And she --

00:03:51 

00:03:51 WS: Silva. 

00:03:52 

00:03:52 AW: Okay. And she was 12 years old at the time? 

00:03:54 

00:03:55 WS: She was 12 years old, yes. 

00:03:57 
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00:03:57 AW: Okay. Who -- who escorted you off the property and --

00:04:01 and why? 

00:04:01 

00:04:03 WS: I don't know why. Well, I'll tell you, the beginning 

00:04:10 was -- the very beginning was that I got a letter in the mail 

00:04: 14 the Friday before that hearing saying that I needed to bring 

00:04:17 my daughter to court or I would be put in jail for 25 days. 

00:04:21 

00:04:21 AW: Okay. 

00:04:21 

00:04:22 WS: And there was no specific reasons for that, just -- okay. 

00:04:25 And so I called her chambers and said, Look, I need to know 

00:04:30 what this is about. I need to know, you know, to tell my 

00:04:34 daughter, to say, okay, look, baby, you're going to -- you're 

00:04:37 going to get a chance to go talk to the judge about what's 

00:04:40 going on, you're -- you know, something like that, or they're 

00:04:42 going to make you go with your father. Or whatever. I needed 

00:04:46 something to be able to -- you know, it's not like, oh, 

00:04:50 surprise, we're going to go to court today, Annie. You know? 

00:04:52 Because there was no specifics in the letter. So I never got 

00:04:55 a phone call or an answer back from that. So that day came, 

00:05:00 and she was just -- my daughter was horrified. She was just 

00:05:03 like, Oh, my God, Mom, they're not going to make me go with 
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00:05:04 him, right? They're not going to make me go. I said, Annie, 

00:05:06 I have no idea, honey. We just have to go in there and tell 

00:05:10 the truth. 

00:05.10 

00:05:10 AW: Right. 

00:05:10 

00:05:10 WS: That's all we can do. 

00:05:12 

00:05:12 

00:05:17 

00:05:20 

00:05:21 

00:05:24 

00:05:28 

00:05:34 

00:05:36 

00:05:39 

00:05:39 

00:05:39 

AW: Now, after I viewed courtroom recording, a video, your 

daughter appeared to be present there in the courtroom by 

herself. Did you know that? 

WS: She was. Yes, I did know. So -- so we went to court. 

We all went in, like all the people that I just said. We were 

all in there. And about two seconds later it was like, okay, 

everyone is going to leave, I'm -- Rena Hughes said: Everyone 

is going to leave. I'm going talk to the child alone. 

AW: Okay. 

00:05:39 WS: Okay? I kissed my little girl. I said, You're okay, 

00:05:44 you're fine, and I kissed her and I walked out. I was only in 

00:05:50 the hallway outside the courtroom I would say two, three 

00:05:54 minutes tops, and then the bailiff came out into the hallway 
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00:06:00 and said, I am to escort the mother off the property. 

00:06:04 

00:06:05 

00:06:05 

00:06:05 

00:06:08 

00:06:10 

00:06:12 

00:06:13 

00:06:15 

AW: Okay. 

WS: And that was it. That was alii knew. I said, Well, 

what -- what is going on? I don't -- and then I, you know, 

what the hell is happening here? 

AW: Right. Now, when --

00:06:16 WS: And my ex's attorneys were like, Well, we don't even know 

00:06:19 what's happening. Which I don't believe, but whatever. 

00:06:20 

00:06:20 AW: Okay. Now, when and how were you made aware that your 

00:06:24 husband was going to have temporary custody of your daughter? 

00:06:28 

00:06:28 WS: I called his attorneys about an hour -- an hour to two 

00:06:35 hours later. I called his attorneys to find out what was 

00:06:38 gOing on. 

00:06:38 

00:06:39 AW: Okay. 

00:06:40 

00:06:41 WS: And -- because when -- when I was asking before the 
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00:06:45 bailiff said -- you know, before he took me off the property, 

00:06:48 I said, I need to know what's going on. When am I getting my 

00:06:51 daughter back? What the hell? And his attorneys came over to 

00:06:55 me. Because I didn't have one. 

00:06:56 

00:06:56 AW: Right. 

00:06:56 

00:06:57 WS: His attorneys came to me and said, Well, we don't really 

00:06:58 know what's happening yet. You -- here's my phone number. 

00:07:00 You can call me later and find out. So I --

00:07:03 

00:07:03 AW: Okay. And this was out in the hall? This was out --

00:07:06 this was out --

WS: Yes. 

00:07:06 AW: -- in the hallway? Okay. 

00:07:07 

00:07:07 WS: Yes. 

00:07:08 

00:07:09 AW: So--

00:07:09 

00:07:09 WS: So I had her phone number. So then like an hour or so 

00:07:13 later I called that number, and I said, So what's going --

00:07:18 what's going on? Am I supposed to go pick her up somewhere? 
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00:07:22 Is he bringing her back to me? What? You know, even at that 

00:07:24 point I'm thinking, well, maybe she made her go to lunch with 

00:07:27 him and then now I'm going to get her back, you know. 

00:07:29 

00:07:30 AW: Right. 

00:07:30 

00:07:30 WS: And -- and she goes, Oh, you're not getting her back. He 

00:07:34 has sole legal and physical custody. 

00:07:36 

00:07:37 AW: Okay. 

00:07:37 

00:07:37 WS: I was shocked and speechless. 

00:07:43 

00:07:43 AW: Okay. So you found --

00:07:44 

00:07:44 WS: That's how I found out. 

00:07:46 

00:07:47 AW: You found this out through your ex-husband's attorneys. 

00:07:48 

00:07:49 WS: Yes. 

00:07:49 

00:07:49 AW: Okay. Did you know beforehand, did the Court let you 

00:07:53 know that this hearing was an exchange hearing where your 
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00:07:57 daughter was going to be placed with the dad? Were you --

00:08:01 

00:08:01 WS: No. Definitely not. 

00:08:01 

00:08:02 AW: Were you aware of that? Okay. 

00:08:04 

00:08:04 WS: No, I was a not aware of that. Like I said, in that 

00:08:07 letter that came Friday, it was basically like you just have 

00:08:10 to bring your daughter to court or we're going to throw you in 

00:08:12 jail for 25 days. 

00:08:13 
II I; 
r-c 
c 

00:08:13 AW: Okay. 

il 
00:08:14 

00:08:14 WS: That's what it said. 

00:08:14 

00:08:15 AW: Now, it's also -- Welthy, it's also my understanding, 

00:08:18 after I reviewed the court minutes and stuff, that you were 

00:08:22 admonished several times by the judge that if you failed to 

00:08:26 encourage or facilitate Annie's weekend visitations with her 

00:08:30 father that Annie would spend the entire summer with her 

00:08:33 father. Were you aware of that? 

00:08:34 

00:08:34 WS: That is correct. 
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00:08:35 

00:08:35 AW: Is that right? 

00:08:35 

00:08:36 WS: I am -- I am aware of that. 

00:08:38 

00:08:38 AW: Okay. 

00:08:38 

00:08:38 WS: There's a few things with that. I did very much 

00:08:41 encourage and facilitate visitations. I took Annie to Donna's 

00:08:48 House where the exchanges were to take place four different 

00:08:52 times. I took her to the reunification therapy six times and 

00:08:59 paid for some of it myself. 

00:09:00 

00:09:00 AW: Right. 

00:09:01 

00:09:04 WS: I do believe children. I also know the hell my daughter 

00:09:09 has lived. But I did what I was to do through the court. 

00:09:17 

00:09: 17 AW: Okay. Now, the Court found that apparently this has been 

00:09:22 going on for approximately a year where Annie did not have her 

00:09:26 proper court-ordered visitation with her father. Is that 

00:09:30 correct? 

00:09:30 
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00:09:30 WS: That is correct. Yes. 

00:09:32 

00:09:32 AW: Okay. And what was the reasoning why that happened? 

00:09:34 

00:09:35 WS: Because he is very mentally and emotionally abusive, 

00:09:40 borders on -- borders on physical. But he's never been 

00:09:43 physical with Annie. He just used to throw things at me in 

00:09:47 the house. 

00:09:47 

00:09:47 AW: Mm-hmm. 

00:09:48 

00:09:48 WS: Put his hands around my neck once. And Rena Hughes 

00:09:54 ignores all of that evidence. Not just me saying -- not just 

00:09:59 me going in and saying things, but I have had witnesses, I 

00: 10:01 have had people write affidavits of what they have seen and 

00: 10:05 heard, and she has ignored all of that. 

00:10:09 

00:10:09 AW: Okay. 

00:10:10 

00:10:10 WS: And this is why my daughter did not want to go with him. 

00:10:13 

00:10:13 AW: Okay. Now--

00:10:14 
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00: 10: 15 WS: There are nine minutes missing -- I'm sorry. 

00:10:17 

00:10:18 AW: That's okay. Go ahead. 

00:10:18 

00:10:19 WS: There are nine minutes missing on this video. Like I 

00:10:22 can't watch it myself. I cannot watch that horrible video. 

00:10:26 Enough people have told me what's on it that I just -- I can't 

00:10:28 do it. 

00:10·28 

00: 10:29 AW: Did you watch it? 

00:10:30 

00:10:30 WS: But--

00:10:30 

00:10:30 AW: Did you watch it? 

00:10:31 

00:10:31 WS: No, no. I did not. I did not watch it. And I -- I 

00:10:35 don't believe that I can ever. I don't believe I can ever 

00:10:38 watch it. Just people told me what it is. And I've read 

00:10:45 transcripts of it. And it's -- it's horrible for me. So 

00:10:51 there are nine minutes missing on the video. The -- a news 

00:10:56 station figured that out. And I questioned my daughter about 

00:10:59 it, because my sister called me, and she was livid. She's 

00:11 :02 like, Well, you have to find out what happened in those nine 
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00: 11 :05 minutes. So I ask Annie about it, and that is when -- she 

00: 11: 10 said, That must have been when I was telling the judge all the 

00: 11 :14 reasons that I did not want to go with -- with Papa. That she 

00:11 :18 said, you know, I was telling her about the reckless driving, 

00:11 :21 about how he's mean to me, about how he talks bad about you, 

00: 11 :25 about -- you know, just on and on, all the things that he's 

00:11 :28 done. Right? 

00:11 :28 

00: 11 :28 AW: Rig ht. 

00:11 :29 

00:11:29 

00:11 :32 

00:11 :36 

00:11 :40 

00:11 :44 

00:11 :48 

00:11:52 

00:11 :55 

00: 11 :59 

00:12:01 

00:12:04 

00:12:05 

WS: And she said that Rena pretty much was just like, well -­

you know, she just ignored her, just didn't -- didn't find any 

of those things relevant; that those were not good reasons for 

not wanting to go with her father. Like, okay, well, 

whatever. So that's -- she also said that Rena said -- which 

is a lie. I have found out through people that know Rena 

Hughes. She's like, Well, I have grandchildren and so I know 

best because I have grandchildren. And but she doesn't even 

have any children. How -- how could she have grandchildren? 

But, anyway, that's just one more lie that came out of that 

judge's mouth. 

00:12:06 AW: How did this video -- just out of curiosity, how did this 
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00:12:08 video make it to the media and on YouTube? Do you know? 

00:12:12 

00:12:12 WS: I do not know. The YouTube thing was -- I don't know how 

00:12:17 that happened. I know that it was two days before my next 

00:12:26 hearing that it was leaked on YouTube, or that's when my 

00:12:32 mother called me, two days before my next hearing and said 

00: 12:36 that my ex-husband had called her and said, Do you know that 

00:12:39 the video of Annie is on YouTube? And then my mother called 

00:12:44 me. I think my mother thought I had done it. I said, Well, 

00:12:48 I -- I didn't even know it was out there. I didn't do it. I 

00: 12:50 sure didn't do it. I haven't even seen the video myself. 

00:12:54 

00:12:54 AW: Right. 

00:12:55 

00:12:55 WS: Yeah, so I -- still I don't know. 

00:12:57 

00:12:57 AW: Okay. In your complaint to the commission, Welthy, you 

00:13:01 stated that Judge Hughes committed extreme abuse of discretion 

00:13:06 and that overreaching of power took place. What did you mean 

00:13:10 by that? 

00:13:10 

00:13: 11 WS: Well, she violated my Fourth Amendment constitutional 

00: 13: 17 right, search and seizure of my daughter, for one thing. 
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00:13:24 There are so many NRS codes that I have found. You know, any 

00:13:29 history of -- the NRS code 125C, any history of parental abuse 

00: 13:36 or neglect of -- of the child, that that person should not 

00:13:39 have custody. Well, she gave the abuser custody. 

00: 13:44 

00:13:44 AW: Right. 

00: 13:45 

00:13:48 WS: She threatens to change custody for all kinds of things. 

00: 13:52 Like what you just -- even what you noticed, the admonishment 

00: 13:57 of, you know, and if you don't facilitate visitations I will 

00: 14:00 change custody. That is not -- the consideration had nothing 

00: 14:03 to do with Annie's best interest there, did it? It was more a 

00: 14:07 threat to me to try and get me to follow her orders. Well, 

00:14:12 you can't use change of custody to threaten the parent. I 

00: 14:17 mean, that was in Sims versus Sims. The Supreme Court hearing 

00:14:23 Sims versus Sims, you know, a judge cannot use the change of 

00:14:27 custody as a sword to punish a parent. And that's what she's 

00:14:31 done over and over. She even threatened to change custody 

00:14:34 of -- with my ex-husband before. I heard that two years ago. 

00:14:38 I mean, this -- when you're dealing with the custody of a 

00:14:44 child, you need -- the sole consideration is the best interest 

00: 14:47 of the child. It's not the best interest of the parents. 

00:14:50 
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00:14:51 AW: Right. 

00: 14:52 

00: 14:52 WS: I mean, these are laws. 

00:14:53 

00:14:54 AW: Now, you also stated that all of your parental rights 

00: 14:57 were stripped without any evidence of abuse on your part. 

00:15:00 

00:15:01 WS: That's true. 

00: 15:01 

00:15:02 AW: Would you agree that keeping your daughter away from her 

00: 15:06 father is a type of emotional abuse? 

00:15:09 

00:15:09 WS: Keeping her away from him? 

00:15:11 

00:15: 12 AW: Uh-huh. 

00:15:12 

00:15:12 WS: Ididnotkeepherawayfromhim. Shechosenottogo 

00:15:16 with him. 

00:15:18 

00:15:18 AW: Okay. But she was, what, 12 years old? 

00:15:21 

00:15:21 WS: That's correct. 

00: 15:22 
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00:15:22 AW: Okay. 

00:15:26 

00:15:27 WS: You could also go the other -- the other extreme and say 

00:15:30 that if I had forced her to go, that would have been abuse. 

00:15:34 

00:15:34 AW: Okay. 

00:15:34 

00:15:35 WS: Because he is abusive to her. And to force a child into 

00: 15:39 an abusive situation is now I'm a neglectful parent for 

00:15:43 putting Annie in harm's way, aren't I? 

00:15:45 

00:15:46 AW: Right. Now, I reviewed the reports from Keisha Weiford 

00: 15 :52 and others, and there was noth ing mentioned in there about any 

00:15:55 kind of abuse by your ex. Is that--

00:15:58 

00:15:59 WS: Of course not. And Keisha Weiford is going to be under 

00: 16:02 investigation for this, and some other people have come to me 

00:16:05 about heras well. 

00:16:06 

00:16:06 AW: Okay. What about Claudia--

00:16:08 

00:16:08 WS: There was a little boy that was -- that was sexually 

00:16:10 abused under Keisha Weiford's watch, and she never noticed it. 
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00:16:14 

00:16:14 AW: Okay. What about Claudia Schwarz? 

00:16:16 

00: 16: 16 WS: We never went to Claudia Schwarz because it was $4,000 

00: 16:20 each, and I don't have $4,000. 

00:16:22 

00:16:22 AW: Okay. 

00:16:25 

00: 16:26 WS: That's another thing. You know, this judge thinks to 

00: 16:30 advocate for my ex-husband. She awards him attorneys fees 

00: 16:35 when I don't even have an attorney. 

00:16:38 

00:16:38 AW: Right. 

00:16:43 

00: 16:43 WS: I have no money. I have been completely bankrupt through 

00: 16:48 this. 

00:16:48 

00: 16:48 AW: Okay. What about the program coordinator from Donna's 

00:16:52 House, an Amber Hutton? Does that ring a bell? 

00:16:56 

00:16:56 WS: Yes. Yes, it does. 

00:16:58 

00:16:58 AW: Okay. And -- and you -- did you bring Annie over there 
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00: 17:02 for supervised exchanges? 

00:17:03 

00:17:03 WS: Four different times. 

00:17:04 

00: 17:04 AW: Okay. 

00:17:05 

00: 17:06 WS: Actually two, two times. I personally took her two 

00: 17:09 times. The first time we walk in, and the guy says it will be 

00:17:15 $10 or whatever the little fee was. 

00:17:17 

00:17:18 AW: Right. 

00:17:18 

00:17:18 WS: I start to pullout my money, and my daughter said, Does 

00: 17: 19 she have to pay if I'm not going? And he looked at her and he 

00:17:23 looked at me, and then I said, Well, she doesn't want to go. 

00:17:28 

00: 17:29 AW: Right. 

00:17:29 

00:17:29 WS: And so then he said, Okay, so -- then she started crying 

00:17:33 at that point. And I said, Look -- he wanted to talk to her. 

00:17:36 I said, Look, can you take her around the corner and talk to 

00:17:39 her? I don't -- I'm so tired of being accused of, you know, 

00:17:43 I'm the alienating parent, God help me. 
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00:17:46 

00:17:47 AW: Right. 

00:17:47 

00:17:47 

00:17:49 

00:17:54 

00: 17:58 

00: 18:01 

00:18:05 

00:18:05 

00:18:05 

00:18:05 

00:18:06 

00:18:07 

00:18:11 

00:18:13 

WS: I said, you know, this -- please, you go over there and 

I'm going to go over here and then whatever. So he did that. 

And a few minutes later they come back, and he said, She 

doesn't have to go. And I said, Okay, so but, you know, 

everything is documented here. I did what I was supposed to 

do, right? 

AW: Right. 

WS: Anything else? And he goes, No, no, you're good. You 

guys can go. And pretty much the same thing happened the 

second time I took her. 

00:18:13 AW: Okay. 

00:18:13 

00:18:14 WS: The third and forth time I had a mutual friend take Annie 

00:18:19 to further facilitate the visitation. Okay? 

00:18:23 

00:18:23 AW: Right. 

00:18:23 
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00: 18:23 WS: So how are you going to blame me? I'm six miles down the 

00:18:28 road. 

00:18:28 

00:18:28 AW: Okay. 

00:18:28 

00:18:29 WS: For God's sake. So now same thing happened. Well, the 

00:18:33 third time my friend took her. And she, you know, said, No, 

00:18:39 I'm not going. I do not want to go with him. He's not good 

00:18:43 to me. And whatever she said to them. And I think Donna's 

00:18:47 House must have made a report. And then the fourth time that 

00:18:52 my -- that a friend took her, my ex-husband did not even show 

00:18:58 up. Her father was not even there. 

00:19:00 

00: 19:00 AW: Right. 

00:19:01 

00: 19:01 WS: So that was -- so that was what happened the fourth time. 

00:19:04 

00: 19:05 AW: Welthy, based upon -- now, is it your understanding that 

00:19:09 the temporary change of custody was done because you refused 

00: 19: 14 to comply with the Court's orders on visitation and math 

00:19:17 testing and that's why the custody was given? Is that your 

00: 19:21 understanding? 

00:19:21 
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00:19:21 WS: Yes. I don't know why else would it be. 

00:19:24 

00:19:24 AW: Okay. Now, you guys had a subsequent hearing that was 

00: 19:30 held on October 11, 2016. 

00:19:32 

00:19:33 WS: Oh, yes. 

00: 19:34 

00: 19:34 AW: Now, in between the June hearing and the October hearing, 

00:19:39 was Annie in your ex-husband's custody? 

00:19:42 

00:19:42 WS: Yes. 

00:19:43 

00:19:45 AW: Okay. 

00:19:45 

00:19:45 WS: I did not see or hear her voice for that whole time. 

00:19:50 

00:19:50 AW: Okay. From June, from when she was taken in temporary 

00: 19:54 custody, until the October 11 th hearing? 

00:19:57 

00:19:57 WS: Yes. 

00:19:57 

00:19:57 AW: Okay. During this hearing, you guys reached a temporary 

00:20:02 stipulation? 
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00:20:02 

00:20:03 WS: Yeah, I wou Id 100 percent say that it was a coerced 

00:20:09 stipulation. 

00:20:10 

00:20: 10 AW: Okay. Now, you have to explain that one to me. 

00:20:13 

00:20:14 WS: I will be -- I will be happy too. 

00:20:15 

00:20:15 AW: Okay. 

00:20:16 

00:20:16 WS: So my -- I did have an attorney at that time. 

00:20:19 

00:20:20 AW: Right. 

00:20:20 

00:20:21 WS: Unbundled services, Robert Weatherford. And so we go in. 

00:20:26 I had a, you know, great pretrial memorandum, whatever. It 

00:20:31 was -- you know, we're thinking, okay, we're -- we're going to 

00:20:32 get some -- some semblance of justice here. Not that I have a 

00:20:37 whole lot of faith in Rena Hughes' court, but, you know, some 

00:20:40 semblance of justice here. All of our evidence, I had two 

00:20:42 witnesses waiting in the hall. And before we even go in, the 

00:20:49 bailiff comes out and tells the attorneys, Look, Hughes wants 

00:20:54 you guys to stipulate to some agreement, talk to each other 
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00:20:58 and stipulate to some agreement. 

00:21 :00 

00:21 :00 AW: Okay. 

00:21 :00 

00:21 :01 WS: And so they go in at that point. And I think she wanted 

00:21 :05 to talk to them or something. For some reason the attorneys 

00:21 :09 went in. Or certainly I remember my attorney going in and 

00:21 :13 speaking with her. But I was not present. I was still in the 

00:21: 16 hallway. 

00:21:16 

00:21: 16 AW: Okay. 

00:21:16 

00:21 :16 WS: He comes back out, and he tells me -- he said, Look, 

00:21 :20 Welthy, you knew we weren't going to get a fair hearing today. 

00:21 :23 

00:21 :24 AW: Who said this? Your attorney? 

00:21 :25 

00:21 :25 WS: My attorney, Robert Weatherford. He's like, Look, you 

00:21 :28 knew we weren't going to really get a fair hearing today. She 

00:21 :31 has said -- she's telling me right now that she knows about 

00:21 :35 the video being leaked. Two days before the video was on 

00:21:40 YouTube. She said -- he said she said, Rena Hughes said: 

00:21:45 know about the video being leaked. And if we go forward with 
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00:21 :50 this trial today, or evidentiary hearing today, I'm going to 

00:21 :55 refuse to look at all of your evidence and Welthy will not get 

00:22:00 any more time with her daughter and she will be forced to sell 

00:22:05 her house. 

00:22:08 

00:22:08 AW: Okay. 

00:22:10 

00:22:10 WS: And I said, Well, whatever, Robert, just I don't care. 

00:22:15 Go ahead. Go ahead with the trial. I mean, then we'll do a 

00:22: 18 writ or an appeal or something. And he said, Welthy, if we do 

00:22:21 a writ or appeal, it could be a year and a half to two years 

00:22:25 before you see your daughter. We just should take like 

00:22:28 whatever scraps they're going to give us today. 

00:22:31 

00:22:31 AW: Okay. 

00:22:32 

00:22:32 WS: And then maybe you can see your daughter a little bit. 

00:22:35 

00:22:35 AW: Right. 

00:22:36 

00:22:36 WS: You know? Even like next week you could see her a day or 

00:22:40 two or something. And so then at that time it's just like, 

00:22:44 well, Jesus Christ, of course I can't wait like a year to see 
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00:22:48 my daughter, so, okay, I'll take these scraps. 

00:22:51 

00:22:51 AW: Right. 

00:22:52 

00:22:53 WS: So that's what happened. And the next hour or so he and 

00:22:56 my ex's attorney were in there talking about some kind of 

00:23:00 stipulated agreement. 

00:23:02 

00:23:02 AW: Okay. Without your presence? 

00:23:04 

00:23:04 WS: Oh, without my presence. No, I was not present. 

00:23:08 

00:23:08 AW: Okay. 

00:23:09 

00:23:09 WS: I was sitting in the hallway with my two witnesses that 

00:23: 12 never got to testify. 

00:23:13 

00:23:14 AW: Okay. Who were the witnesses? 

00:23:15 

00:23:19 WS: Carolyn -- sorry. Caron Olsen. Caron Olsen, who has 

00:23:23 known --

00:23:23 

00:23:24 AW: How do you spell her first name? 
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00:23:25 

00:23:26 WS: Caron is C-a-r-o-n; Olsen, O-I-s-e-n. 

00:23:33 

00:23:33 AW: Okay. 

00:23:35 

00:23:35 WS: And Meredith McGuire. Meredith McGuire was not actually 

00:23:43 on the witness list, but she showed up just in case. 

00:23:46 

00:23:47 AW: Okay. And how do you spell her name? 

00:23:48 

00:23:49 WS: M-e-r-e-d-i-t-h McGuire. I believe it's McGuire. 

00:23:55 M-c-G-u-i-r-e. 

00:23:59 

00:23:59 AW: Okay. And what were these people going to testify to? 

00:24:02 

00:24:03 WS: To the things that Annie had talked to them about without 

00:24:09 me being present. Like Caron Olsen's children took ballet 

00:24:15 from me for years. And she also knew Annie from preschool, 

00:24:20 kindergarten. Her children went to the same school with 

00:24:22 Annie. So she had known us for a long time. And she had had 

00:24:26 several conversations with Annie, just with my daughter and 

00:24:29 her would be in the lobby at the dance studio while I was in 

00:24:33 the other room teaching ballet. So, you know, I wasn't even 
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00:24:35 

00:24:38 

00:24:44 

00:24:50 

00:24:53 

00:24:59 

00:25:03 

00:25:06 

00:25:08 

00:25:14 

00:25:17 

00:25:21 

00:25:24 

00:25:27 

00:25:28 

present for these conversations. And these conversations that 

took place were primarily about my ex-husband's abuse towards 

Annie and how she felt, how she felt about him. And she also 

saw whenever he would come to the dance studio to pick her up 

on Saturdays how Annie's -- her mood, her whole character and 

personality just changed when she realized, oh, God, it's 

almost time for me to go with my father, and she would just -­

her -- she would just change into this other person. And 

Caron Olsen had witnessed all of that. She also knew that, 

you know, I was a good and honest person because I had taken 

care of her children and taught them ballet and all these 

things. My other witness who never came because I had -- I 

text him and said, look, they're not going to listen to any of 

my witnesses, so no reason for you to show up. 

00:25:29 AW: Right. 

00:25:29 

00:25:29 WS: That was going to be Travis Edward, which he was not 

00:25:33 there because, like I say, well, no reason for you to come 

00:25:35 now. But he was going to come a little later. 

00:25:37 

00:25:37 AW: Okay. And what was he going to testify to? 

00:25:40 
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00:25:40 WS: Let's see. He saw Annie leave the studio one day, 

00:25:47 because his daughter took ballet from me as well. He was 

00:25:51 outside of.my studio one day when her father came to pick her 

00:25:55 up. And as they were leaving, he saw Annie in tears and how 

00:26:02 my ex was berating her, or whatever he was saying, you know, 

00:26:06 and not being -- not being very fatherly, not being like, oh, 

00:26:10 baby, it's okay, hug her, console her. No. He was just like 

00:26: 15 making her cry more because she didn't want to go with him. 

00:26:19 

00:26:19 AW: Okay. What about -- what about Meredith McGuire? Was 

00:26:22 she going to testify to some of the same stuff? 

00:26:23 

00:26:24 

00:26:26 

00:26:30 

00:26:36 

00:26:40 

WS: She was -- she was not actually -- I mean, she wasn't on 

the witness list. She just showed up, like I said, just to be 

a friend and in case we could use her. But, yeah, she has -­

she was going to testify to the same stuff, yeah, same things. 

00:26:41 AW: Okay. Now--

00:26:42 

00:26:42 WS: What she'd seen and heard from Annie. 

00:26:44 

00:26:45 AW: Okay. When you had this hearing, you were represented by 

00:26:48 the attorney, you were sworn in and you had your right to be 
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00:26:52 heard; correct? 

00:26:53 WS: Well, there was no chance for me to talk. 

00:26:56 

00:26:56 AW: Okay. Did you have a chance to speak to the Court 

00:27:00 regarding your --

00:27:01 

00:27:01 WS: No. 

00:27:01 

00:27:02 AW: -- on your behalf or your daughter's behalf? 

00:27:04 

00:27:04 WS: No. In October 11 th? 

00:27:06 

00:27:06 AW: Yes. 

00:27:06 

00:27:07 WS: No, I did not. In previous hearings, before --

00:27:11 

00:27:11 AW: Right. 

00:27:12 

00:27:12 WS: -- Annie was given to her father, there was two hearings 

00:27:16 that I represented myself because, you know, at some point I 

00:27:20 didn't have any more money, so no more lawyers for me. So I 

00:27:24 self-represented myself. And Rena Hughes actually told me as 

00:27:29 I was speaking: I want you to sit down and shut your mouth. 

APP724 Hughes 000210 



COMMISSION EXHIBIT 16 Page000211 

00:27:34 Just like that. 

00:27:36 

00:27:36 AW: Okay, 

00:27:37 

00:27:37 WS: I would say that is not allowing me to speak, And I was 

00:27:41 representing myself. 

00:27:44 

00:27:44 AW: Okay, And--

00:27:45 

00:27:45 WS: And I have a video of that if you want me to send that 

00:27:48 video to you, 

00:27:49 

00:27:49 AW: Can you e-mail that? 

00:27:50 

00:27:51 WS: I probably can, Let me write down, Okay, what's the 

00:27:57 e-mail address? 

00:27:58 

00:27:59 AW: It's awygnan --

00:28:04 

00:28:05 WS: Hang on, Hang on, I'm sorry. 

00:28:06 

00:28:06 AW: No problem. 

00:28:07 
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00:28:07 WS: I chose the wrong pen here. Aw--

00:28:10 

00:28:10 AW: Ygnans--

00:28:17 

00:28:18 WS: Okay. 

00:28:18 

00:28:19 AW: Ski. 

00:28:22 

00:28:22 WS: Whoops, ski, okay. 

00:28:24 

00:28:26 AW: @charter.net. 

00:28:27 

00:28:27 WS: Charter--

00:28:28 

00:28:29 AW: .net. 

00:28:32 

00:28:32 WS: Okay. Let me just read this back to you. 

00:28 :35 Awygnanski@charter.net. 

00:28:44 

00:28:45 AW: That's it. Now, when she said --

00:28:45 

00:28:46 WS: Okay. Yeah, I'll be able to mail that. 

00:28:47 
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00:28:48 AW: When she said, I want you to sit down and shut your 

00:28:50 mouth, what were you saying when she said that? 

00:28:53 

00:28:55 WS: Oh, boy. Let's see. I would have to -- I would have to 

00:28:58 look back --

00:28:59 

00:28:59 AW: Okay. 

00:29:00 

00:29:00 WS: -- in that video to see what I was saying. That's alii 

00:29:03 remember. 

00:29:03 

00:29:03 AW: Okay. So the bottom line is on this October 11 hearing 

00:29:06 for modification of custody is you agreed to everything 

00:29:09 because of what your attorney advised you to do? 

00:29:14 

00:29:15 WS: Exactly. Because he said, If you don't just take this, 

00:29:18 then it's going to be a year to two years before you see your 

00:29:21 daughter. 

00:29:21 

00:29:21 AW: Okay. How is everything going now between your daughter 

00:29:25 and your ex-husband and yourself? 

00:29:27 

00:29:28 WS: She does not want to be where she is. She -- she still 
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00:29:34 doesn't want to -- she would like to never see him again if 

00:29:39 that was a choice. 

00:29:40 

00:29:40 AW: Right. Now, how often do you get to see her? 

00:29:43 

00:29:43 WS: One day a week. 

00:29:50 

00:29:50 AW: Okay. And she's going to school and everything? 

00:29:54 

00:29:54 WS: Yeah, well, that's a whole 'nother thing, isn't it, 

00:29:57 because apparently Rena Hughes is very uneducated about what 

00:30:01 home school is and has a clear bias against it. 

00:30:04 

00:30:05 AW: Right. 

00:30:05 

00:30:05 WS: I was home schooling my daughter three years before my ex 

00:30:10 and I divorced. 

00:30: 11 

00:30:11 AW: Right. 

00:30:11 

00:30:11 WS: And, now, he himself is very vindictive, so instead of 

00:30: 18 sticking to what the original divorce decree says -- and this 

00:30:22 is -- this is where Rena goes -- disregards the law as well. 
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00:30:25 She completely disregards the law in this aspect. The 

00:30:29 original divorce decree says if the two parents cannot agree 

00:30:34 on schooling, the child shall remain in whatever schooling she 

00:30:39 was In. 

00:30:40 

00:30:40 AW: Right. 

00:30:41 

00:30:41 WS: That's what our original divorce decree says. Makes 

00:30:44 sense, yeah? Keeps the child's life the same. Okay. So 

00:30:48 about six months after the divorce, my ex goes into court, 

00:30:52 frivolous motions, oh, we have to change custody and -- and I 

00:30:57 never -- I never agreed to home schooling. I home schooled 

00:31 :02 her for three years while he lived in the house. 

00:31 :04 

00:31 :04 AW: Right. 

00:31 :04 

00:31 :04 WS: So instead of seeing that for what it is, since I do 

00:31:10 believe that Rena Hughes has a bias against home schooling, 

00:31 :13 oh, she ran with that. She said, oh, well, now -- now the 

00:31 :17 child has to go to public school. 

00:31 :19 

00:31:19 AW: Right. 

00:31 :20 
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00:31 :20 WS: She doesn't even have -- she doesn't even have the 

00:31 :22 authority to order my child to go to public school. 

00:31 :25 

00:31 :26 AW: Right. Is she going to public school now? 

00:31 :28 

00:31 :29 WS: Yes. 

00:31 :29 

00:31 :29 AW: And how is she doing? 

00:31:30 

00:31 :31 WS: She hates it. 

00:31 :32 

00:31 :32 AW: Okay. 

00:31 :33 

00:31 :33 WS: She's actually made some friends. She likes her friends. 

00:31 :36 

00:31 :37 AW: Right. 

00:31 :37 

00:31 :37 WS: She's not completely miserable. It could be a lot worse. 

00:31 :41 She's not completely miserable. She likes her friends. 

00:31 :43 

00:31 :43 AW: Right. 

00:31:44 WS: She's doing well. She gets A, Bs, I think a C in math. 

00:31:47 Math has never been her strong -- strong point. But she's 
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00:31 :51 

00:31 :55 

00:32:00 

00:32:05 

00:32:08 

00:32:12 

00:32:17 

00:32:22 

00:32:26 

00:32:32 

00:32:36 

00:32:37 

getting good grades. Her teachers like her. You know, she -­

she likes most of her teachers. But I ask her. I said, Look, 

you know, if I get custody back, do you want to keep going to 

that school? You know, you're doing good. You want to keep 

going there? She goes, No, I don't. She said, I -- I really 

learned more in home school. And also my daughter has 

stress-induced seizures, which Rena Hughes put her life in 

danger by throwing her in this chaos and making her go with an 

abusive man that she did not want to go with. Annie's 

seizures tripled in frequency after she was given to her 

father. 

00:32:37 AW: Okay. 

00:32:37 

00:32:38 WS: And this is another reason for home schooling. This is 

00:32:42 not why we decided to home school in the beginning, because 

00:32:45 the seizures only started like two -- two years ago, I 

00:32:49 believe. 

00:32:49 

00:32:50 AW: Right. 

00:32:50 

00:32:50 WS: But she gets overstimulated. And she told me just this 

00:32:56 last weekend. She said, you know, school, sometimes it gets 
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00:33:01 so loud and all the kids are just so crazy and so loud and 

00:33:06 it's very overstimulating. And this, this kind of environment 

00:33:10 can cause her to have a seizure. Now, luckily she has not had 

00:33:15 any at school. Mostly they happen at night. But this kind of 

00:33:18 environment is not -- is not the ideal environment for Annie. 

00:33:24 

00:33:24 AW: Okay. 

00:33:26 

00:33:26 WS: You have to understand, too --

00:33:28 

00:33:28 AW: No, it's okay. 

00:33:29 

00:33:30 WS: -- Annie is -- Annie is like a 42-year-old trapped in a 

00:33:33 child's body. 

00:33:35 

00:33:35 AW: Okay. 

00:33:35 

00:33:35 

00:33:38 

00:33:42 

00:33:45 

00:33:51 

00:33:53 

WS: My daughter is very -- like, you know, some kids just 

want to run around and play and be as crazy as they -- but 

even when Annie was tiny, like two years old and it would be a 

birthday party with ten kids, you know, cramming cupcakes in 

their face and just all kinds of craziness, Annie would just 

kind of sit there very quitely and watch everybody, like what 
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00:33:56 the -- this is not -- I am not in the right place. 

00:34:00 

00:34:00 AW: Right. 

00:34:01 

00:34:02 WS: Well, no, I mean, she's very outgoing and friendly, but 

00:34:05 she -- she prefers to be in a more mature environment. 

00:34:10 

00:34:11 AW: Correct. Now, you -- in the first week of January of 

00:34:14 this year, 2017, you filed a motion to disqualify Judge Hughes 

00:34:20 due to the bias or prejudice? 

00:34:23 

00:34:23 WS: Yes. 

00:34:23 

00:34:23 AW: Have you received any response from the court on that? 

00:34:26 

00:34:27 WS: I have received Rena Hughes' response to that. I have 

00:34:31 not received the chief judge's decision. 

00:34:34 

00:34:34 AW: Okay. 

00:34:34 

00:34:35 

00:34:39 

00:34:43 

WS: And I -- I have to -- okay. So the most thing that 

sticks out, there were two -- there were two things in there. 

I don't have the paper in front of me, but there was -- I want 
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00:34:46 

00:34:50 

00:34:54 

00:34:59 

00:35:01 

00:35:02 

00:35:02 

00:35:02 

00:35:06 

00:35:07 

to say it was 3 and -- NO.3 and 4 on her response were 

completely false statements. And then at the very end she 

said, you know, that she does not have any bias, she treated 

me exactly like all the other litigants. 

AW: Right. 

WS: And the very next sentence was: I found Welthy to be a 

pathogenic parent. 

00:35:08 AW: Okay. 

00:35:08 

00:35:08 WS: I'll be honest with you, I had to look up pathogenic. 

00:35:11 

00:35: 12 AW: Okay. And what -- what did pathogenic parent mean? 

00:35:16 

00:35:16 WS: It was a virus, a disease. 

00:35:20 

00:35:20 AW: Okay. 

00:35:21 

00:35:21 WS: I was a diseasein my child's life. 

00:35:24 

00:35:24 AW: Hmm. 
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00:35:24 

00:35:25 WS: Okay. Now, this is not true, but even -- whatever. What 

00:35:33 is she basing that on? There's never been a psychologist 

00:35:37 in -- in all of this that has said Welthy is a pathogenic 

00:35:42 parent. Where -- where does she get this information? There 

00:35:45 was never any evidence shown of such things. 

00:35:49 

00:35:49 AW: Right. So basically the only person that -- as far as 

00:35:53 any therapy or therapist and stuff, the only person that you 

00:35:58 had seen as ordered by the Court was Keisha Weiford; correct? 

00:36:03 

00:36:03 WS: That's correct. And I only saw her one time. 

00:36:06 

00:36:06 AW: Okay. Now, did Annie also have another therapist? 

00:36:10 

00:36:10 WS: Annie had been -- has been going to Paula Baskette. 

00:36:14 

00:36:14 

00:36:14 

00:36:15 

00:36:20 

00:36:24 

AW: Okay. 

WS: After she was -- after my ex was given custody, he 

started taking her to Paula Baskette. 

00:36:24 AW: Okay. Wasn't there -- was -- did Keisha communicate with 
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00:36:28 another --

00:36:30 

00:36:30 WS: Oh, yes, yes, there was. I'm sorry. I'm sorry. I do --

00:36:34 okay, because there was only like two times. I did take Annie 

00:36:37 to -- oh, goodness, I can't even remember the woman's name 

00:36:41 now. 

00:36:43 

00:36:43 AW: Okay. 

00:36:43 

00:36:44 WS: But it was only like, I want to say, just two sessions 

00:36:47 with this other therapist because I felt that I needed to get 

00:36:52 Annie a therapist to deal with Keisha Weiford. 

00:36:58 

00:36:58 AW: Okay. 

00:36:58 

00:36:59 WS: She needed a therapist to --

00:37:01 

00:37:02 AW: To deal with the therapist? 

00:37:03 

00:37:04 WS: -- deal with the therapist. Yes. 

00:37:04 

00:37:04 AW: Hmm. Okay. That's interesting. 

00:37:06 
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00:37:06 

00:37:12 

00:37:17 

00:37:20 

00:37:24 

00:37:30 

00:37:34 

WS: Isn't it. Isn't it really. Because Keisha Weiford did 

not seem to have Annie's best interest at heart at all. Annie 

did not like her, she did not trust her. She said, you know, 

She doesn't believe me when I say things, she just kind of 

blows things off. Like Annie told Keisha Weiford about my ex 

throwing a chair. He threw a chair at me while I was holding 

Annie. 

AW: Right. 

00:37:35 WS: And Keisha said, Well, you were too little. You couldn't 

00:37:37 remember that. How old were you? Annie was five years old. 

00:37:41 

00:37:41 AW: Okay. 

00:37:41 

00:37:42 WS: Now, if something traumatic happens to a two-year-old, 

00:37:44 they remember it. Annie was five years old. Of course she 

00:37:49 remembers that. 

00:37:49 

00:37:49 AW: Okay. 

00:37:50 WS: And Keisha just wanted to just ignore it, blow it away. 

00:37:53 Because her job is to reunify these two people. 

00:37:56 

00:37:57 AW: Right. 

00:37:57 
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00:37:58 WS: Come hell or high water, I'm going to reunify them. 

00:38:00 That's my job. So she didn't really have, you know, Annie's 

00:38:04 well-being at heart. So that's why I went and said, Okay, you 

00:38:08 know what? Let's get you this woman that will listen to you. 

00:38:12 

00:38:12 AW: Right. 

00:38:13 

00:38:13 

00:38:18 

00:38:21 

00:38:23 

00:38:27 

00:38:32 

00:38:35 

00:38:40 

00:38:44 

00:38:48 

WS: But she only went like two times. And I have such a 

limited budget. I'm on food stamps, for God's sake, and I 

work really hard every day, but because of this court and -­

and my ex-husband being so, you know, legal abuse, I don't 

know what they -- anyway. So I -- I took her twice. And then 

I said, Do you want to keep going? And she's just like, No, I 

really don't think that this other lady is helping me, you 

know, like, yeah, she listens to me. But Annie has always 

said: As long as I have you to talk to, Momma, I'm fine. 

00:38:48 AW: Okay. So the other -- the other therapist --

00:38:49 

00:38:50 WS: I listened. That was it. 

00:38:51 

00:38:52 AW: So the other therapist that she's seen for a couple 

00:38:54 times, you don't -- you don't -- you suspect it didn't help 
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00:38:56 her? 

00:38:56 

00:38:58 WS: It didn't help or hurt. Annie didn't really need any 

00:39:02 help. 

00:39:03 

00:39:03 AW: Okay. 

00:39:04 

00:39:04 WS: In the end it was just like Annie's fine. She doesn't 

00:39:08 even need any help. And even this Paula Baskette that she had 

00:39: 11 been seeing, she told me now Paula has said -- Paula told her 

00:39:15 father, Look, Annie's fine. You know, I can keep --I can see 

00:39:21 you. She told her father, you know, she could keep seeing her 

00:39:25 father. But she said, But Annie's fine, and I just don't want 

00:39:28 to keep taking your money. 

00:39:30 

00:39:31 AW: Right. 

00:39:31 

00:39:31 WS: I mean, there's nothing wrong Annie. She doesn't want to 

00:39:34 be with her abusive father. 

00:39:35 

00:39:36 AW: Right. Now, is she still going to see this Paula? 

00:39:39 

00:39:39 WS: I don't think so. I think that was it after she -- after 
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00:39:42 that. But I don't know because I don't -- you know, that's 

00:39:46 his deal. He pays her and he takes her. 

00:39:52 

00:39:52 AW: Okay. So what --

00:39:53 

00:39:54 WS: That's going off what Annie told me in the past two 

00:39:56 weeks. 

00:39:56 

00:39:57 AW: Okay. Is there any other hearings that are pending in 

00:40:01 front of Judge Hughes reference this issue, or is this a done 

00:40:05 deal? 

00:40:06 

00:40:06 WS: Oh, no, we're supposed to -- I think March -- I want to 

00:40:09 say March 6th is an evidentiary hearing. Well, if it goes 

00:40:15 anything like the last one, it's pretty pointless, isn't it. 

00:40: 18 But I'm trying -- I'm trying to get her disqualified because I 

00:40:21 would like to have a fair hearing. 

00:40:24 

00:40:24 AW: Right. 

00:40:25 

00:40:25 WS: I would like a judge to just -- just look at the evidence 

00:40:29 that is presented. 

00:40:31 
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00:40:32 AW: Right. 

00:40:32 

00:40:33 WS: Just be truly for the child's best interest, look at what 

00:40:38 Annie needs. 

00:40:41 

00:40:41 AW: Okay. Well, I think that's all the questions. Now, 

00:40:44 Welthy, do you have anything else that you want to add on the 

00:40:47 record that you want the commission to be aware of? 

00:40:50 

00:40:51 WS: Oh, let's see. 

00:40:52 

00:40:52 AW: And you just mentioned one of the things is all you want 

00:40:56 is just to have a fair hearing. 

00:40:56 

00:40:57 WS: Well, I really want a fair hearing. I want -- I would 

00:41 :02 like Rena Hughes to go to jail, quite frankly. I think that 

00:41 :07 would serve justice. That would be justice for my daughter. 

00:41 :11 Not that it can -- any of this -- not that any of this damage 

00:41 :14 can be undone. I mean, she traumatized my little girl. 

00:41:19 

00:41 :19 AW: Okay. 

00:41 :20 

00:41 :20 WS: And -- and -- and put her life in -- at risk. She really 
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00:41 :24 did put her life at risk. My ex-husband is crazy. He was 

00:41 :29 reckless driving with her. He's continuing to reckless drive 

00:41 :32 with her. And the stress-induced seizures, for God's sake, I 

00:41 :39 mean, these are life-threatening seizures. 

00:41:41 

00:41:41 AW: Right 

00:41 :42 

00:41:42 WS: And he did nothing about it The only way Annie has 

00:41:46 medicine rig ht now is because she happened to be with me. 

00:41 :50 After being with him all that time, no contact with me, he 

00:41 :54 ignored, he and his girlfriend ignored, five seizures that 

00:41 :59 Annie had. Did nothing about it. 

00:42:03 

00:42:03 AW: Now, is this -- you learned this through Annie? 

00:42:07 

00:42:07 WS: Yes. 

00:42:07 

00:42:08 AW: Okay. 

00:42:08 

00:42:08 WS: And my mother. Because he does talk to my mother. 

00:42:11 

00:42:11 AW: Okay. 

00:42: 13 
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00:42:13 WS: And then when I -- when I got her back, you know, my one 

00:42:18 day a week, it happened that she had one with me. And I said, 

00:42:23 Oh, my God, I'm taking you to the emergency room because I 

00:42:26 don't -- I can't even wait until Monday morning to take you to 

00:42:30 your neurologist, your regular neurologist, because I only 

00:42:33 have you 24 hours. 

00:42:35 

00:42:35 AW: Right. 

00:42:36 

00:42:36 WS: So I took her to the emergency room. And then they 

00:42:38 admitted her, and she was there for two days. 

00:42:40 

00:42:40 AW: Hmm. And --

00:42:43 

00:42:43 WS: And prior to that --

00:42:44 

00:42:44 AW: -- when was -- when was that? 

00:42:45 

00:42:46 WS: -- she had four to five seizures. 

00:42:47 

00:42:47 AW: When was that when she was admitted? 

00:42:48 

00:42:48 WS: December -- oh, let's see. I want to say December 11, or 
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00:42:54 was it November? It was November or December. 

00:42:57 

00:42:57 AW: Of last year? 

00:42:58 

00:42:58 WS: Yes. 

00:42:59 

00:42:59 AW: Okay. 

00:43:00 

00:43:00 WS: Yes. So after the hospital they put her on some 

00:43:04 different medicine and seems to be helping. 

00:43:09 

00:43:10 AW: What do you -- just let me get your opinion, Welthy. 

00:43:14 What do you think should happen? 

00:43:15 

00:43: 15 WS: Sure. 

00:43:16 

00:43: 16 AW: What do you think should happen in this case? 

00:43:18 

00:43:18 WS: I think several things. I think Rena Hughes needs to get 

00:43:23 off that bench. She is dangerous to children and families. 

00:43:32 After my story was on the news, about 15 other people found me 

00:43:38 through Facebook mostly --

00:43:40 
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00:43:40 AW: Right. 

00:43:41 

00:43:41 WS: -- and said: Look, I had the same judge, and here's what 

00:43:44 she did to me. And it was all -- every case was just 

00:43:47 horrific. And it was violations, same as mine, just 

00:43:52 violations. No regard for what really is in the best interest 

00:43:58 of the child. Children are being put in dangerous situation. 

00:44:05 So I think that she is a danger to Clark County by sitting on 

00:44: 1 0 that bench, Every day that she's there, there is -- it's 

00:44:15 dangerous. Like I said, I would like to see the woman go to 

00:44:20 jail because she abused and traumatized Annie. She absolutely 

00:44:25 abused her. 

00:44:26 

00:44:27 AW: Okay. 

00:44:28 

00:44:30 WS: In my -- my case personally, I would like afair hearing. 

00:44:38 I would like her orders reversed because to take a child away 

00:44:45 from their primary attachment figure, the primary caretaker 

00:44:53 is -- is very damaging. 

00:44:55 

00:44:55 AW: Okay. 

00:44:56 

00:44:56 WS: And if Annie could speak, I know that she would say: I 
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00:45:01 want to be back with my momma. I want to be in my home. 

00:45:06 miss my -- my friends at the ballet schooL I miss my pets in 

00:45:11 the backyard. And one day a week is not enough. 

00:45:15 

00:45:15 AW: Okay. Now, are you going to get a chance to explain this 

00:45:18 in this March 6th hearing? 

00:45:21 

00:45:21 WS: Not if I have Rena Hughes for my judge because she 

00:45:25 doesn't listen to anything. 

00:45:26 

00:45:26 AW: Okay. 

00:45:27 

00:45:27 WS: If I get another judge, I -- I would hope. I hope that 

00:45:31 they are -- they follow the law. If they follow the law, 

00:45:35 we're fine. If the law had been followed, none of this would 

00:45:41 be happening. 

00:45:41 

00:45:41 AW: Okay. 

00:45:44 

00:45:44 

00:45:49 

00:45:57 

00:46:03 

WS: If we had stuck with the original divorce decree, none of 

this would have happened. If my ex had been held accountable 

for his frivolous motions that he had put forth, I wouldn't be 

bankrupt 

APP746 Hughes 000232 
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00:46:04 

00:46:04 AW: Right. 

00:46:08 

00:46:08 WS: I -- I would like -- definitely I would like the -- the 

00:46:11 attorneys fees. Him being awarded attorneys fees when I don't 

00:46:17 even have an attorney? 

00:46:18 

00:46:18 AW: Right. 

00:46:18 

00:46:18 WS: I definitely think that should be reversed. 

00:46:21 

00:46:22 AW: So you definitely based upon what you're telling me is 

00:46:25 you never had your right to be heard in her courtroom. Is 

00:46:29 that correct? 

00:46:29 

00:46:30 WS: No, no, I did not. 

00:46:36 

00:46:36 AW: Okay. I think that's it. Anything else you want to add, 

00:46:39 Welthy? 

00:46:40 

00:46:41 WS: Oh, goodness. I could talk to you for three hours I'm 

00:46:44 sure. 

00:46:45 

APP747 Hughes 000233 



COMMISSION EXHIBITE13 PaaeOn0108 
ectromttlly Fired 
01/11/2017 

~.~ 
CLERK OF THE COURT 

AFFT 
Name: WEL\~',\ S\~\ji\ 
Address: \ L\ '2:l3> C-D\1:""D N L....::oo~ rp C"-.c...G 
Ln~ V-e;(bkCS (N\f 8,c:}( d-{ 
Telephone: -=t-o';L' I.{<= o· q Lf. '3 '6 
Email Address: _-_-= _______ _ 
In Proper Person 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, 1'.'EVADA 

CASE No.<D - i L - '{Co 1- g 'La -1) 
DEPT: --<..0"J-____ _ 

,.. 
~c;-., SIUI~ J)EFD-~N' , 

AFFIDAVIT SEEKING DISQUALIFICATION OF JUDGE DUE TO BIAS OR 
PREJUDICE 

I, (your name) WE '-T\.·\ 't 5 \ \-\( \Is , declare under penalty of perjury: 

1. I am involved in the above case because I am the (describe your role in this case, i.e., 

petitioner, relative, etc.) XL~\ \--I:T \-=t='F . I have personal knowledge 

of the facts contained in this Declaration and I am competent to testify to the same. 

2. Pursuant to NRS 1.230(1), a judge shall not act as such in an action or proceeding when 

the judge entertains actual bias or prejudice for or against one of the parties to the actiorr. 

3. Any party to an action or proceeding pending in a District Court may seek to disqualify a 

judge for actual or implied bias or prejudice by filing an affidavit specifying the facts 

upon which the disqualification is sought. NRS 1.235(1). 

co Clark County Family Law Self-Help Center Affida.vit Seeking Disqualification 9(3/15 

* You are responsible for knowing the law about your case. For more information on the law, this form, and free 
classes, visit www.familylawselfhelpcel1ter.org Of the Family Law Self Help Center at 601 N. Pecos Road. To find 
an attorney, call the State Bar of Nevada at (702) 382-0504. 

1 
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4. I believe that the Judge aSSIgned In this case IS bIased andJor prejudiced against me 

because: (provide detaz7ed infonnation about why you believe the judge is biased or 

prejudiced): W\;tt:::W 'J'J?-.-t:/S1S~'TJ3"b \",) 1:J:±f S1J 0 h~C\H 

B'-.l\\)~NCSS O? ~?:,u.q5 b'N-~ N..J:sGC~c::::-r ';b~ 

--r-+..u T~""""T---!:g=-~P-.~~ x>l- n:nSl--Jc£ or =r-S\L Mc:;,\lA-iw-'~ 

CD" \N Q, h'tfl;) e~~H Go '])1'S+thN l~ \-\(J~ c..nu(.~· , 

'l3--e~~--Q \---\\~ "-'-=>~~ ~'C:>L-x) Cb~ J>:<.\-£D --P-t-\';($l~ 

c...uS .... 'r"c;)--s;)'-3 'C \~ D ~ 1 .. --"-\ }S '1--'t>C""N>b;'r U::~N \ 'S 1:) \ k~ 

5, For the reasons listed above, I respectfully request that the judge ~signed to this case be 
I 

disquaUfied, and that this matter be reassigned to a new judge. 

6, The statements in this Declaration are true and correct to the best of my: knowledge. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

is true and correct 

DATED \ ·5 ,20.13:... 

Submitted By: (yo!J.rsignature) ~ S...--...-' 
(print your name) W'G\...,T\-\Ij 'SIL"-&-

Page 2 of2 - Affidavit Seeking Disqualification Due to Bias or Prejudice 
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I have reason to believe Judge Rena Hughes is prejudiced against women, home 
schooling and pro se litigants. She also has ~o regard for children's emotional 
wellbeing which is detrimental as a family court judge. I aLso believe she favors 
attorneys and law firms which contributed to her campaign. 1 am aware there are many 
others with similar cases in her court which further proves the bias. 

In a 2015 hearing Judge Hughes says "She wasn't home" when questioning how I knew 
what happened when my ex husband ran over my trash can and recklessly drove with 
Annie in the car. The text messages of him admitting it and a police report had been 
submitted to the court. I have never once lied in court. On the other hand, I have 
submitted proof of his and his lawyer's lies. This judge has NEVER addressed any of 
those lies and instead assumes I am lying. 

In the January 28th, 2016 hearing Judge Hughes yells at me "I want you to shut your 
mOLlth" and "you don't care abollt your child" after I asked the court for supervised 
visits to protect Annie and facilitate Rogerio's relationship with his daughter. 1 was 
mostly concerned about his reckless driving. Judge Rena Hugbes is so quick to deny 
the supervised visits which would be safe but no hesitation to strip me of ALL parental 
rights when there was never any 8buse on my part. 

In the May J 2th, 20 J 6 hearing the bailiff working for Hughes shushed me when I bad 
every right to speak as I was representing myself, I am ignored and talked over: Judge 
Hughes says to me"You ar~ very close to incarceration" but neglects to address 
Rogerio's contempts. He refuses to pay medical/dental bills or chlJd support, drives 
reckless with his daFghter in the car and verbally assaults his child. He doesn't care 
about her health but he is so concerned with a math test? She again fails to see the 
defendant using the court system to harass. 

Several times I have felt she believes I am lying by remarks such as "I don't see a name 
here" when looking at receipts for my daughter's medicalldental bills. They were 
proper receipts with Annie's name on them. Het' words "there's no abuse " as she rolls 
her eyes .. there was most certainly abuse for years and continues to this day since the 
court has failed me and my daughter. I bave provided 911 calls and witnesses that the 
court refuses to look at. She has put Annie's life in danger. See attached CPS report. 

She said in a very negative tone "You have empowered this child tit when talking about 
Annie's decision to stop visiting her verbaJly and emotionally abusive father. I'm 
proud to say J try to empow'er every child who comes in my presence. I am working to 
give children self esteem, to know they deserve to be treated faJrly and with kindness. 
What hope do we have for future generations if we are oppressing them into lives that 

AFP624 HughesU00110 
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do not thrive? I would hope that all people in charge of "chi!d1s best interest II would 
understand that, 

The court minutes from June 8,2016 show many mistakes due to bias, 

I was found in contempt for not giving a math test that I gave. The order was "the 
minor child shall be tested, through Clark County School District OR 3JlOther facillty 
of defendant's choice" and since defendant did not communicate well with me, r chose 
the former, Again she sides with defendant saying that if he wasn't happy with the 
testing, IshouJd be held in contempt even though I did have Annie tested by a Clark 
County School District teacher as the order stated. 

She awards Rogerio Silva attorney fees, Attorney fees? When he has never reimbursed 
medical or dental bms, And owes more tban $10,000 in child support and al'lmony. 
When I could not afford an attorney of my own, I have never been awarded attorney 
fees for any of his frivolous and vexatious motions, 

There is much fOCllS on REUNIFY with father but NO CONTACT with mother is 
perfectly acceptable. And since the October "hearing ll was a coerced stipulation where 
none of my evidence was looked at and my witnesses were not allowed to testify, I still 
have lltt!e contact with Annie who misses me and her home of 12 years terribly, 

Judge Rena Hughes is reckless, ignores or refuses to look at evjdence, bases her 
judgements on bearsay and her personal opinions instead of facts. I hl;lmbly ask for her 
recusal and her orders which are in violation of mine and mydaughter!s civil rjghts be 
reversed, The original divorce decree should stand and no more time or money should 
be wasted, 

APP625 
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NRS 12SC.0045 
L Any mder for Joint.custody may be modified or terminated by the court.llQonthe 

petition of one or both parents or on the court's own motion if it is shown that the best 
interest o.f :tb.echild Fequiresme modification or· termination. The-court shall. state in 
its decision the reasons for the order of modification or termination if either parent 
.opposes it. 

"parental alienation" was stated but there was no proof ofthat and in fact I could not 
be held in contempt for such at.a later hearing. Fucthennore ":parentalalienation"isan 
nnscienti.fic ,theory and so can not be used in a court oflaw~ 

NRS 12SC.0035 
.J~ The coUItshall.a.w.ar.dphysical custody in the following orderof.preference :unless 

in.a particular case the best interest ofthe ,child re~uiresotherwise: 
(a) To both parents jointly _pursuant to or to either .parent 

pursuant to , If the court does not enter an order awardingjointphysical 
custody of a child after either parent has applied for joint physical custody, the court 
.-shall state in its decisio.n the reason for its denial o.f the parent'.:>. .appli.cation.. 

(b) To a person or persons in whose home the child has been living and where the 
-cliild..h.as:hruia. wholeso.m..e and.:stabk'eIlvironment _ " 

Annie was abruptly taken out of her home which she had been living and thriving in 
·for 12 years.. 

4. In determining the best interest of the child, the court shall consider and set 
forth its ,specificMdings .concerning, ,among other things: 

(a) The wishes of the child if the child is of sufficient age and capacity to forman 
.intelligent Qref.erence .asto .hisor her {iliysi.cal.custody_ 

Annie is "highly intelligent for her age" as stated by child interviewer through the 
.courts. Y oucan also see how articulate she is in the video where she is being abused 
by the iudg.e. 

(b) Any nomination of a guardian for the child by a parent 
~c) Which 'parent is more likely to allow the child to have fre~uent associations 

-and a continuing relatio.ns.hip with the noncustodial parent. 

I have provided proof to the courts of my efforts to involve her father. Unfortunately 
the .court ignores my evidence. 

KugFies 000112- -
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(d) The level of conflict between the parents. 
( e) The ability of the parents to cooperate to meet the needs .ofthe .child. 
ef) The mental and Qhysicalhealth of the par-ents. 

I have supplied the court with evidence of father's erratic behavior which endangers 
the, -chiliL. 

(g) The physical:, developmental and .emotional needs of .the child. 

Annie begged to stay mth me and stated clearly to therapists, child interviewers and 
.the judge herselfthatshe .did .not :want togo with her father, She Kave reasons to many 
invDlv.ed .and her emotional needs were ignored by the court. 

.(h) The nature of me relationship of the child with each parent. 

The mother has always been the attachment figure in Anriies life hence the original 
divorce decree aw.arding mother i?Iim.ary custody~ 

(i) The ability of the child to maintain a relationship with any sibling . 
. CD Any history of1?arental abuse or neglect of the child Dr asibling_.ofthe child. 

There has been histOry ofmen:tal.abuse.and neglect from. the fatheL 

(k) 'Whether either parent or any other person seeking physical custody has 
engaged in an act .of domestic violence against the child, a parent of the child or .any 
other person residing with the child. 

(1) 'Whether either par.ent Dr .any other person .see1p.ng physical custody .has 
COIIllnittedany act of abduction against tbechild or any other child. 

---- AP-p-fr27- ----
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Mistakes and Bias in Court Minutes/Journal Entries June 8, 2016 

1. Father's motions were fuJI of lies, frivolous and vexatious. If the GOurt had done due 
diligence it should have noticed. 
2. Father never objected to homeschooling until after the divorce. Annie had been 
home schooled since 2010. Parties divorced 2013. The divorce decree (page 2, line 

\ 

22) states Hln the event the parents cannot agree to the selection of a school, the child 
shall be maintained in the present school pending mediation ... 
Therefore I was NOT in violation of the joint legal provision but in fact following the 

. decree and maintaining consistency in Annie's life. 
3. "without his consent" Mother was homeschooJing Annie for three years while Father 
lived in the house. He also signed the divorce decree which stated Annie would 
remain in present schooling. . 
4. Mother NEVER withheld the minor child. The child refused to go with Father and 
when police were called, Mother offered child to speak directly with police and did not 
interfere. They in turn did not force Annie to go. Some were very supportive of Annie's 
decision as she had clear and rational reasons for not wanttng to go. 
5. The initial appointment did take place. Mother and Annie both saw Keisha in her 
office for two hours. 
6. In the reports from Keisha Weiford (which I do not have access to but remember 
reading), there were statements about Father's neglect,. miscommunication, showing 
his sorrow through anger, etc. In all of Judge Hughes' joumal entries, NONE of this is 
stated. It is very one sided and full of OPINIONS of Welford and Hyghes. (also recall in 
Welford's report the statement "Annie's views are her own" which is in direct contrast 
With !lAnnie's thoughts appeared to be those of her mother" *Mother DID ~ngage in 
reunification therapy by bringing Annie to Welford's office no less than SIX times. 
7. Why did the court not address Father's non payment of child support, alimony and 
unreimbursed medicaUdental bills which equal more than $10,000? Mother informed 
the court she wou(d be happy to go forward with an evaluation if Father paid what he 
owed. 
8. Mother encouraged and facilitated visits on weekends for 2 1/2 YEARS! Even 
though afl Mondays except for two were a disaster because Annie returned to Mother 
in such emotional distress. Mother also did exactly what was expected by Donna's 
house and Donna's house reports show that. 
9. Mother had a friend of the family take Annie to Donna's ~ouse third and fourth time 
to further FACILITATE visitation. The fourth time, Father did not show up. 
10. Mother can not in good conscience COMPEL a child to go with someone they are 
afraid of. 
11. The last order made by Judge Hughes regarding heloc was May 2015. It stated 
plaintiff shall continue to pay heloc as long as it is not 60 days delinquent The 
payment has never been one day late. 
12. See all supplements proving plaintiff was wrongfully held in contempt An appeal 
would have been done if finances allowed. 

-----.- ·----APP62B-------·---------- n._ .. -- -HiJghes mm114"--
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DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

COURT MIN1JTES 

WeIthySflva, Plafutiff 
vs. 
Rogerio Silva, Defendant. 

2:3() PM Minute Order 

June 08, 2016 

~_ ""_"" _~ .• ~"';..;,~,\~., .. _. ___ .... ~ ... ;.: ':."c .• _' .. ' .. _,. " .. _,_~._ .... 

COURTROOM Courtroom 04 

i. 

HEARD BY: Hughes, Rena G. 

COURT CLERK: Tiffany Skaggs 

PARTIES: 
Annie Silva, Subject MinOT, not present 
Rogetio Silva, Defendant, Counter Oaimant, Lesley Cohen, Attorney, not pre Bent 
n at present 
WeIthy Silva, Plaintiff, Counter Defendant, not Pro Se 
preseht 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- Per Judge Hughes 

NRCP 1 and EDCR 1.10 stirt:e i:h<it the procedure in district courts shall be administe:red to secure 
efficient,. speedy, and inexpensive detemrinatians in every actkm. Pursuant to EDcR 223(c) and 
S.ll( e), -tfUs Court can consider a motion and issue a decision on the paperB at any time Without a 
hearirlg. Fu:rt:her, purstiantto EDCR22il(c );-ihis Court can' grant the rcque$ted·'rclief if there :is no.. ... .' 
opposition timely filed. " '. . 

This Court has :read and considered the current underlying pleadings in this matter, 

TItis case has a lengthy, troubled histo:ry. STIlce the parties divorce an April 26/ 2013, -they have been 
before this Court no less than 9 times, primarily on Father s motions to enforce his rights of custody 
and visitation, and regaroing his objection to the minm child ( Annie ) bcin.g hom.e schooled by 

PRlNT DATE: 06/0S/2D16 Page 1 o£S Minutes Date: June OS, 2016 

Notice: Jonmal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not -the official record of the Court. 
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Mother. The parties are also disputing the handling of the HEWC account after divorce. 

The Decree of Divorce granted the parties joint legal, and Mother primary phySical custody of the 
minor child,Ann.1e. Father B visitaticm period was weekly from Satu:rday at 11:00 a.rn. to Monday at 
IG:OOa.m. , 
In April 2014., Fathe:r Bled a motion to have .A:n:rue tested to determine her educational 1 evel, and to 
have her placed in public school. Mother was home schooling Annie over Father s obi~ 
alleged} y in violation of the joint legal custoilial provisions of the Decree of Divorce. A hearing did 
not take place on tl:ris mOtion,. because counsel for Father £a:iI.ed to file a valid proof of service. 

In January 2015, Father filed a second motion for academic testing, to have ,Annie placed irqmblic 
,.school.,. to ro6di£y c1Uld~ ytc p.rP:na:ryto Father, and entorcethe Decree of Divarce -with:respect 
to the lIELOC The Decree ordered Mother to refinance or sell the former marital :residence because 
Father s name is on the HELOC. Father:requested a change in:. cnstoqy based on Mother s decision to 
home school Annie, without his consent Father ,alleged that when he objected to Mother about the 
home schooling, she denied him visitation. AI the hmring in February 2015, the parties were ordered 
to mediation to address Father s visitation, and for a child interview. It was alleged that Annie did 
not wish to viSit, with 'Father. 

In or around April 2015, MQthe:t begm:t withholding- the minor cldl§. during Father s custodial thUe. 
In May 2015, Father ca1Ied the police to assist him in facilitating his visitation. and Mother refused to 
fum over the c1illd. ' 
""The parties stipulated. in JuI Y 2015 to reunification therapy for Father and Annie. The Court ordered 
reunification therapy with Keis'ha Weifard and Father to bear the cost. The Court also Ordered 
Mother to have math testing pafo:rm.ed, and that Father would have compensatory time over the 
surruner break. The Caurt further ordered the parties to provide a history of the HELOC payments 
and the curt.ent balance. 

Keisha Wei£ord provided reports in early July and A~gust 2D15, infonrrlng the Court fuat Father met 
with her fur :reunification therapy and paid all.fees. In July 2015, Mother arrived far the :initial' . 
appointment but did not leave the parking lot, alleging Annie would not get out of fue car. -Keisha 
We:iford went to meet Mother and Annie in the parking lot and spcke to theta ME, Wci£ord,spoke_, 
with Annie and clIm.ed her fearS, but then Mother ended the conversation by stating that A:imie was 
too stressed to go forward with the appoinf:t:nel1t. Mother reiterated that Annie does not want -to -
meet with her father. Ms. Weiford also :reported that Mother called days prior to the first 
appointment and told her Annie did not want to come to the appointment or was unwilling to get in 
the car, Mother wanted to know if Annie could te:r:roinate the reunification session if Father started 
to lie in Session. .:fathergtet with Ms. Welford and reported that Annie was upset with him far 

'Eavlnghertested, wdfm q:o.etionmgher home schooling. 1Vfs. Weifu:rd contacted Mother again and 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 Page 20£5 M:inutes Date: June 08, 2016 
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requested she bring Annie to meet with her father for reunilication. Mother stated to Ms. Wei£ord 
that Annie was not "Willing to meet "With her Father because she did not want to be around his 

'negative energy. Annie agreed to meet with Ms. Weiford mdividually. 

The following:is an excerpt from Ms. Weifo:rd report or the July 8,2015 meeting with Annie . 
.A:rrllie definitcly displayed. irritation Mlhme at our meeting. Shereparted she told me at the 
beginning of oar previous sessiOft that she did not want to be :reunified" with her Dad. I asked her if 
Mom explained to her that even -though she told me -that I would still need to meet with her and Dad. 
Annie:reported that her moiher did not explain that to her because her mother did not understand 
why I could not t3ke her ward only., Annie reported to me that she was not joking, and did not want 
to be:reunified. She:reported that anyone that knows her :is aware that she does not give second 
. dlaJ.¥:es arid she has already given her Dad too many chances. She:rep.orted that the only:reason that 
her Dad .is pushlng for thls reUni£ication. 1£ because he likes drama. 

Ms. Weifo:rd reported I am having a hard time distinguishing what were. the problemB in the 
~ae and what are the problems ht the parent-child relationshlp·.It seems very mnch intertwffied, 
with Mom s relationship with Dad. I am concerned with the possible enmeshment that Annie and 
Mom nright have.. Ms. Weifmd recommended Mother get behind the reunification and share the 
£inancia1 :responsibility of :reunification therapy. Father paid Ms. Weiford a total of $1,800.00 ror . 
reunification therapy that never occu:r:red. Ms. Weifu:rd then. canceled the remainingreuni£catiOft 
appoinbnents. 

In October 2015, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause.~ Mother forum foIlowmg the Court 
6 Order to engage in reunilication therapy, and ordered reunif:ication tl1erapy to cont::inue. The Court 
further ordered the parties to equally divide the cost: of therapy for the previous sessions, and for 
Mother to pay for all future sessions. , 
Mother te:rm.inated the reunification with Ms. Welford, reporting that finances were an issue .. and 
Annie was done. 
Before tenninating the reunification therapy,:MS. Wei£ord conducted three (3) sessions with Fa~ 
and Annie. Acco:rding to Ms. Welford s report of November 2,2015, Annie was tearful at first. but by 
the time of the second session, she was comfortable 'With her Father and played games with him. 

. Annie left the second session cheerful. Be£o.restartingthe third seSsion" Armie told WiS. Weiford, she 
did not want to be reunified and did not want to have a relationship with her father. 

Ms. Weltord had authority to COtltact Annie s therapist and received a:report that Annie. did not 
report abuse, negl~ or any other issues wifuher father concerning safety and welfare. ~ 
Wei£ord s opinion, the issues between Annie and her Father had mare to do with his conflicts with 
her Mother than with hls pe:rsonalrelationship with her. Ms. Welford further ~opmed that Mother 
was creating the rift between Father and Annie, because fumie s thoughts appeared to be those of her 
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Mother, tram her di£ficultrelationshlp with Father. 

In January 2016, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Plaintiff for having violated the 
Court 8 Orders of May 5, 2015, July 21,2015, October 7,2015, and January 5, 2016 to bave the child 
subjected to standardized testing for math proficiency. Furt:he1-, because Mothe:rwas not facilitating 
:reunification therapy, the Cpn:rt: ordered visitation exchanges occur at Donna s House, so the 
exchanges could be observed, and a report to the Court generated. Vrnitation was ordered for 25 
hours on dates cert:airt throughout February 2016, with eventual overnights at the end of February, to 

take place each week. On February 16,2016, Donna 8 House reported that the parties completed the 
011entation prooess, but Annie refused to go with her Father fur visitation, and they canceled future, 
exchanges. 

The Court then issued a referral Order for OutsoU1'ced Evaluation Se.rvices with CatrdiaSchwarz on 
February 28, 2016. Each party was ordered to pay one half of Ms. Schwarz fees. On March 1, 2016, 
Ms. Schwarz reported to the Court that Father was in compliance with the Court s order and was 
ready to begin .services, however, Mother contacted her and explained she cannot pay fur services at 
;nis time, Because Moth~ could not pay tor services, the Court AGAIN ordered chlld custody 
exchanges to resume, at Danna 8 House, as previously ordered. The Court FURtHER 
f=DMONISHED Mother that if she did not encourage and facilitate the exchanges on weekend~ . 
.Annie would spend the entire summer with Father, Mother may be held in contempt, and further 
sanctions could issue against her. Mother brought Annie to Donna sHouse ror the exchange and 
Annie refused to go with Father. . 

This Court FINDS that Mother has failed to facilitate Father s visitation with Annie. Because Mother 
has failed to facilitate visitation with Father, she has violated his parental rights and the orders of this 
Court. Mother was advised at the last court hearing that if she did not ,comp~ the minor cl:rl1d to visit 
with Father on weekends, the child would spend the entire srunme:r with Father. 

Based upon the reasons stated above: IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THA 1': 

This Court finds that Plaintiff is in contempt ci the Court s .order to faciI itate visitation on weekends 
with the Fa:ther, .AN ORDER TO sHow CAUSE SHALL ISSUE. 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CA USE is also issued against Plaintiff fur not complying with the Court s 
orders to refinance the HELGC, on the fmmer marital residence, or in the altemati ve, to have it sold. 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is£urther issued agalnstPlaintlff£ornot having Annie tested for 
I 'L, Math proficiency in a timely manner as ordered by the Court. 
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Mother shaI1 bring the minor child to Dept. Jt court room #4, on June 15, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. If Mother 
fails todeHver the minor child to the courtroom on June 15,2016, she shall be deemed in further 
contempt of Co~ and sentenced to nventy-five (25) days :iru::arceratiolL 1£ Mother fails to appearl..a 
bench warrant shaIl issue. 

The Order to Show Cause hearing shall be scheduledfor July 28,2016 at 1:30 p.m The Status Check, 
setfor July 28, 2ffi6, at 10;00 ~ shall hereby, be VACATED, 

Counsel for Defendant shall prepare an Order consistent with this Court minute, and .the Orders to 

Show Cause. 

Oe:rkls notBr1i copy, of tlJday's rrrinute order was mailed;w Plaintiff and pIaced, In counsePs folder, at 
Family Court .. ." 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 PageS ofS Minutes Date: June 081 2016 

N once: Journal entries. are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are nat the official. record of the Court. 

-.- A P P-S-S-S- .... ----- Hughes 000119 
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All of the following documents have been submitted to Rena Hughes' court multiple· 
times through Trial Memorandum placed in her box on the third floor at 601 N. Pecos 
or filed as supplemental exhibits or with motions. 

Text messages show correspondence between 
Rogerio (father, defendant) on the LEFT and Welthy (mother, plaintiff) on the RIGHT 

APP634 Hughes 000120 
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I previously repvrted that Annie's father had neglected to take her back to neurologist and her ~ had tripled in 
frequency since being forced tn live 'with her fattler against her wishes. She was in my caie Friday night and had a 
seizure wl.1Dok her tn Sunrise hosptlal. TheyadmittW her. I let her father know we were frlere. The next day her 
father came with his gjrffriend, Mercedes.. Mercedes asked what was different about the seizUre to make me bring 
Annie to the hospflaL I thought, but did not say "You mean different from the five seizures ,that you guys ignored??" 
These seizures are life threatening! She can not breath when they happen. Anyway, 1Ne were. cordial fur hours • 
. Then, for no apparent reason, Annie's father showed court papers that my visttation time was up and I was forced to 
leave our daughter who very much wanted me to slay. Sunday morning I received a text from Annie teffing me to go 
get her new medIcine that the hospfla! had presaibed. I went to the hospital ill get the paper and more information. r 
asked her fattler ill please give me some money to help pay fur the medicine which was $77. I oniy had $20. He 
responded DNo" and refused to talk about IT anymore w1th me.. I had to go tn the nurses (Danielle and one other) to 

. help implore ~im to get the medicine, As he was leaving he said "Don't let her in the room: She's not sUpposed to be 
here;" I hope you can appreciate tile lack of concern for Annie in this situation. ." 

Two very important issues-
Father has neglected child's health fur five mon1hs. 
Father refused to pay for medlcation and hospital had to intervene. 

You may get an records and speak wIth staff onlhe fourth floor of the children'shospitaJ, Maryland Parkway. She 
was in room 4031. 

HOW ts 11fE QlIlD REACIlNG m 11iE5ITUA110Nj' {Please fistsperific behIIllio!s 

amdous 
by the child (eg.,jewfulj. 

DOES THE GlIlD aJRRENILY HAVE MARKS OR BRUiSES? DYES ~o ~OWN ANY PREVIDUSlY KNOWN SUSPecTED 
ABUSE ORNEGLEcrOfTHE QULD? 

DNO DUNKNOWN IF YES, PlEASE DESOIIBE11iE lOCATION OF THE MARKS/BRUlSES AND SEVERITY (Be spedfu:.) 

IF KNOWN, PlEASE DESOUBEANY !SSUES lliE PARE1\IT5 MAY HAVE WHIQI INHfBrrTHEIRAlillIIYm CARE fUR THE mIlD. 
{e.g., drug ~ mentaJJpfr,sU:a! disabilJties} 

I believe father has a mental illness. I don't believe he is cruel on purpose. 

WHERE tsTHE mIlD UlRRENIl.Y,IOUiTID? WAS lAW ENFORCEMENT WNTACT£D7 YES ~NO IF YB, PlEASE PROv]OE DATE EVENT 
NUMBER 

UlRRENT OR PREVlOUS DOME5l1C 
VIOLENCE BETWEEN TIlE pAR£NIS? 

WHEN DID YOU SEruME AWARE OHHlS rNFORMA110N,. OR HOW DID YOUWIDJESSTHE ABUSE/NEGliCT? 

Page 2 of2 Submit by Email. Print Form 

APPB35--
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June 25, 2015 

To Whom It May Concern, 

I have had the pleasure of knowing Welthy Silva and her daughter Annie for over 6 years, Our .da·ughters were 

in the same Montessori school. r have had my daughters enrolled in ballet classes with Welthy for over 5 

yenrs~.r have many options for ballet s.chools, but r have kept my dallghters with Ms Welthy because not only 
does she pr?vide excellent ballet instruction she provides a safe, happy Gnd peaceful experience for my 
children, There is a wonderful balance of respect. guidance and nurturing that is not easy to find. 

Over these 5 years I have had the opportunity to know Annie as well. She is .one of the most mature, kind and 
self-aware young ladies I have met. 5h~ is happy and always interested in making sure those around her are 
happy as well. She and my oldest daughter wouldoften have their own practices and choreograph and direct 

their own performances. Over: the YlUlrs r have seen some of the ilirlocer'!ce in this child diSappear. I 

understand this is not abnormal, as we grow we all lose some of our innocence, but I do believe it was more 

pronounced for. Annie, You could see that she wDuld strwggle with going to'vlsit her father. You could visibly 

see the chdnge In Ahnie's attitude, both emotionally and.physically. She would withdraw a bit from what was 
happening around her and she Would 'not have that happy go lucky air about her, She was not afraid to tell me 

that she was not happy, to ie.Qve. Annie has always been very aware of her own feelings, right and wrong, happy 

and ~ad. 

Over the last few weeks r have Seen some of this happiness return for Annie. She is more engaged and more 
pea~eful. She just seeing more at ease, It is my hope, for Annie, that she will be able to continue to be a 

happy kid and enjoy more' of life's pure innocence and beauty. 

C;:~Qiu;J 
Caroh L. Olsen 

.st-w\-e of Nw+ aJ~ 
,C{V.VrtM 0 ~ 1::. 

ThIOsmstrument .Ja1 ackiJowledged before me by 
AJlt(lY\ or t;iW) - .~ . 

(Nameofsigner) Dar",} J~ 1lt?1 J»1~ 
I
, EillABETH SEN 

i, 

• NOTARY PUBUC 
STATE OF NiOVADA 

","~'>1lI __ ~J My Commlssloo &pires: 11-00-17 
Certffica1s No: 09-1 j 500-i 
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." .'. -" - AT&T -"l f'; 
~;). "...(' '..:' \) " -'.,' . ,.- . 12:41 M 38°;,o~ 

--
-,-

/ ~ 

Would u like to come sit in -
the house for a day and 
watch how Annie does 
homeschool ? I'm fine with 
that as long as you keep 
quiet and don't make any 
negative comments. 

--~------------~-.~-- .. -~~--~.-.- .... ----.-.. ~--~-.------. 

Negative.im bring in 3rd 
part professional 
education. 
Just filed CPS complaint. 
Contact CCSD education 
neglect department. 
Silvan learning center 
parent orientation 

APP647 Hughes 000133 
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1: M 38°:;o~' 

/' " Then leave Annie alone. 
She is brilliant. Let her be 
who she is gonna be, not 
what u think she should 
be. r feelings mattern! 

K. you got it.. wait for that 
letter in the mail 

~ ~ 

U won It stop until she 
hates you. 

I bet it feels good that 
1500$ a month you tychee 

of me .that ain't charity 
that's to insure my piece 

APP64-8···· .. ---- .n
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1 :36 AM 39°:'0 '"""' ~!'\ 

Intellectual and being 
smart is 2 different things.i 

want both for her 

/' '" 
She learns all day 

/ , 
The offer still stands- u 
can come watch her 
homeschool for a day 
----.---------+~~-~ ..... ,-~'"~-.- .,......---,----.. -----.-.. --~-- .,.....~~-.-~~-, _._.,._, . 

.,...-.....---.---.----~~-" ....... ---.~.~ .... -~-.------.--.--.... ~ .. ~.....,.---.....---

You are not qualified to 
teach 

~ ~ 

The state of Nevada 
thinks so 

She1s getting held back 

- --AP-P~ - - .~ ..... . 

\ 'ii' . . " ) 

\~ "" ~':':" ·::.~::._~~';:~.,r)· 
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il~~1~;fi~~!~~~ii~~i;i~~~i'i~~il~fr;u~::9UgM 
resporisib,iJ.iti'~s fOr: scIi6d/dis'tticfHomesthobl· aurhiniSerat6rs . 

. ~trZd~!::e:ni:t~:;~4:h::~;':,:~~t:;;:::~::~:::~:::· 
to the ·bbatd>dftrListees,ofth.errsdrbbldfstrltt .. . 

'H"~~afi§f~~t.Qti,~~dJi~d:~¢YJ~,~6¢~,:;t~~t'·tM!{thff~';i~·,'re=-c~'Mrflg,· 
equlvahinf·tflStritcH6riaS>that':off~r~dlh 'pubHc sch{)bis~" 

~ 2. Testing - No. Reguirement abolished Sept. 1997. 

3. No regulation or policyof the State Board, any school 
d (strict, or any 

other governmental entity may infringe upon the right of a 

parent to educate his 

chlld based on religious preference unless it is essential to 

further a 
compelling governmental interest and is the least restrictlve 

means of 

furthering that compeUlng governmental interest, 

SB404 Sec 5 (13) 
HOMESCHOOLED CHILDREN 

NRS 392.700 Notice of intent to homeschool; release of .child's records; 
participation in examinations; educational plan; discrimination prohibited. 

1. If the parent of a child who is subject to compulsory attendance wishes to 
homeschool the child, the parent must file with the ruperintendent of schools of the 
school district in which the child resides a written notice of intent to homeschool 
the child. The Department shall develop a standard form for the notice of intent to 
homeschool. The fonn must not require any information or assurances that are not 
otherwise required by this section or other specific statute. The board of trustees of 
each school district shhll, in a timely manner, make only the furm developed by the 
Department available to parents who wish to homeschool their child. 

2. The notice of intent to homeschool must be filed before beginning to 
homeschool the child or: 

APP650 Hughes 000136 
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keceipt 01 Notice ot Intent to Homescbool 

State ot Nevada 

Welthy SlIva Anrue YenenClO oJ1va 

_ i'BrrnvGwlf(iian's }lam<: SOJ.i:kn\'s Nome . . 

M1ll1mg AQo..ress ~lr muereut) 

1433 CottoDwood Place 

Las Vegas, NV 89104 

• This is acknowledgment tlrnt a Notice of Intent to Homeschool was received by 
the superintendent of schools ofCIark CO\.U1ty School District as teqlPred by NRS 
j':;l1, anll tne CilllG l1S[oo aooyC lS Ix:IDg nomescl1001hl I rus WO[(eu 

acknowledgment serves as proof of compliance with Nevada's compulsory school 
attendance law. This acknowledgmeo.t must be provided whenever a Notice of 
IDterrt lOiiOInescnoOl nas oeen DIeQ,. 

.. 1 ills aG.KnOWH~(1gment 15 Dot TtXjUlTtG roT me parem [Ij rorrn3JlY WlilHJraw tne1r 

child from public schooL The parent must file a Notice of Inteo.t to Homeschool 
within 10 days after fonnal withdrawal. 

" The District is required to retain a physi.cal or electroru:'2 ropy ofthls 
acknowledgment for D.ot less than 15 years. 

jYJurK.c. o';illl.mm, L00TWlli:iW[ 

Office ofHo1Des.chooling and Work Exemptions 

Utile .)epLt;rnotr ':!, LV 1 U 

lfyou have any questions, please can 775-687-9238. 

l'oIl.l(', K.eYL!ieG JWy 1, LWI 

~-AP·P651 Hughes 000137 
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TIleOuF~~ 

J3(I2 2nd StNE Suite100 

~.MN554l3 

hit;rdfwww:.0uifamilyW!z:mt . 

Jnfu@OwFamilJWizanican 

WiJiky Sttil!in~ generateil iltls report on V3J]4I15 at .TJl:E PM. All times are 1istei1 in AmeiicalLosjingiles timewne. 

Email: lofl 

]la{£: lWffi!20l3 'I2:341'M 

From: W dthy Stalliog; 

To: Rogmo Silva (First VIfw. <l3II1f flO! 5 2;49 PM) 

S rib)ed: }ffi: i\rulle sChoOl ttsfing 

Message: 

1 calhrl hcr- last Wffk. Wairing fur htr nply, 
i -

On Mao, miOilis ~t 6:45PM, ~~SiMl wrote 
To:Wei:thyStBllings 
8ubj ect: RE: Annie schad terting 
Messa~ 

r nctififfi Katrina tlll!t Yoa areGoona call and S5: a fune fix: Annie school !elljust rn;,ntion ~ silva ~g Amlll.' silva grade tfEUernme 
kno Wb.m yw call arul set thl.'tr:st 

On Wed, 02125115 at U:30 AM, Weliby Stallings wrote: 
To: Rtgfrio Silva 
Subject: RB:.Ani:Jlescbad tfsting 
Message: 

Wblltis tbephOM1JllIllhcr1 

On MOil, lWZ3l15 at 2:11Sl'M, IWgmI) 'SUva wrnte: 

To: W Eifuy StBllings 
Sob] ed: Annie B chool tlS1ing 
Mells8.ge: 

1 spCkewililXa!cina gne, scl:tOCi'iIlitmlcy c.:xrilinatrr lor Annil! stmdard tr:st. 
She hv opening; fuis wID :ft:b 251h.fillIm 26 th and :fiiday 27th @lprn q:,ening:what day is Be;t fa- Yen to tBke &? And if Yau =ot 

tBke Her i have The time. 

CDpyrlght 2000-2015 OurFamTIyWJzard,com, all rtghls rBSelVeU, patented 1of1 
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March 17; 2015 

I am the literacy specialist at Crestwood ES. I met with Annie.5fIva last Wednesday, 
MarCh 11. She brought aile of her own books with her and she read i3iiJud to me. 
She gave me some background about the story and where she left of[ She continued 
reading aloud with only 1 ~2 errors. I stopped her every 1~2 paragraphs and she 
summ,nized what she read correctly, I asked her about some of the vocabulary 
words inthe story and she defined them mrrectly .. 

Next, r had her read some 5 th grade level bOoks that r had. She selected one and . 
began reading it with success.. She struggled with one word, I helped her with the ~ 

root word and then she was able to darify the word correctly. Again,I.had her 
. summarize. whatshe ·was reading .and she was able to comprehend what she read.. 

Next [ gave her a 5th grade levet passage and timed her for one minute to see how 
. many wOrds she read per minute. She read 118 words pu minute. The range for 5 th 

graders is from 120-180. . , 

If:you have any more questions. pJease do not hesitate to call or email me at 
kstags;:@inWract.ccsd.net . 

. 702799 789(J ext 2148 

Katrina Stage 

APP653 Hughes'-{}o0139 ..... 
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Christopher R~ Tilman, Chtdo 

CHRISTOPHER TILMAN. ESQ. 

A Professional Law Corporation 
1211 SOUTH MARYLAND PAR'rDNAY 

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89104-
PHONE: (702) 214--4214 FAX: (702) 214-4208 

VI/VVVI/.CHRISTOPHERTILMAN.COM 

Kathy Gerrlry. Firm Administrator/Paralegal 
Christie Fr:;elh Legal Assistant 

Laureen Johnson. Legal Assistant 

£-Uri. lIS :CRT@CIv·isiopherTilmaY1.com; Kathy@Christophernln1an.com; Christil,@ChristoplzerTilman.com: 

VIA FAX TO: 678-1849 

Lynn Shoen., Esq. 
3670 N. Rancho Drive #108 
Las Vegas, NV 89130 

LQlrreen@ChristoplrerTilman.com 

March 20, 2014 

Re: WeIthy Silva v. Rogerio Silva 

Dear Lynn: 

My client would not agree to testing the child at Sylvan., or anyvl'here else. Her reasoning is 
that your client has never had a problem \vith her home schooling the child, and in fact, he 
encouraged it. She home schooled the child for three years while the parties were together and has 
continued with horne-schooling. The child is quite intelligent and my client is teaching her under the 
Montessori and "un-schooling philosophy" that the parties have had for years. 

If your client continues to have a problem with this,-then my client suggests testing with a 
leacherthat Annie knmvs and is cornfortable with. Pleil:Se note iliatyourclient's constant pressuring 
to complete this test has lead Anriie to not even want to go for visitation.. Therefore., this is causing 
a wedge between the child and her father. I ask that he give this matter some thought. 

Additionally, your client has NOT put ANY money in the He1oc, let alone the $24,000.00 
as ordered by the Court I do not want to file for contempt but may be forced to do so, Please 
discuss these issues with your client. ThBnk you for yo tim and consideration. 

CRTIkg 
cc: Welthy Silva 

-- APP654 ------------- -Hughes 000140 



1~1essage Kepon: 
COMMISSION EXHIBIT 13 Page000141 

lYlum.:apUlLS, lY.tl' .JYH:> 

http://www.OurFamilyWlZanLcom 

Info@OurFamilyW1Z3nicom 

Welthy Staflings generated this report on 02/19116 at 01:11 PM All times are listed in America/Los_Angeles timezone. 
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From: Rogerio Silva 
To: Welthy Stallings (First VIew: 07/1112015 BAD AM) 
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Message: 
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Grade 5 Mathematics Test 

Student Name: ...tA-'-'-It-,-! fL.-' ....,f ___________ Date: J 0 / J :: ,;' I C; t 

Operations and AlgebraieThlnking 

Whicb expre~~iofl$ 3It" cquh::il~nt to 
~ +1 -(973)? S<kCl ,II thor 'P9ly. 

2~7J-6 

DB 7>3-1-1+9 

Me 4x·1+4.;.1O 

, tD ~X}7(~+)(2~ 

Number and Operations in Base Ten 

Wbkh st13if:mcnts .:tWUl pbc.e V:llllC!ll't 

leuO"? S<lccl _lIlh" apply, 

DAn.. v>l"" of !he dipt 5.;" the 
""mb<r 6..5"6 is to u""",!he ,ohio 
of [);c digl! 5 In the nurnl>er 5,2 .. 1 . 

(;Zf'n Th£ Yilille- o( the digil 8 iIi tht 
""mba ~.6+1 i> Ii' li=, the v:Uc'C 

~ of !he digiI ~ in [);c ""oUr -I.SOl , 

GJ c ~ Y':lIhJc or lbL di,!!il 1 in the 

n"mller '10:5 Is 10 the voJ"" Dr I", 

(figi' 1 iD lb< nomkr L267 , 

D f) lb( 'falur i'l( l.l'x" Jig-it} III lhc 

c .. , J 
nt.lm.~r )f} IS TO Ihi! valoc nflhc 

digl-l } tn IhL- o.1.uob...."f 63 , 

Number and Operations-Fractions 

Ii Which c:xprt"l::~inn could be u:s.ed [D find 1M 

:S.1Jm of 4j-+}? 

A H(fs+ftl 
B -I +(2<1') 

J+l 

C 4~('!'1) 
3+5 

,-(14'(.I.Q.+..L) 1i 15 15 

f\-h v\ It. S", 1 V ~ 

at +1j ~ frc[~ 

Cc\rY>e +0 r~ 2.0b 

(v\ [(:td \ c S 0 h (''0\ ' ')tv 

~v- 4,10\ f>N0c~ of y~ f\M\,-{t. -kg ~ 
-+ +u:r- VJ( 1\J-<- {SiM: I iiI" ,fc,'yto \V1 LJVV\IV\. 1 

~'-r: 1v1\~' ~L-.[ ~et i [S- UVV-1·cTr ~\~ L l 

() vv(\\ ~~JA'- ritS)~ - boUjo'IS '( 11 »"'}, 

v\rifl '~x 5G:l'{(5, )~ 'v,,'dV\(\ V( fl~Sl0lc 

Lu vYc-", l?-f'q~ 

~ 
t1>j 0l ? c:v-~ \'VI S 
C101-)10~~ ~~00 
( lrJ '" I ~Vt @ ; ,'\ 4e{ZI cf ' ( ( 54. Ii':+ , 
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Measurement and Data 

~ A ti>ll t.ml bolds 5iJ p&m of "'old. ~ 
~ rt:m0\"ts 16 I,~ of ~ from l.l::c fisb 

l.l::U.... lklw (O.'lI)y ~o!~~k:T ~!to 
lli< fish lank: 

A 3..1qu~ 

B ~q=n, 

C !iU qnart5 

II 1% q=t., 

Geometry 

A coordinate grid is showl1 below. 

y 

o 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

On the coordinate g6d, graph and label the four points described below. 

• Point N is located at the origin. 
• Point P is located on the X~axiST 5 units away from the origin. , 
• Point Q is located on the y-a.xis, 3 units away from the origin .. 
• Point R has an x-coordinate of 4 and a y-cooniinate of 7 . 

-Ap·P657 Hughes 000143 
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http-J!www.OurFarru1yWlZard..CDffi 

Info@OurFamilyWlZard..com 

Welthy Stallings generated this report Oft 02104116 at 08:08 PM All times are listed ift AmericaILos.-flngeles tim ewne. 

Message: 1 of 1 

Date: 08/141201511:16 PM 

From: RogerioSilva 

To: Welthy Stalling; (First View: 0812112015 8:15 AM) 

Subject: RE: Testing 

Message: 

What a load ofNonsense!!.start looking for a good charter school And help with extra tutoring 

.. ~ ~ . .... '. 

On Wed, 08112115 at 1:41 PM, Welthy Stallings wrote: 
To: Rogerio Silva 
Subject: RE: Testing 

Message: 

Do you not know ifthe answers are right? If not, maybe fifth grade math iSD't all tbat importaDt for gett ing through life. After all, 

you bave a job. You make ruDDey. 

All the answers are correct. That's how we do homeschooL 

. .., .. - --., . --
On Sat, 08108115 at 8:16 PM, Rogerio Silva wrote: 
To: WeI thy Stalling; 
Subject: RE: Testing 
Message: 

I dont see any SCDre test here 

On Thu, 07130115 at 10:21 PM, WeUby Stallings wrote: 
To: Rogerio Silva 
Subject: Testing 
Message: 

Here is a copy of Annie's math test to show you she is at fifth grade level. I am very proud of her and hopeyou are too. Please let 

this be sufficient. You Bre only stressingher unnecessarily if you want to fight about it further. She has finally got to a p lace where 

she does not HATE math ~ I would like to keep her at that place. Tbank you very much. 

.~ --"-"-;:i~ 
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PrintMle 5!h grarle math test (' ~ +- ( 

, f\. 100 0 

Printable 5th grade math test 

Name AVnlL 
Solve the following problems 

1. 

In the equation below, what is the value of? 

/0 
(2 + 4) x 5 = ? + 20 

2, 

I e' r 
Date: G J ": I I J 

Darline has a special purse that can hold 20 lipsticks. How many purse does Darline need if she has 420 .. 
lipsticks? 

3. Represent the following situation with an integer. Then put them in oUier 

A loss of 12 dollars - /2-. 

5 feet above sea level_
C-,-) __ _ 

'1 
a debit of 20 dollars - .L. { 

SO A gain of 50 doUars --=-___ _ 

[,0 

4. 

Get a CD. Put your finder on the edge. Move your finger around the edge until your finger reaches the 
same location you had it before moving it. 

Your fmger measured the ______ of the CD 

A. Area C. Volume D. Surface area 

5. 

h.ttp:l/www.basic-mathemaJics.oomlprintMle-5lh-gruie-math-testlltml III; 
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6/2512015 c' 
(~S2li{1J~!]g~~a~9es~ ?XH I B IT 13 PageOOO 146 

'-

Debbie studies for 5 hours, John studies for 6 hours,and Ashley studies for 10 hours. What is the average 
number of hours the 3 students study? ~, t \., t ll~ -::, 21 :.: >;: 7 

-------~-." "'-"~- ...... -. o B.8 e.8 D.S 

6. 
....., 

-5 + 8 = J 

"7 

5 + -8 = a. :; 

I '1c -s + -8:::: -, ,) 

5+8= J J 

7. 

Compare the following two decimals. Use either < , > , or = 

---., 
564.1540791 / 564.1 54D789 

8. 

Find the perimeter and area of the rectangle below: 

- b 
Perimeter = .3L"",~~I ____ units 

2[: 
Area == ...-::../_/ _'''--) _____ square uruts 

9. 

Get a quarter and toss it. 

-, 
J 

5 

\ ,. 
L..L_ "')' ~.! ,i 1, ( . ...: ~ ,~ 1 . 

The different outcome are _~'-' --,-_'_--,-_'_"'_:_'_'--:'_' '_~'__',-~v-'--'=',(1 

http://www,basic,!TJ21hematics,comJprinlable-5clt-gruie-malh-tesr.btrnl 
iJfj 
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. - \Vnte the probability of gettin/. ,ads as a fraction 72.. C 
Write the probability of getting heads as a percent '5'- ~'>-

Write the probability of getting heads as a decimal ,,:') >": /i. r ••• 

10. 

Add 2/3 and 5/6 _1...,;;· .~;;.i~---

11. 

I ~b: W rite the answer for number 10 as a mixed number --'---"-/"-:0'-''''''-___ _ 

1 1~._ Write the answer for number lOin lowest terms _-'-._/_~...::c.:-' ___ _ 

12. 
.>'-.r) "') 

Divide 7845 by 15 --'-"~"_.l_.t'_-___";.:...) __ _ 

13. 

An ice cream place offers vanilla, rbum raisin, chocolate, and peanut butter as flavors. They have sugar , 
cone, cake cone, and chocolate-coated con,e 

Make a tree in the space below showing the different combinations of ice cream and cone you can order. 

htlp:llwww.basic-matnemalics.comiprinlllble-5th-grade-matiHesl.htmf 
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c Printable 5th grnde math [eSt (-

To find the number on the right, you need to 

2 11 
4 19 

7 31 

12 51 
( 

C 

@MUltiply the number on the left by 5 and then add 1 

~'\ 

~Multiply the number on the left by 5 and then subtract 1 

@1Ultiply the number on the left by 4 and then add 3 

D Multi ply the number on the left by 3 and then add 10 

15. 

Y bOA) , 

Which of these units is the best to measure the length of a book 

A. Millimeter fB-) Cerrtimeter 
'--' 

C. Kilometer D. Meter 

16. 

Replace the question mark with the missing number 
fJ 

cJo ~ 
64,837 - ? = 63~36 

54 + r = 25 + 36 ~ \0\ 

17. 

Two sides of arr isosceles triangle measure 6 and 10. The perimeter of the triangle could be 

htlp:llwww.basic-mathcmatics.comiprintable-5th-grane-math-tesLhlml 416 
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6/2512015 

~, ...... • 1;"-

A:26or21 

18. 

B. 12 or20 ( ~2 or 23 
Pri nlable 5th grade math test 

~26or22 
~-./ 

What information could you fmd with the following situation? 

( 
" 

Noemy bought a box of apples for $4.20. She now has $2.35 in her purse. 

A. Noernis allowance every month (~ow much the apples costC.'How much money Noemy 
had before buying the apples D. How many apples are there in the boX 

$ \c·1)S 
19. 

Examine the graph below and therr choose the correct asnwer 

Cost of computers over time 

S2SCC~----------------------------------~ 

J 

i -5 ':'CCC 

~ 
I 

r 
> t \ , 

~ ~ ) 

'" 1 'J i 1 1 r -i 1 s .:.CC I....-..-- j 

':'97C .:..9SC ':'95'C 2ece 2ClC 

Year 

A. Computers will cost 50 dollars in 2020 B. Computer cost h~ecreased by more than 2000 dollars 
C. Compared to 1970, computers cost half as much in 2010 I.!!) In 2030, the price of computers may 

disappear. Great! > " 

C)) (~r ~) G iJ ~ ;}. h IV( r ~ 11 ) 
20, 

You want to share 1000 dollars between you and 5 friends. 

Can you share the money evenly? Vl 0 

What is the maximum amount that can be shared evenly? q ~\ ~l~ ,'>, ~, 
http://www.basic-rnathemaLics.com!prin lab I e-Sth -grade-math-test.html 
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left of Anriiels childhood and her heart She said ITEven If you know it's 

not, true, do you know how heartbreaking it is for your father to can 

you ug"'y?1l He has said in the past to Annie II Ies not fair I get a dirty., 
child on Saturday and bring you back clean. II Annie is always dean! I 
am a dean 'freak and she has excellent hygiene skills. 

2016 ND \l t s: Y'T~~'a~ t..J.:~nl:'--\-\ ~~\-\"r\S(L 

February 15th - 25th 

Monday math~ played outside. cleaned her frog IS tank 

Tuesday French, touch typing, (typingClub.com), Dungeons and 

Dragons at 'Writers B!ock:, read theHeptile Room by Lemony Snicket 

Wednesday typing, played outside, ballet class, read 

Thursday'French. typingf.audmon video~ worked on past stories,' 

made cookies 

Friday writing~ played outside. jazz class, went to china town with her 

friends Lucy and Edie 

Saturday choreographed contoruon routine for Edie. math. played 

with Krna and Zoe 

Sunday went to china town to cefebrate Chinese new year where she 

got two little turtles 

"Monday math~ auditioned for !]the Lockett; and got a callback, read .. 

Tuesday callback audWonfor tithe Lockee and got the job! Babysat 

Opal and Zoe.~ Dungeons and Dragons club at Writer~s Block, 

Wednesday homeschool vvith her friends Lucy and Edie, hung out with 

, Dylan and Margot, read 

Thursday delivered girl scout cookies, cleaned turtle tank, modem 

class. knttted mermaid tops for Pirate Fest , 

APP664 Hughes 000150 
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2015 '-I f ~ \'"\~~ \D~ l,....J \.-c--H , ~~-H-e,fL 
May 5th I took. care of Zoe.. Annie loves her ,Hke a sister~ Also took a 

friend's 3 children for a few hours to the park. All 5 children prayed weH 

together and had a nice timR went to the studio to teach ballet 

Trader Joets and home. Annie made dinner and it was delicious! 

May 6th Annie made strawberry mint lemonade! Yumm. She~s been in 

a mood to' work in the kitChen 'lately and '1 let her. 

May 7th Got out1he cloud cards becaUse yesterday Annie was ." 

asking me a question aboutCIouds. We made breakfast together. 

She gave a speech about her frogiet 99% of homeschool things 

Annie does is her idea. I just encourage it. 
I ' 

VVhHe I made lunch; she read her frogtet a book., 

May 8th AnnIe r:nade cinnamon roles and learned to play three blind 

mice on the xylophone.' Read awild and weird" to Annie. Rogerio 

caJled.Ann'ie taJkedfor a few minutes. When she ,hung up and came 

back in the room I could see she was angry. He actused her ofoot 
communicating. She told him she, had caned him back every time he 

caUed but he had not answered. He told her that caning and not 
leaving a message wasntt communicating. However he never leaves a 

message. 

Play date With NathaHy 

May 9th Annie and" went to CoppeUa at Smith Center 

May 10th Annie went with her father from 11 - 8:30pm. She came back 

. early because of Mothers day_ She had a complete breakdown 

be'cause he had picked on her and called her ugly and her hair messy 

. and said she should wash her hair everyday. She looked beautiful 

when she left me, not the point of course. When I started to text him 

about ~ she lost her mind and was screaming IlIno! You are making 

my life worse. He blames me for every text you send. 1l Another way· 

he is sHencing ,her and me. This has ~o stop. i want to salvage what is 

APP665 Hughes 000151 



00:00:00 AW: 

00:00:07 

00:00:13 

00:00:17 

00:00:20 

00:00:24 

00:00:30 

00:00:34 

00:00:35 RH: 

00:00:43 AW: 

00:00:45 RH: 

00:00:48 AW: 

00:00:51 

00:00:55 

00:00:56 RH: 

00:00:57 AlfJ: 

00001 

COMMISSION EXHIBIT 14 Page000152 

Case No.: Nevada Commission on JV.dicial Dis 

2016-113 

Spencer Investigations 

Recorded Interview of: Rena Hughes 

January 27, 2017 

IDENTITY OF SPEAKERS: 

AW: Ada.m Wygna.r.s ki 

RH: Rena Hughes 

ine Case No. 

Here we go. Okay. Transcriber, today's date is Friday, 

Ja.mw.ry 27th. The time is approxima.tely 11: 48 a.ill. This is 

Investigator Adam Wygnanski with Spencer Investigations, 

Reno, Nevada, who are contracted by the State of Nevada 

COm~ission on Judicial Discipline. Location of this 

interview will be Judge Hughes' chambers located at 601 North 

Pecos in Las Vegas, Nevada. For the record, Your Honor, can 

you please spell your first and la.st name for me. 

First n~~e is Rena, R-E-N-A. Last nfu~e Hughes, H-U-G-H-E-S. 

Okay. And a good address for you.? 

Personal address or business address? 

What's a good -- if the Commission needed to send you 

something, would it be easier to send it to this address 

or ... 

I'll give you my home address. 

Okay. 

APP666 Hughes 000152 
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! 

00:00:58 RH: It's 7320 Rustic Meadow Street. That's Las Vegas 89131. 

00:01:11 A(N: Okc_y. And a good phone number for you? 

00:01:13 RH: (702) 278-1826. 

00:01:19 AW: And is that a cell nllli'tber or an office mlinber? 

00:01:21 RH: It's a cell. 

00:01:22 AW: Cell number, okay. And is there an office number as well. 

00:01:26 RH: (702) 455-1882. 

00:01:33 AW: Okay. And you're aware that this interview is being 

00:01:37 recorded? 

00:01:37 RH: Yes. 

00:01:38 AW: Acld this is with YO·0.r permission? 

00:01:38 RH: Yes. 

00:01:39 l\w: Okay. Just as a reminder, please wait until I -- I have a 

00:01:43 bad habit of doing this, too, but wait until I complete the 

00:01:46 question. I mean, it may be a long question and you want to 

00:01:50 interrupt in the middle, and the trc.nscribers, I mean, they 

00:01:54 can do it but they don't like us doing it. So just wait 

00:01:58 until I -- the question is over and then you can answer. And 

00:02:02 I'll try to do the same with you, not to interrupt you mid 

00:02:05 sentence so the trcmscriber will pick it up. It's kind of 

00:02:08 difficult for them when two people are talking at the same 

00:02:09 time. And then just speak loud and obviously no head 

00:02:13 nodding. If it's a yes answer, just say yes instead of 

00:02:17 nodding your head. And no answer, just no. Does that make 

00:02:20 sense? 

00002 
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00:02:20 RH: 

00:02:20 AW: 

00:02:27 

00:02:29 

00:02:36 

00:02:41 

00:02:46 

00:02:55 

00:03:00 

00:03:01 

00:03:04 

00:03:08 RH: 

00:03:14 AW: 

00:03:16 RH: 

00:03:24 AW: 

00:03:28 

00:03:31 

00:03:33 RH: 

00:03:35 AW: 

00:03:41 RH: 

00:03:42 AW: 

00:03:45 RH: 

00:03:48 

00:03:53 AW: 

00:03:57 RH: 

00003 

COMMISSION EXhiBIT 14 Page000154 

Yes. 

Thank you. All right. This interview is in reference to a 

compla.int received by the Nevada Commission on Judicial 

Discipline on September 6, 2016. This case was assigned Case 

No. 2016-113. The complaint contains allegations of possible 

violations of Canon Rule 1 and Canon Rule 2, specifically 

Canon Rule 1.1, 1.2, 2.2, 2.6(A) and 2.8(B). After their 

review of the complaint against the respondent, the Nevada 

Commission on Judicial Discipline concluded that there was 

sufficient reason to cO:'.1duct a follow-up investigation. Your 

Honor, your current judicial assigr.u.uent? 

Family Court, Department J. 

&~d how long have you been at this position? 

Since January 1st, 2015. 

Ana can you just briefly describe your past employment and 

schooling prior to your current assignment as a judge In 

Family Court? 

How specific do you want? 

Were you like in private practice before taking a judgeship? 

Yes. 

Okay. 

I worked for a law firm for five years before taking the 

bench. The Dickerson Law Group. 

Okay. 

You want more history? 

APP668 Hughes 000154 



00:03:58 AW: 

00:04:00 RH: 

00:04:10 

00:04:13 AW: 

00:04:16 RH: 

00:04:18 AW: 

00:04:29 

00:04:32 

00:04:37 

00:04:44 

00:04:48 

00:04:53 RH: 

00:04:57 

00:05:01 AW: 

00:05:02 RH: 

00:05:12 AW: 

00:05:12 RH: 

00:05:15 AW: 

00:05:22 

00:05:24 

00:05:29 

00:05:30 RH: 

00:05:30 AW: 

00:05:33 RH: 

00:05:34 AW: 

00004 
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How about before that? 

Well, I've been practicing in Nevada for 27 years so it would 

take a long time for me to go through my reSU~lle. 

That's okay. So you your bar ... 

1990. 

Okay. That's Nevada. Okay. Your Honor, you are familiar 

with the hearing that occurred in your courtroom on 

June 15th, 2016, in the matter of Silva and Silva, and that 

case number I believe was D12467820D where you ordered 

temporary change the custody for the jttvenile in this matter, 

correct? 

I'm not sure if that's when it occurred. I know it was over 

the summer. I'd have to look --

Okay. 

-- for sure. I believe that's when it happened. 

Okay. 

Yeah. June 15th, 2016. I believe so. 

Okay. Now, after viewing the JAVS recording, you excused 

everyone out of the courtroom and spoke with the minor child 

off the record while she was in the courtroom by herself. Do 

you remember that? 

Yes. 

Okay. Was anyone else present in the courtroom? 

My staff. 

Okay. And that's your marshal, correct. 

APP669 Hughes 000155 
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00:05:36 ReD . 
.l. .L ~ My marshal and my court clerk. 

00:05:39 AlN: Okay. And what is the marshal's name? 

00:05:42 RH: Frank Preuss, P-R-E-U-S-S. 

00:05:48 AW: P-U. 

00:05:49 RH: P-R. 

00:05:51 AW: I'm sorry. P-R. 

00:05:52 RH: E-U-S-S. 

00:05:54 AlN: &ld does he have a phone nwuber, a work nUInber? You don't 

00:05:58 know? 

00:05:58 RH: It's this one. 

00:05:59 AW: Okay. And then your court clerk? 

00:06:02 RH: Tiffany Skaggs, S-K-A-G-G-S. 

00:06:08 AW: Okay. And does she have a sepa.rate phone number or no? 

00:06:12 RH: I don't know what it is. 

00:06:13 AW: So we would Just probably call your assistant and she could 

00:06:17 connect us. 

00:06:17 RH: Yes, yes. 

00:06:19 AW: If we need to talk to them. Was there a reason why the 

00:06:22 conversation was off the record with the juvenile? Is that a 

00:06:27 normal practice? 

00:06:28 RH: It is not -- it's a practice not to record conversations with 

00:06:38 children. It was not an interview but an explanation to the 

00:06:47 child of what was occurring that day. 

00:06:51 AW: Okay. So this was not a -- a question and answer session 

00:06:56 between you and the juvenile or --

00005 
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00:06:59 RH: 

00:07:00 AW: 

00:07:05 

00:07:07 RH: 

00:07:13 

00:07:17 

00:07:23 

00:07:35 

00:07:37 AW: 

00:07:38 RH: 

00:07:42 

00:07:45 

00:07:46 AW: 

00:07:48 RH: 

00:07:55 

00:07:59 

00:08:05 

00:08:10 

00:08:15 

00:08:21 

00:08:34 

00:08:42 

00:08:48 

00:08:58 

00:09:04 

00006 
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No, it was not. 

Okay. Just briefly, do you remernber what was said during 

that off the record? 

In general, I do. But I have to give you a little bit of 

background in order to tell you it and then I'll 

tell you what was discussed. This is a pa parent, 

Ms. Silva. And this was my first experience with parental 

alienation. 

On her part? 

Yes. Well, I've never had a case like that as a judge. It 

started right after I became a judge in February right after 

I took the bench. 

Okay. 

And every step that I took in the case was after me 

consulting with senior Judges up here, how do I handle this 

situation? What do I do? And no less than four different 

judges gave me advice. So everything that I did was based on 

their advice. I didn't know what to do with a pathogenic 

parent. So after many months, I think it was even over a 

year of violations of court orders by Ms. Silva, engaging 

therapy, I had a therapist and representations of the 

therapist and getting reports from the therapist on what to 

do, I consulted with, again, the senior judges up here. But 

Judge Elliott actually g-ave me the advice to talk to the 

child and tell her what YOlJ.'re doing and why. And I called 

APP671 Hughes 000157 
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00:09:10 the mother in because I had c:old her if she didn't facilitate 

00:09:18 visitation on the weekends, that the child would be spending 

00:09:22 the summer with her dad. 

00:09:24 A\iJ: fu"d when was that? Was that on the record? 

00:09:28 RH: Yes. We've had over a dozen hearings in this case. 

00:09:33 AW: Okay. 

00:09:35 RH: Sometimes mom was represented. Sometimes she wasn't. But 

00:09:40 she violated nearly every court order I ever entered. The 

00:09:48 conversation I had wic:h the child based on the advice I got 

00:09:52 from Judge Elliott was to tell the child what was happening 

00:09:57 that day. And the child asked me a lot of questions. But 

00:10:03 typically, we don't record those. 

00:10:06 AW: Right. 

00:10:07 RD. u. And I explained to her that she was going to spend the swnmer 

00:10:10 with her dad, that her dad loved her very much, that he 

.00:10:15 wanted to have a relationship with her, and this is all post 

00:10:18 therapy so she knew these things already. A..Tld that she wc.s 

00:10:24 going to go with dad today. This was a child custody 

00:10:28 exchange, not a hearing. 

00:10:32 AW: Oka.y. Now, Your Honor, you would agree that a large segment 

00:10:38 of your duties and responsibilities as a judge are to be 

00:10:40 courteous, patient, in handling of subjects that 

00:10:45 come before you, ? 

00:10:46 RH: Yes. 

00:10:46 A\iJ: Looking back at this hearing, even when I reviewed the tape, 
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00:10:50 do you feel that you were courteous, patient, dignified, and 

00:10:53 compassionate in the handling of that juvenile in the 

00:10:56 courtroom when she sat there when she was crying and upset? 

00:10:58 RB: Well, I had talked to her before that. So yes, I was. I 

00:11:02 answered all of her questions. I think the reason she 

00:11:12 started crying was because she knew it was -- well, how do I 

00:11:22 this? When she was asking me questions, she was 

00:11:29 psychology on me. She wa.s asking me very mature qu.estions. 

00:11:39 AW: fu'ld this was off the record. 

00:11:41 ReD. Yes. Yes. And I think she wa.s crying to see if she could 

00: 11: 47 get her way, which was to leave with her mother and not her 

00:11:52 father. I did not take her reaction with the tears, because 

00:11:58 of the conversation I just had with her, I didn't take tha.t 

00:12:02 as her being traumatized. I saw that more as, I want to 

00:12:08 manipulate this judge becau.se I'm not getting my way. And I 

00:12:14 didn't yell at her. I was calm with her, but I was also .c . .Llrm 

00:12:20 because I wanted her to know I'm the adult, I'm making this 

00:12:25 decision for your best interest, and I'm going to be firm on 

00:12:29 this. You won't manipulate the situation. So yes, I thought 

00:12:36 I was courteous to her. I didn't -- I didn't say anything 

00:12:39 mean to her, but I was very firm just as a parent would be to 

00:12:43 a child that's having a tantrul'l. You have to stand firm and 

00:12:50 you have to do what's in their best interest whether or not 

00:12:53 like it. 

00:12:55 AW: Is it -- I don't want to say -- is it standard practice with 
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the fcul\i1y cou.rt judges here to have a juvenile remain in the 

courtroom by themselves while a custody decision is being 

rendered? 

There was no custody decision being rendered. It had already 

been made. This was an exchange of the child. And it was 

done this way for several reasons. 

Okay. 

I could not engage the services of a therapist because mother 

refused to go to the therapist. That would have been my 

first choice is to have the exchange happen in a therapy 

office. But mom refused to go to Ms. Weiford. And again, 

I'm taking advice from senior judges on how to do this. I've 

never had this type of case before. 

Okay. 

So therapy exchange wa.s out of the qu.estion. Mom wouldn't 

go. Judg·e Duckworth said that he's had these cases before 

a.nd he made his order with the parties in the room and sent 

them out in the hallway to do the exchange. 

.&"'l.d I thought that was a terrible solution, with all due 

respect to him, because then it's happening in the public 

view and there's g·oing to be arguing and fighting and mom 

could get thrown in jail because they each have people out in 

the So they're not there by themselves. My third 

option was a pickup order and a warrant for Metro to go and 
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take the child. lAnd I thought that was a horrible option 

because having a policeman remove you from your home and put 

you with dad isn't the best solution because how is that 

going to be successful? It's tratullatic to the child and it's 

setting dad up for failure because the child knows that a 

policeman made her go stay with her dad. 

Now, her mother was not present when this occurred, correct? 

She was escorted off the property? 

She was because I didn't want her to get in trouble. This 

was a safety issue in my mind. 

Safety on whose part? 

On the part of the mom, the child, and the dad. 

What do you mean by you didn't want her to get hurt, the mom? 

Is that what you're saying? 

Yes. She would get arrested. 

For? 

Disturbing the peace, causing a ruckus out in the hallway. 

She's very theatrical and drilillatic. 

So she wasn't aware that dad was going to take this child. 

Oh, she was. 

Oh, she was aware of that? 

She knew that before she came because I told her, if the 

child doesn't go on the weekends, the child is going to 

the entire summer with dad. lAnd the child did not go on the 

weekends. I got the report from Donna's house. The child 
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wasn't going with dad. were to do their exchanges at 

Donna's house. So she was aware because I told her to bring 

the child. She's never brought the child to Court to my 

knowledge, but I did require her to bring the child for 

purposes of exchange. 

So this was first time that you saw the child in court? 

Yes. 

Now, this hearing, I saw that you addressed her, the 

child, sta~ing that the change in custody occurred because 

the mother who was sent away, she wasn't present, and the 

daughter were not with court ordered visitations, 

correct. 

Yes, I think so. 

You further st~ted if the daughter refused to go with her 

father, she would end up in Child Haven, which you referred 

to as prison for kids. How would you explain that statement? 

Is that really what that -- I mean, did that help things, do 

you think? 

I did that upon the advice of Judge Hoskin. I didn't know 

anything about Child Haven. Those statements I took from 

Judge Hoskin because I asked him what do I do if the child 

doesn't go with her father? Because I could leave the 

courtroom and leave them in there to do whatever they need to 

do, but what do I do if the child doesn't go, and he said, 

you her in Child Haven. You have your marshal take her 
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to Child Haven. And I said that seems pretty severe. lri!hat' s 

Child Haven? I Bean, I know that they rescue children out of 

dangerous situations and they go to Child Haven, but I said, 

how is that a solution? And he said, look, -- you just 

her tell her she has to go to Child Haven and she can sit 

there in holding, like a holding cell, until she decides to 

go with her dad. And the only way she's going to get out of 

there is to go with her dad. That's what you tell her. 

So would you say that that may have been a wrong choice of 

words, prison for kids? 

I don't know that I -- I don't know that I said prison for 

kids. I think I may have said it's like a cell because 

that's what Judge Hoskin told me. That's how you explain it 

to her. 

Okay. 

This is not my idea. I followed the advice of people that I 

respect because I didn't know how to handle the situation. 

Okay. So as I said earlier, dealing with this I'm 

only seeing it from one aspect and just seeing one hearing. 

I'm not present for all the other hearings that you had to 

deal with this family, whether it be mom, dad, and the child. 

But based on what I watched on the video, would you say that 

your actions in with this child, who is obviously 

upset and crying, lacked a little empathy, maybe compassion? 

Well, again, you're not seeing the whole picture. 
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Okay. 

So no, I wouldn't agree with that statement. 

Okay. Would you have handled this situation any differently 

now if you had the same thing going on? 

Pathogenic parenting is the most difficult thing you can 

possibly deal with as a j·u.dge. And there is no right or 

wrong in my mind. You have to address every case based on 

the individual facts that you have. As I said, my first 

would have been to have the exchange happen in a 

therapist's office, but mom cut that off because she 

refused to go. 

She refused to take the child to therapy, correct? Is that 

what you're saying? 

She said she was done. She was not going to go to 

Ms. Weiford again. I would have had Keisha Weiford, who was 

the reunification therapist involved in the case, do the 

transfer. 

She's seen her, though, correct? 

She had. 

The child has? Okay. Now, after viewing that JAVS 

recording, reviewing the court records, as well, it appeared 

that you may have used possibly some contempt powers to 

change the custody and possibly denied the mother due process 

and a to be heard regarding the temporary change of 

custody. Basically what I'm trying to get at is what 
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standards did you apply to determine that temporary change of 

cus~ody was warranted? 

Well, I disagree with your statement that I denied her due 

process, first of all. 

Okay. 

She had a year to stop interfering with dad's time. We had 

multiple hearings. I sent them to Keisha Wei ford, who is a 

reunification therapist. If you read the reports from 

Ms. Weiford, it's clear that mom was interfering with the 

relationship between daughter and dad, that there was no 

reasonable basis for it. And I was following the 

recoIiliuendations of the therapist. 

Okay. 

And it's a temporary order, not a permanent order. In fact, 

she later stipulated at a hearing with counsel to maintain 

that temporary order. 

Okay. Now, it's also my understanding that a change of 

custody, the temporary change of custody, was based upon the 

mother's failure to cooperate with visitation, as you said. 

But you still -- do you not still have to have an evidentiary 

hearing to, you know, in your actions during this hearing? 

Don't you think you have to have an evidentiary hearing 

making -- you know, letting her be present? 

You don't have to have an evidentiary hearing. 

Okay. 
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I made the change based on the recommendations that the 

therapist said she was continuing to interfere with dad's 

relationship. I made the change based on her violations of 

my orders. And I advised her that would be the result if she 

continued to violate the orders. So she was on notice that 

this would happen. I don't have to have an evidentiary 

hearing until there is a permanent custodial order. This is 

a temporary order. 

Okay. But the change of custody, though, isn't there --

doesn't there have to be -- I mecm I'm kind of a learning 

curve. Doesn't there have to be any substantial change in 

circuiTlstances where it affects the welfare of the child or 

the child's best interest is served by any kind of 

modification? 

You're talking aDmIt a permanent change in custody .. 

Okay. And this is merely temporary. 

Temporary. 

Now, the child support as well, does that require a separate 

hearing or no? 

No. 

It does not? Now, there's a case law back in 1994 that says 

in order to change custody, short of emergency circu.mstances 

such as physical abuse, a hearing must be held and Gotice 

must be given. So was there a hearing 

Can you tell me what case you're talking about? 
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It's Weiss versus Granada [phoneticl, 1994 case. It's a 

Nevada case. 

this was a temporary change for the best interest of 

the child, and mom later stipulated to mainta.in this 

custodial status. But the Court can make temporary changes 

in the best interest of the child. 

Okay. What were -- what caused you to give the dad the 

custody, temporary custody? 

I think I've already explained that. 

Wa.s that because the mother wouldn't allow visitation? 

The mother precluded visitation for about a year. She 

hindered the reunification process. She violated my orders 

to facilitate visitation. And she was alienating the child 

from the father. 

Did you find a mother in contemDt for failing to facilitate 

the visitation? 

I did. 

~nd this was based upon reports from the therapist and 

pleadings made by counsel, correct? 

The report of the therapist, mom's own statements, the report 

from Donna's house, and although I found her in violation of 

the order, I don't believe counsel ever gave me an order to 

show cause to sign. That's my recollection but I'm not sure. 

Okay. So it's true you didn't have a contempt 

there was no hearing ever held on the contempt, that you 
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found the mother in contempt through your minute order, 

correct? 

There was no order to show cause hearing on violation, to my 

recollection. We had other orders to show cause because she 

was in contempt of other orders. We did have order to show 

cause hearing on her failure to conduct math testing because 

she home schools the child. She was feund in contempt. We 

had an order to shew cause hearing for her not 

the HELOC on the marital residence as ordered in the decree. 

I think I don't reca.ll 

Now, your finding just a finding of contempt for failing 

to facilitate the visitations, okay, does that violate the 

mother's due process? 

She had no consequences for that. She'~ never suffered any 

consequences for that. I probably found that she violated my 

orders but I didn't sanction her. I didn't obviously 

incarcerate her. 

And I don't know how the statute works. In order to find 

somebody in contempt for actions that were taken outside the 

presence of the court, does a hearing have to be held? 

You have an order to show cause hearing. 

Got it. You never had that, right? 

We didn't have that for the visitation. We had it for other 

issues that she violated. That's my recollection. I'm 

sorry, but I've had so many hearings with this case. It's 
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two years, but my recollection is I never had that for 

visitation. 

So is this case finished? 

No. 

Still ? 

It's still ongoing. 

The last just a more The last 

hearing, the case was sealed on October 11, 2016, hearing. 

I know it was sealed at some , yes. 

Is that a normal thing to have these cases sealed? 

The parties asked me to seal it. 

Did they give any reason to do that? 

No. They don't have to give you a reason. 

Okay. They just have to agree? Each side just has to agree? 

They don't. one person has to request it, and by 

statute, they can have it sealed. 

Huh, I was not aware of that. So they don't have to agree to 

have it sealed. The defendant 0:::: the complainant could make 

an argument to have the case sealed? 

They don't have even have to make an argument. They give you 

an ex-parte application to seal it, but that's not what 

happened in this case. 

Okay. 

They had their attorneys with them, and at the hearing, they 

asked me to seal the case. 
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00:29:15 Av'J: Okay. The attorneys did on the clients' behalf? 

00:29:20 ~D. , ,. 

00:29:21 AW: INas there any media attention on this ca.se? 

00:29:24 RH: Yes. 

00:29:24 AlN: From the news and the newspaper and all that, have you --

00:29:29 wh2t's YeT.!r on th2t? 

00:29:32 RH: I'm not 2110wed to h2ve 2n opinion on that. I'm not 2110wed 

00:29:36 to say 2nything about that. 

00:29:37 AIN: Okay. 

00:29:40 RH: The 2ttorneys 2sked me to issue an order ordering· third 

00:29:46 parties not to post videos or 2nything on soci21 media about 

00:29:51 this case, and I declined their request because I don't think 

00:29:55 I have jurisdiction to do that. 

00:29:59 AW: What attorneys asked that? 

00:30:00 RH: Rob Weatherford and Lesley Cohen. 

00:30:04 AW: Did it have anything to do with this case at all? 

00:30:07 RH: Rob Weatherford's suspended from the practice of law. He was 

00:30:10 representing Ms. Silva. Lesley Cohen is still on the case 

00:30:15 and representing the father. But I would not issue the order 

00:30:20 they requested. 

00:30:20 AW: And that order was to? 

00:30:22 RH: Have third parties take this out of the media and not post it 

00:30:27 on social media. It started on social media. Then 

00:30:31 it went to -- then television stations, I believe. I 

00:30:36 wouldn't issue that order. 
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justified. (Supreme Court Rules, Part VII, Rule 3.) Judges must 

identifY r/ comp.elling privacy or safety interests that outweigh the 
public interest in access to the court record. Ir 

This requirement applies even when a party in a family law case tries 

to seal a case under NRS 125.110, the statute on which Abranls 

seems to routinely rely_ This statute provides that certain evidence in 
a divorce case, such as records, exhibits, and transcripts of particular 

testimony, may be deenled "private" and sealed upon request of one 

of the parties. However, the Court must justify why these records 

have to be sealed, and cannot seal the entire case - complaints, 

pleadings and other documents must remain pUblic. 

In the 2009 case of Joh~nsen v. District Court, the Nevada Supreme 

Court specifically held that broad unsupported orders sealing 

doclU11ents in divorce cases are subject to reversal given the 

important public policies involved. 

Tbe Court stated: 

"TVe conclude that the district court lvas obligated to 

maintain the divorce proceedings' public status under 

NRS 125.110 and manifestly abused any discretion it 
possessed when it sealed the entire case file. We further 
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conclude that the district court abused its discretion 1-1)hen 
issued an overly broad gag order sua sponte! li-Jithout 

giving notice or a meaningful opportunity to be heard, 

tvithout making any factual findings with respect to the 

need for such an order in light of any clear and present 

danger or threat of serious and irnminent harm to a 

protected interest, and without examining the existence of 

any alternative rneans by which to accomplish this 

purpose. Gag orders must be narrowl)) drawn if no less 

restrictive means are available; the V 171av be entered onlv . "., ~ .," 

'when there exists a serious and imminent threat to the 

adrninistration afjustice. This was certainly not the case 
here. If 

anto v. 182 P. 3d 94- Supreme Court 20'08 

In the Saiter case, no notice was given to the general public for a 

hearing before the Order was issued, there ,,,,'as no opportunity tor the 

public to be beard; no specific findings were made in the Order, and 

the Order "vas not drafted narrowly. 

Indeed, it ),vas drafted in the broadest possible temlS to effectively 

seal the entire case! It is also questionable whether Judge Elliott had 

jurisdiction to issue the Order against the general public, who was 

not before her in court 

This all raises the question: V/hat basis and justifications \\fere given 

in the other cases which Abranls sought to seal? 

Indeed, after issuing our initial story about Abrams' behavior it"} the 

Saiter case, \ve were contacted by judges, attorneys and litigants 

eager to share similar battle-worn experiences with Jennifer Abrams, 
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Sources indicate that when Abrams was asked in one case by Judge 

Gerald Hardcastle whether she understood his order, she replied that 
she 0111y understood that the judge intended to bend over 

backwards /01' her opposing counsel. 

In another case, Northern Nevada Judge Jack Ames reportedly stood 

up and walked off the bench after a disrespectful tirade from J emlifer 

Abrams. 

So, who is to blame here? 

Of course Jennifer Abranls should be responsible and accowltable for 
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her ovm actions. 

But, what judge allows a lawyer to bully her in court and then gets 

her to issue an overbroad, unsubstantiated order to seal and hide the 

lavvyer's actions? 

Shouldn't \lv'e expect n10re from our judges in controlling their 

courtroOlns, controlling their cases, issuing orders in compliance \vith 

the law, and protecting the people against over-zealous, disrespectful 

laV\ryers \\Tho obstruct the judicial process and seek to stop the public 

fi-om having access to othenvise public documents? 

Surely, we should have this minimum expectation. Even in Nevada. 

Learn More 
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P e 
Steve Sanson President 

Veterans In Politics International, Inc:. 

PO Box 28211 

las Vegas NV. 89126 

7022838088 

TO: Judicial Discipline Commission 

Fax: 775 687 3607 

Date: December 20, 2016 

Memo: Ethics Vioiation on judge Rena Hughes on behalf of Veterans in 

Politics International (Original will be in today's mali). 
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Interrogatory No. 1. 

Judicial Conduct Complaints, 
Case Nos. 2016-113 and 2016-158 

\Vhy did you draft the Minute Order dated June 8, 2016, and on what basis 

did you find that that mother failed to facilitate the daughter's visitation \vith the 

father? 

Ans\yer to Interrogatory No. 

I drafted the IViinute Order after receiving the report from DOnIia'S House 

Central, dated May 26, 2016, infonning me Ms. Silva was continuing to withhold 

Annie during Mr. Silva's custodial time. (See, DHC report of same date, #29). 

DOTh'1.a's House Central ("DHC") is a facility located on the campus of 

Family Court. DHC is an outsourced program used by the Family Court to 

facilitate custody exchanges were the parents are volatile. DHC (located through 

the security gate) facilitates custody exchanges, and keeps the peace. They also 

report on the exchanges and document any problems. 

The DHC report stated Ms. Silva brought the minor child, Annie, to the first 

exchange but iwnie refused to go \vith Mr. Silva. On May 16, 2016, I ordered lv1s. 

Silva to drop Annie off at DHC, and then leave the premises. I ordered this 

because the first time I ordered DHC to facilitate custody exchanges in January 

2016, Ms. Silva 'would stay, Annie would refuse to go with MJ. Silva, then tvIs. 

1 
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Silva would leave with Annie. My thought was that Almie could not refuse to go 

with her father if Ms. Silva were to leave DHC, thus sending a message to Annie 

that she did indeed need to go with her father. 

DHC reported Ms. Silva did not leave, Alli'1ie refused to go with her father, 

and Mr. Silva was again denied his custodial tiil1e. 

Interrogatory No.2. 

On what basis did you find the mother was in contempt of Court regarding 

her alleged failure to facilitate visitations on weekends? 

Answer to Interrogatory No.2. 

Ms. Silva failed to facilitate weekend visitation with 1\1r. Silva beginning in 

April 2015, I held several hearings from May 2015 to June 2016 to address the 

Issue. I ordered reunification through a therapist (Keisha Wei ford) , and an 

outsourced custody evaluation (to include psychological testing of the parents and 

collateral interviews) through Claudia Schwarz, a Marriage and Family therapist, 

and when finances would not support these services, I ordered DHC custodial 

exchanges. 

I held nine (9) hearings from April 2015 to June 2016. Ms. Silva's failure to 

facilitate the custodial exchanges were addressed at nearly every hearing, as well 

as Ms. Silva's failure to refinance the home equity loan ("HELOC"), and to have 

Annie math tested by a facility of Mr. Silva's choosing. 
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After conducting nine (9) hearings, having received reports from Keisha 

W'eiford and DHC, I had no alternative but to find Ms. Silva was failing to 

facilitate weekend exchanges as ordered by the Court. As stated above, the DHC 

report was the most recent report, and Ms. Silva had been warned in open Court on 

1V1ay 12, 2016 if she did not facilitate weekend visits, Annie would spend the entire 

summer with her father. ~v1s. Silva failed to do so, after being referred to DHC a 

second time. 

Interrogatory No.3. 

Please explain how your findings of the Complainant in contempt complies 

with Nevada Revised Statutes regarding finding a party in contempt for violating a 

court order(s)7 

Answer to Interrogatory No.3. 

t.ffi.S 22.010(3) deems contempt to be "disobedience or resistance to fu'1y 

lawful writ, order, rule or process issued by the Court or Judge at chambers." Ms. 

Silva willfully violated my orders to facilitate Mr. Silva's custodial time, against 

the best interest of full1ie, and in violation of Mr. Silva's constitutional parental 

rights. 

The fact that Ms. Silva did not exchange Annie with Mr. Silva as previously 

ordered was uncontroverted by Mr. Silva, Ms. Silva and DHC. (See, Journal Entry 

of June 8,2016, #12). 

3 
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The Decree of Divorce granted !vis. Silva primary physical custody and Mr. 

Silva weekend visitation. After NIT. Silva filed a motion to have Annie 

academically tested) due to her home schooling, !vIs. Silva began retaliating against 

him by affecting his relationship with Annie. In April 2015, she begai'l 

withholding Almie during tv1r. Silva's custodial time. 

Ms. Silva also falsely accused Mr. Silva of "abuse" of Annie, because he 

disciplined her by taking her cell phone; and he accidentally knocked over the 

garbage cans at Annie's residence after he picked her up. 

Ms. Silva also rep01ted to the police in May 2015) that Mr, Silva threatened 

not to feed Annie which was not true. I'>Ar. Silva had to call the police to enforce 

his custodial time on this occasion, but the police would not get involved. (See, 

#22). 

Ms. Silva had no basis for the alleged abuse, as confinned by Armie's 

therapist and Keisha \Veiford, MFT, whom I appointed to provide "reunification 

therapy" to Annie and 1.11'. Silva. (See, # ) 

The purpose of reunification therapy is to help the parent and child work 

through their difficulties and mend their relationship. Ivlr. Silva paid nearly 

$2,000,00 to tvls. W·eiford for her services, but Ms. Silva interfered with, and failed 

to follow the direction of~y'rs. \Veiford, as detailed below. There was no reason for 

her lack of participation other than Annie did not \vant to, or "Annie was done." 

4 
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I found that Ms. Silva was undennining the reunification process, was 

blaming Ivir. Silva for wrong-doing or abuse when none had occurred, and would 

not be satisfied until she eliminated him from Almie's life. Iv:1s. Silva made 

statements to l\11s. \Veiford that 1vir. Silva "should just go back to Brazil" where he 

was raised, and get out of their lives. These are not the statements I expect from a 

parent who is committed to the reunification process. Obviously, Ms. Silva was 

not interested in facilitating a relationship between Almie and her father. 

After several months of attempting reunification, the Court ordered a full 

outsourced custody evaluation by a psychologist, qualified to give both parents 

psychological tests. The purpose of such tests is to determine any mental health 

issues that may be impeding the parent/child relationship. Ms. Silva declined to 

participate based on financial reasons. 

Wnen Ms. Silva claimed she could not afford the outsourced evaluation, I 

sent the parties back to DHC to facilitate the custodial exchanges because Mr. 

Silva was still not getting his weekend visitation. DHC reported to me that Ms. 

Silva would not leave the premises, stayed long enough for Annie to refuse to go 

with Mr. Silva, then took fulilie away. I had ordered Ms. Silva to drop Almie off, 

and to encourage Annie to go with her father. l'As. Silva did not drop Annie off, 

she stayed, allowing Annie to refuse to go with her father, and she did not 

encourage At'111ie to go with her father. (See, Ioumal Entry, # 11.) 

5 
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Interrogatory No.4. 

Please explain why you did not hold a hearing regarding finding the mother 

in contempt for failing to facilitate visitations on weekends? 

to Interrogatory No.4. 

The fact that Ms. Silva did not exchange Annie with Mr. Silva as previously 

ordered was uncontroverted by Mr. Silva, Ms. Silva and DHC. :Ms. Silva never 

denied she did not "force" iLi1nie to go with Mr. Silva for his weekend visitation to 

be facilitated through Donna's House. 

r directed Mr. Silva's counsel to draft an Order to Show Cause on the matter, 

which she did. (See, #14.) At the hearing on contempt, counsel for Ms. Silva 

objected to t.he Order to Show Cause regarding the visitation issue because Mr. 

Silva's counsel had not prepared the underlying Order from the May 12, 2016 

hearing. The May 12, 2016 hearing addressed visitation, DOlhlla's House visitation 

exchanges (I signed a separate order for Donna's House visitation exchanges in 

open Court), Ms. Silva's request for reimbursement of medical expenses, and 

support arrearages. 

Since neither counsel prepared the Order from the May 12, 2016 hearing, the 

Court did not go fo:n:vard on the Order to Show Cause for visitation violations, but 

only on the HELOC and math testing issues, for which orders had been prepared 

months earlier, signed, and entered. 
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Interrogatory No. 

Please explain why you did not hold a hearing regarding the temporary 

transfer of same legal and physical that occUlTed at the June 15; 2016 hearing. 

Answer to Interrogatory No, 5. 

I did not hold a hearing because I had already held nine (9) hearings to 

address why Mr. Silva was being denied his custodial time. I also informed Ms. 

Silva on 1Vlay 12, 2016 when she appeared in Court that if she did not make Annie 

go with her father for weekend visitation, to be facilitated through DHC, and leave 

DBC after dropping Annie off, Annie would spend the summer with her father. 

]\,TRS 125C.0045 allows a Court to modifY orders of custody during the pendency 

of an action "as appears in his or her best interest" 

After I received the DHC report informing me Ms. Silva did not leave DHC 

after dropping Annie off, and Arillie refused to go with tv1r. Silva, there was no 

need for an additional hearing. The fact that l\1r. Silva was still being denied his 

custodial time was uncontroverted. No few facts or circumstances occurred to 

change my mind that Mr, Silva was entitled to his custodial time. 

I entered only temporary orders of legal and physical custody as I 

determined were in the best interest of the child. 

III 
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Interrogatory No.6. 

Please explain why you changed custody when the Father's I'v10tion for an 

Order Shortening Time only addressed the visitation issue. 

Answer to Interrogatory No.6. 

N.J. Silva had filed a Motion to Modify Custody (9/16/15) seeking primary 

physical custody of Annie due to Ms. Silva not allowing his custodial time. I did 

not initially grant l\11r. Silva's motion because a significant period of time had 

lapsed since he had Armie in his care (due to Ms. Silva's interference). I reasoned 

it was in Annie's best interest to approach the issue through reunification therapy. 

I reasoned the most important issue to Mr. Silva was his parent-child 

relationship. Mr. Silva had done nothing wrong, and was being deprived of his 

basic, constitutional right as a parent. Mr. Silva had spent thousands of dollars in 

therapy costs, attorney's fees, and attended numerous hearings, and still Ms. Silva 

would not acknowledge his rights. The longer the situation was allowed to 

continue, the more of a wedge Ms. Silva was driving between Annie and her 

father. I could not allow Ms. Silva to continue to violate Mr. Silva's rights. 

The change in custody was temporary, and the Court has broad discretion to 

act in the best interest of the child in custodial matters. The main consideration for 

changing custody is always the best interest of the child. Ms. Silva was 

prohibiting, impeding, and preventing a parental relationship with Mr. Silva and 
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Annie, and encouraging Annie to not have a relationship with her father. Ms. Silva 

was informed on :May 12, 2016 that Annie would go with her father "for the 

summer" if she did not facilitate Iv1r. Silva's custodial time. My goal was to cease 

her interference, and allow Mr. Silva and Annie to reunify, outside of her presence. 

I set the matter for an evidentiary hearing regarding J\1r. Silva's motion to change 

custody. 

Permanent changes in custody require the taking of testimony and evidence. 

I can make any temporary custody orders as it deems in the best interest of the 

child, I reasoned that the destmction of the father/child relationship was going to 

continue, that Ms, Silva would encourage Arillie to reject her father, and no 

custodial orders would be followed by Ms. Silva, because she had not done so thus 

far. 

I further reasoned that it was in Annie's best interest to spend time with her 

father, who loves and cares deeply for her, and who had been denied his parental 

rights since rvrs. Silva started refusing to exchange A-rmie in April 2015. 

In October 2016, at the time scheduled for an evidentiary hearing on 

permanent custody, 1\18. Silva, through her counsel, stipulated that Mr. Silva would 

maintain sole legal custody, and primary physical custody of Annie. ~As. Silva 

further stipulated she would attend parenting classes, would participate in therapy, 

and visit Annie one day a week. (See, Order, #20). 
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Since the October 2016 stipulation, 1v1s. Silva has not, to my knowledge, 

taken the parenting classes. Ms. Silva has also interfered v,lith Mr, Silva's "sale 

legal custody" by reporting to Annie's school that she has a religious objection to 

vaccinations (which she does not). Ms. Silva has also accosted 11r. Silva when he 

has gone to the school to pick An ... nie up, and interfered with his custodial time. On 

one occasions, Ms. Silva grabbed onto :Mr. Silva's open car door while Pw.'Ll1ie was 

in the vehicle, and screamed at 1v11'. Silva to give .A..nnie to her so they could bury 

an alley cat. Mr. Silva peacefully ended the altercation, and later took Annie to 

bury the cat. 

Interrogatory No.7. 

Please explain why your Minute Order from June 15,2016 stated that "Mom 

shall have NO CONTACT with Minor". 

Ans'wer to Interrogatory No.7. 

1fMs. Silva were allowed to continue to undermine lYIr. Silva's relationship 

with Annie, during the summer months when they had time to spend quality time 

together, reunification would again be thwarted. Up to this point, Ms. Silva had 

done everything in her power to prevent ~A.nnie and her father from discussing their 

differences over Ar1..'lie's home schooling, Annie's anger at her father for having 

her math tested, and actually encouraged Annie not to resolve her problems with 

her father. Everything 1\18. Silva did undermined l\1r. Silva's ability to have a 

10 . 
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close, loving bond with his daughter, whom he had been prevented from seeing for 

over a year, except during a couple reunification sessions, and at DHC for a few 

minutes. 

Ms. Silva's behavior has been categorized by mental health professionals as 

"pathogenic parenting." Such parents are often narcissistic/borderline personality 

parents. The pathogenic parent will attempt to manipulate or characterize the 

custodial relationship as the child being "forced" to have a normal relationship 

with the other parent, or being protective against an allegedly abusive parent, when 

no abuse has occun-ed. 

Psychologists providing judicial educational seminars have advised family 

court judges that this is a serious issue, which if not addressed, will result in a 

"parent-ectomy" or a death sentence for the "out" or "targeted" parent. 

Psychologists have informed judges that the methods of dealing with pathogenic 

parents is to try therapeutic reunification first, outsourced custody evaluations with 

psychological testing of the parents next, and third, the Childress J\1odel, break the 

control of the pathogenic parent, by affording the child an opportunity to bond with 

the "targeted" parent without the interference or control of the pathogenic parent. 

This is referred to as "protective separation." (See, "Single-case lillAB 

Assessment & Remedy Protocol", Childress, Ph.D., Craig, #29.) Of course 

preceding these actions, the Court must determine whether the targeted parent is 
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not a danger or risk to the child. (See, collection of articles by Dr. Craig Childress, 

#31, 32.) (While the term "Parental Alienation" is no longer a recognized 

psychological "syndrome" the diagnostics, approach, and recommended treatment 

are still applicable to what is now known as "pathogenic parenting.") (See, 

"Reconceptualized Parental Alienation: Parental Personality Disorder and the 

Transgenerational Transmission of Attachment Trauma;" Childress, Ph.D., Craig, 

#32.) 

My order of "no contacf' pursuant to the Childress Model was an action of 

last resort. This was also the advice of Judge Elliott. 

Long before resorting to these measures, I ordered therapeutic reunification 

through Keisha Weiford. Therapeutic services began in May 2015. Ms. Weiford's 

first report to me on July 8, 2015. See, Ms. Weiford's report of same date. Ms. 

\Veiford had great difficulty obtaining Ms. Silva's and Annie's participation in 

reunification therapy. Annie did see an individual therapist to help her address her 

issues with her father. 

Once she was able to see Annie, Ms. Weiford made recommendations in her 

second report dated June 29, 2015. (See, Ms. \Veiford's report of June 29, 2015, 

#22.) At the next hearing with the parties present, and represented by counsel, I 

adopted Ms. Weiford's recommendations for parenting classes, and fu.rther 

reunification. (See, Order from July 9, 2015 hearing, #4.) 

12 
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Although I ordered reunification therapy to continue, 1'-l1s. \Veiford reported 

to me on August 5, 2015, that Ms. Silva and Arwie refused to participate and she 

cancelled the remaining appointments. (See, Ms. Weiford's letter of August 5, 

2015, #23.) 1\1s. Silva's attomey then represented Ivl:s. Silva would work with Ms. 

Wei ford and participate in reunification. I again ordered reunification therapy to 

continue. 

lvIs. Weiford reported to me in a letter dated October 8, 2015, copied to both 

counsel, she wanted to meet with the parents individually, and obtain a release 

from Annie's theraDist. Mr. Silva met with ivfs. Vleiford. but 1\1[s. Silva did not. 
L , 

Ms. Silva told 1\1s. Weiford's staff that " ... fmances were an issue and Annie was 

done." (See, Ms. \Veiford's letter of October 8,2015, p.l, #24.) 

Ms. Weiford's next report to me was on November 2, 2015. (See, Ms. 

\Veiford's letter of November 2, 2015, #25.) .Annie and Ms. Silva met three (3) 

times with Ms. VI eiford. Her report of those sessions is contained in the 

November 2, 2015 letter. During the second visit, Annie was "open and 

comfortable." She played 3 to 4 games of checkers with her father .. Annie left the 

office cheerfi.ll. 

Before the third session, Annie wanted Ivls. Weiford to know that she did not 

want to be reunified and did not want a relationship with her father. Ms. \Veiford 

noticed a big difference Ln ~'111ie' s behavior from the first to the second session 
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(which was improved) to the third session where iillnie "shut down." Ms. Silva 

was baffled, and iillnie reported she was "acting." 

Ms. Weiford contacted Annie's therapist and learned Annie only had 2 

sessions. 1'v18. \,Xleiford was surprised that Ms. Silva did not take Annie more than 

twice, when she was having difficulty in her relationship with her father. In Ms. 

Weiford's words: "[I]t appears that Mom's thoughts are that the problems lie 

solely with Dad, therefore, if we get rid of Dad then the problem is solved. 

However, I believe the problems are more systemic and has more to do with the 

dynamics in the parental relationship that started in the marriage and continues to 

this day." (See, #25.) 

1\'1s. Weiford learned that during the 2 sessions with her therapist, Annie did 

not report abuse, neglect or any other issues with her father, other than him taking 

her cell phone away (as discipline). 

Ms. Weiford recommended Mr. Silva have unsupervised visits with }illnie, 

as there was no proof of abuse or neglect. Ms. Weiford further recommended 

" ... Mom supporting that relationship with Dad is the best thing that she can do for 

her (iillnie)." (See, #25, page 5.) Additional recommendations were made, such 

as parenting classes. 

\Vhen therapeutic reunification proved unsuccessful, I ordered a full 

outsourced custody evaluation through Claudia Schwarz. Ms. Silva claimed she 
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could not pay Ms, Schwarz fees, and did not participate in the custody evaluation. 

Still, Mr. Silva was not able to have custodial time with Annie due to her, and Ms. 

Silva's refusal to allow it. 

The only option I had left sh011 of a "pick up order" authorizing police to 

retrieve the child from the mother's home, was to mandate the production of the 

child and a custody exchange on a temporary basis. I viewed the latter choice as a 

more controlled option, because Court security and the courtroom environment 

would ensure safety for all persons involved, and protect their privacy. 

In Family Court there are "pick up" orders when a parent withholds a child. 

A pick up order directs legal authorities, usually the police, to retrieve the child 

from the withholding parent, and deliver the child to the parent whose custody 

rights have been violated. This is one of the tools Family Court Judges use, but 

only if absolutely necessary, as the child cou,ld be traumatized by the police 

presence. This type of custodial exchange would be carried out in a public setting, 

rather than the privacy of a Court room. 

Interrogatory No.8, 

In your 11inute Order from June 15, 2016, why did you order that if the 

minor refuses to go with the father that the minor would go to Child Haven? 

II/ 
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Answer Interrogatory No.8. 

Immediately prior to the hearing, I consulted with Presiding Judge, Charles 

Hoskin, as I had many times during the previous months on this case. Judge 

Hoskin and I brainstonned about scenarios to facilitate the custody exchange, but 

keep the peace. I explained the history of this case with Judge Hoskin, and the fact 

that during reunification therapy, ~As. Silva was unwilling to "force" Annie to 

participate, and Annie refused to participate, or even get out of the car once at Ms. 

\Veiford's office. 

When I asked Judge Hoskin what I should do if Annie refused to go with her 

father even after I had the mother leave the Court room, he advised me to tell 

A.J.ll1ie that if she did not go with her father, she would be ta.ken to Child Haven, 

which is like a "jail for kids.'; I relied on my experienced colleague, as I had in 

many other hearings on this case, because this was my first case of pathogenic 

parenting, which started just after I took the bench. I Cfui supply an affidavit from 

Judge Hoskin if necessary. 

Interrogatory No.9. 

Please explain what Child Haven is in detail, and why you told the daughter 

that is a jail and lor prison for children? 

II/ 
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Answer to Interrogatory No.9. 

See response to no. 8 above. Child Haven is where children are kept safe 

after they are removed from their parent(s) from potentially dangerous situations. 

Child Haven is not typically used for child custody exchili'1ges; that is the purview 

of Donna's House. Only in extreme custody cases have Judges told parents their 

child could go to Child Haven if they absolutely refused to abide by Court orders. 

I know of one other Judge at Family Court besides Judge Hoskin who used the 

threat of Child Haven when parents will not listen to reason. I relied on Judge 

Hoskin's advice, and I used his words verbatim. 

Interrogatory No. 10. 

Please explain, in detail, what you told the daughter off the record. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 10. 

First, I sought the advice of Judge Jennifer Elliott numerous times on this 

case. I was a new judge, and Judge Elliott has extensive experience as a Man'iage 

and F amity Therapist. I respect her opinion. Judge Elliott is the person who 

explained the remedial approaches to me, which I followed at every juncture in this 

case. Judge Elliott advised me to allow Annie time to ask me questions, after I 

explained to her what was going to happen. I followed Judge Elliott's advice. If 

necessary, I can provide an affidavit from Judge Elliott. 
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I explained to Annie that her father loved her very much and he has been 

asking to see her for a long time. I asked her why she didn't want to go with her 

father. She did not have a reasonable explanation. 

I told Annie that she was supposed to see her father on weekends, and she 

and her mother decided she was not going to do that, so she was going to spend the 

summer with him. I asked Annie if she had any questions for me, and she had 

several. 

I answered each of Annie's questions. Annie is very intelligent, and very 

stubborn. She is homeschooled by Ms. Silva, and wants to be an actress. She 

enjoys the undisciplined lifestyle Ms. Silva provides. 1\1r. Silva has a much more 

structured life style. Annie does not like rules. 

Annie asked me if I would make my daughter go see her father if my 

daughter really didn't want to go? I told Annie I would, because my daughter's 

father loves her and wants to be in her life. (I do not have a daughter, but Annie 

was presenting me with scenarios, so I a.l1swered her). 

Annie posed 2 or 3 more scenarios to me, and I answered her questions. 

Almie was poised and calm throughout our conversation. Our conversation lasted 

about 10 minutes, and my marshal and court clerk were present. 

Although our conversation was not a "child interview" unless you consider 

Annie's questioning of me an interview, which I did not, such interviews are not 
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recorded. The video record is the official record of hearings and trials, but children 

are not videotaped when they are interviewed. This is for their protection. If the 

parents obtained a videotape of the interview, they could allow the child to view it, 

which is strictly against Court policy on keeping children out of the Court process. 

Other abuses can occur if the parents have the videotape, such as in this case, 

where Ms. Silva released the tape, which is now on You Tube. Annie may, and 

likely will, suffer trauma from having sensitive information like this released to the 

public by her own parent. 

At the October 2016 hearing "vhere the parties stipulated to continue the 

custody order of JUiie 2016, counsel stipulated to seal the case file pursuant to NRS 

125.110. The videotape of Annie had already been released, but the Court 

accepted their stipulation to seal the file. Counsel for t."1e pmties also requested I 

order third palties in possession of the videotape to remove it from their Facebook 

pages and websites. I could not grant their request, as I have no authorit'f or 

jurisdiction over the third parties to which tvis. Silva gave the videotape. 

Interrogatory No. 11. 

Did you make up your mind before that hearing that you were going to 

change custody, please explain. 

III 
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Answer to Interrogatory No. 11. 

I made up my mind to temporarily transfer custody to lvir, Silva when Ms. 

Silva violated my order to facilitate visitation through DBC. (See, Journal Entry of 

June 8, 2016, #12.) The custody exchllilge in my Comt room on June 15,2016 

was not a hearing. My journal entry of June 8, 2016, and all the hearings prior to 

that date formed the basis of my decision to invoke the Childress ModeL 

Interrogatory No, 12. 

Why did you not have a counselor, or CASA volunteer, or someone of that 

nature at the June 15, 2016 hearing to facilitate the custody transfer and comfort 

the minor child? 

Answer to Interrogatory No, 12. 

I could not have predicted Annie's outburst, but I also do not have the 

resources of a counselor or a CASA. CASAs are appointed to represent foster 

children. There are 300 CASAs and 3,500 foster children in need of CASAs. 

CASAs are only appointed for foster children in abuse and neglect cases. They are 

assigned specific foster children. CASAs are individual volunteers and are not 

located on the Family Court campus. Neither are counselors. Family Court does 

not supply free counselors to Judges. 

Annie was not traumatized as seemingly depicted in the short video clip. 

Arlllie was very calm during my conversation with her, and only when she learned 
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she was not going to manipulate the situation to her desire, did she become 

histrionic. AnIlie cried no tears. l'v1y marshal gave her tissues and she pushed them 

away. After crying did not manipulate me, AnIlie became stem with me and stated 

"No, I won't!" when I told her she was going with her father. 

I made sure i\nnie was calm and comfortable before leaving the Court room 

with her father. My marshal stayed with Annie, her father and his significant 

other, and walked them out of the Court building to make sure Annie was no 

longer upset and willing left with her father. 

Interrogatory No. 13. 

Why did you choose to have the mother and father removed from the Court, 

and then spoke to the child off the record? 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 13. 

Upon the advice of Judge Elliott, who told me to have a friendly 

conversation with Annie, and explain to her what was happening that day. Family 

Court Judges often speak to children off the record, without their parents present. 

Usually, these conversations are prea..rranged, stipulated interviews. In this case, I 

did not interview Annie, but allowed her to ask me questions. 

Interrogatory No. 14. 

V/hy did you choose to have the mother removed from the courtroom on 

June 15,20167 
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Answer to' Interrogatory No. 

This scenario was discussed at length with Judges Elliott, Duckworth and 

Hoskin. If needed, I can obtain affidavits from these judges to support the fact that 

they gave me the advice I am presenting in these answers. 

Judge Duckworth and I discussed having the custodial exchange happen in 

the hallway after I announced my decision to the parents. Vie rejected this option 

because in Judge Duckworth's experience, this resulted in family members or 

friends who are there to support the litigants, arguing and perhaps even fighting in 

the hallway and being injured, or traumatizing the child. 

Judge Elliott and Judge Hoskin discussed conducting the exchange in the 

Court room. I discussed how this could be accomplished because Ms. Silva was 

likely going to disrupt the transfer of Annie to her father. She had been preventing 

Mr. Silva from having his custodial time with Annie for months. I expected Ms. 

Silva would cause such a commotion that she might have been taken into custody, 

and I did not think this would be in anyone's best interest. We thought out 

different scenarios, and came to the conclusion it would be best to have her leave 

the Court room, and be escorted off the property so she couldn't interfere with the 

exchange, or wait for Mr. Silva in the parking lot and engage him in an altercation 

in fuillie' s presence, 

III 
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Interrogatory No. 15. 

How would you characterize the court proceeding that took place on June 

15, 2016, such as was it a contempt hearing, custody hearing etc.? Please explain 

in detail. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 15, 

It was not a hearing. I had made my decision on June 8, 2016, sent the 

parties' the journal entry, and set the appearance for the custodial exchange. KtZS 

125C.0055, allows the Court, during any action for determining custody of a child, 

to order production of the child. NRS 125C.0055 states: 

NRS 125C.0055 Order for production of child before court; 
determinations concerning physical custody of child. 

1. If, during any action for detennining the custody of a minor 
child, either before or after the entry of a final order concerning the 
custody of a minor child, it appears to the court that any minor child 
of either party has been, or is likely to be, taken or removed out of this 
State or concealed within this State, the court shall forthwith order 
such child to be produced before it and make such disposition of the 
child's custody as appears most advantageous to and in the best 
interest of the child and most likely to secure to him or her the benefit 
of the final order or the modification or termination of the final order 
to be made in his or her behalf. 

2. If, during any action for detennining the custody of a minor 
child, either before or after the entry of a final order concerning the 
custody of a minor child, the court finds that it would be in the best 
interest of the minor child, the court may enter an order providing that 
a party may, with the assistance of the appropriate law enforcement 
agency, obtain physical custody of the child from the party having 
physical custody of the child. The order must provide that if the party 
obtains physical custody of the child, the child must be produced 
before the court as soon as practicable to ailow the court to make such 
disposition of the child's custody as appears most advantageous to and 
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in the best interest of the child and most likely to secure to him or her 
the benefit of the final order or the modification or termination of the 
final order to be made in his or her behaif 

3, If the court enters an order pursuant to subsection 2 providing 
that a party may obtain physical custody of a child, the court shall 
order that party to give the party having physical custody of the child 
notice at least 24 hours before the time at which he or she intends to 
obtain physical custody of the child, unless the court deems that 
requiring the notice would likely defeat the purpose of the order. 

4. All orders for a party to appear with a child issued pursuant to 
this section may be enforced by issuing a wanant of aiTest against that 
party to secure his or her appearance with the child. 

5. A proceeding under this section must be given priority on the 
court calendar. 

Interrogatory No. 16, 

Please explain how you found the mother in contempt for failure to follow 

the Court's order regarding visitation with the father on June 15, 2016 while at the 

same tL."TIe state that an order to show cause shall issue? 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 16. 

I found her in contempt pursuant to the DHC report of May 26,2016 and the 

uncontroverted fact that she did not give ]'V11'o Silva his custodial time, I ordered 

IVIT. Silva's counsel to prepare an Order from the May 12, 2016 hearing, and an 

l'Order to Show Cause." Neither counsel prepared the Order from the May 12, 

2016 hearing, so I considered and grllilted Ms. Silva's objection to the Order to 

Show Cause, and did not proceed on t.~at issue at the evidentiary hearing. 

II/ 
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Interrogatory No. 

Please explain why you did not hold a contempt hearing regarding visitation 

on July 28, 206 since you held a contempt hearing on other issues that day. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 17. 

Counsel for MI. Silva did not provide an Order from the May 12, 2016 

hearing, and l\11s. Silva's counsel objected to going forward on contempt. I agreed 

with his objection and did not proceed on the contempt hearing regarding 

visitation. 

Orders already existed for the I-ffiLOC and academic testing issues. I 

proceeded with the evidentiary hearing on these Orders. 

Interrogatory No. 18. 

Did you inform the parties before the hearing that you were going to change 

custody at the June 15, 2016 hearing, and if yes, please explain how you informed 

the parties. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 18. 

Yes. In open Court on May 12, 2016, and in the June 8, 2016 journal entry 

personally served on the parties and/or their counsel. 

Interrogatory No. 

Please explain why you did not hold a hearing regarding the awarding of 

child support at the June 15,2016 hearing. 
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Answer to Interrogatory No. 19. 

The June 15; 2016 date was not a hearing, but a custody exchange. Due to 

the temporary custody exchange, with Mr. Silva having custody of Annie, child 

support was set at the minimum statutory amount of $100.00. This is the least 

amount a parent must pay when custody is granted to the other parent, even on a 

temporary basis. Any time I change custody, I have to order child support. See, 

NRS 125B.080. 

Interrogatory No. 20. 

Please explain how you protected the mother's due process rights regarding 

the custody, child support and contempt finding at the June 15,2016 hearing. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 20, 

Ms. Silva was put on notice that if she did not make Annie go for weekend 

visitation with l'v1r. Silva, Ms. Silva would be in contempt, and Millie would spend 

the entire surrmer with Mr. Silva. With .Annie spending the entire summer with 

:l\1r. Silva, a de facto change in custody occurred. This cha..l1ge is temporary in 

nature, and was in the best interest of the child. 

I viewed the temporary change in custody as an emergency, for the benefit 

of the child, and to preserve her relationship with her father. 

III 

/ I I 
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Interrogatory No. 21. 

Based on the answers to any of the above questions l did respondent violate 

Rule 1.1 (compliance with the law including the Code); Rule 1.2 (failing to act at 

all times in a mallJler that promotes public confidence in the independence, 

integrity, and impartiality of the judiciary and avoiding impropriety and the 

appearance of impropriety); Rule 2.2 (failing to uphold and apply law, and 

performing all duties of judicial office fairly and impartially); Rule 2.5(A)(perform 

duties competently); 2.6(a) (failing to accord to every person who has a iegal 

interest in a proceeding, or that person's lavvyers, the right to be heard according to 

the law); and Rule 2.8(b) failing to be patient, dignified and courteous to litigants, 

jurors, witnesses, lawyers, court staff, court officials) wid others with whom the 

judge deals in an official capacity) of the Revised Nevada Code of Judicial 

Conduct, or any single rule or any combination of those rules, by doing any, a 

combination of, or all of the alleged acts, in Case No. D-12-467820-D, on or about 

June 8, 2016 - June 15,2016 while respondent was acting in her official capacity 

as a District Court Judge of Family Court for the Eighth Judicial District Court in 

Clark County Nevada? Please Explain. 

Answer to Interrogatory No. 

No. I acted upon the advice of my senior colleagues at each step in this 

case. Being a new judge, I had not encountered such problematic custody issues, 
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and needed the advice of my colleagues. I followed their advice for each hearing, 

and in making the orders I entered. I respect and value their expertise. 

1\1s. Silva's behavior was contemptuous, outrageous, and damaging to 

Annie, not to mention in violation of Mr. Silva's basic, parental rights. 

I handled the situation as best I could, given the advice of my semor 

colleagues. I always had the best interest of Annie in mind, and worked through 

various steps to reunifY her with her father, who had committed no act of abuse to 

warrant the reactions of Annie and her mother. 

Dated this 23 rd day of May, 2017 
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VERIFICATION 

STATE OF 1\TEVADA ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF CLAILK ) 

RENA G. HUGHES, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that she is the 
Respondent in the above-entitled action; that she has read the foregoing Answers 
to Intenogatories Pertaining to Complaints Regarding Judge Rena Hughes Case 
Numbers 2016-113 and 206-158 cmd knows the contents thereof; that the same is 
true of her own knowledge except as to those matters therein alleged on 
information fu'1d belief, and to those matters, she believes them to be true. /) r 

~') (I I I (') 
c:L// ,I( f /' // 

SUBSCRIBED A..'N1..J S\VOfu~' to 
before me thiScY!1fay of May, 2017, 

said County and Stat.e 
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Divorce - Complaint 

D-12-467820-0 

May 12, 2016 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

CO URT MINUTES 

Welthy Silva, Plaintiff 
vs. 
Rogerio Sil va, Defendant. 

10:00 AM All Pending Motions 

May 12, 2016 

HEARD BY: Hughes, Rena G. COURTROOM: Courtroom04 

CO URT CLERK: Carol Critchett 

PARTIES: 
Annie Silva, Subject Minor, not present 
Rogerio Silva, Defendant, Counter Claimant, 
present 
WeI thy Silva, PlaintifC Counter Defendant, 
present 

Lesley Cohen, Attorney, present 

Pro Se 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

-STATUS CHECK: REUNIFICATION; COOPERATION OF PLTP AND YEARLY TESTING (HOME 
SCHOOLING VS. PUBLIC SCHOOLING) .. .sTATUS CHECK: DEFT'S VISITATION ... STATUS 
CHECK RE: OUTSOURCE EVALUATION SERVICES 

Court noted the outsourced evaluation did not go forward. Plaintiff advised the Court of her lack of 
funds to pay her half of the outsourced evaluation fees. 

Argument and discussion regarding the choice of evaluator; Defendant's lack of contact with the 
child, the parental alienation issues, the need for therapeutic reunification and Plaintiff's blocking 
Defendant's relationship with the child. Argument and discussion regarding the history of the case, 
Plaintiff's failure to foster Defendant's relationship with the child, completion of the child's home 
schooling, the type of home school the child attends and Defendant's belief there is no proper testing 

PRINT DATE: 05/16/2016 Page 1 of 3 Minutes Date: May 12.r 2016 
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of the child to allow her to proceed into a reguLar school. Argument and discussion regarding 
Defendant's self employment, his timeshare and holiday requests and his desire to be a part of the 
chUd's life. Argument and discussion regarding the timeshare in the Decree Of Divorce! the child 
exchanges and the child refusing to attend the visitations. Argument and discussion regarding 
Plaintiff's need to make sure the child attends the visitations and Defendant's non-payment of child 
support. Court advised the Plaintiff she was close to being held in contempt and being incarcerated. 
Argument and discussion regarding the child support payments. Counsel advised the Court 
Defendant changed banks but he would make a payment for the child support today (5-11-16) by 
electronic transfer to Plaintiff's bank account Plaintiff provided her bank account to Defendant via 
his counsel IN OPEN COURT Argument and discussion regarding Plaintiff notfollowing the 
"3D/3D Rule" or the joint legal custod y provisions. Plaintiff advised the Court she had provided the 
medical bills to Defendant through the website l'Our Family Wizard", Argument and discussion 
regarding the outstanding medical expenses, Plaintiff's preparation of a Schedule Of Arrearages and 
Plaintiff's prior provisions of the expenses information. Counsel requested a finding £rom the Court 
regarding the contempt issues. Court advised counsel to HIe for an Order To Show Cause. 

COURT ORDERED the follo'wing: 

1. Temporarily Defendant shall receive VISITATION with the child from Saturday at 11:00 A.M. 
until Sunday at 
5:00 P,M. beginning Saturday! MAY 14,2016. 

2. The parties shaH EXCHANGE the CHILD under SUPERVISION through DONNA'S HOUSE. 
Plaintiff shall DROP the CHILD OFF at Donna's House then LEAVE. 1£ the CHILD DOES NOT GO 
on the VISITATIONS Plaintiff will be HELD IN CONTEMPT and the CHILD wilL be WITH the 
DEFENDANT for the ENTIRE SUMMER break from school. 

3. Plaintiff shaLL UPDATE the MEDICAL EXPENSES. Plaintiif shall PROVIDE a DETAILED 
BILUNG from the child's CHIROPRACTOR to counsel WITHIN THE NEXT 2 WEEKS (5-25-16). 

4. Plaintiff shall prepare and FILE a SCHEDULE OF ARREARAGES within the NEXT 2 WEEKS (5-
25-16). 

PRINT DATE: 05/16/2016 Page 2 of 3 Minutes Date: May 12,2016 
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5, A ST ATUS CHECK hearing regarding the CHILD EXCHANGES, the MEDICAL EXPENSES/ 
CHILD SUPPORT and ALIMONY is calendared for July 28/ 2016 at 10:00 AM, for ONE HOUR. 

Ms. Cohen shan PREPARE the ORDER. 

INTERIM CONDITIONS: 

FUTURE HEARINGS: 
July 28,2016 10:00 AM Status Check 
Courtroom 04 
Skaggs, Tiffany 
Hughes, Rena G. 
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ORDR DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

By: -'c:::~--=-'""-'""",,,"""--.--,--,.-,... 
Deputy~/ 

Case No. 0]0' ~ 107Y;CO~ 0 
Department: __ ~+-__ ~ ______ _ 

Plaintiff, 
\ 

-"-Q~ ~ 
ORDER FOR SUPERVISED EXCHANGE 

;j 

The court finds that it is in the best interest of the parties' child(ren) that the transfers for the 
PlaintiffsfDefendilnt's visitation be supervised pursuant to this Order. Therefore, 

(circle one) 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that because the Court finds that the parties have not or cannot pick up and 
drop off their child(ren) for visitation at an agreeable location in a fashion that is safe for the·child(ren) physically 
and/or emotionally, the parties shall utilize Donna's House services. 

IT IS FURTKER ORDERED that the exchange schedule will be in effect as of (date) 5 ~ \ ~-Ilq 
provided BOTH parties complete orientation, for thirty (30) / sixty (60) / ninety (90) days and wiil occur as follows: 

Pickup will occur as follows: 

Wed I Thurs I Fri 

6 p.m. 
7 p.m. 
a p.m. 

12 noon 
1 p.m. 
2 p.m. 

6 p.m. 

Drop off will 09cur as follows: 

Wed! 
Thurs I Fri 

6p.m. 
7 p.m. 
8 p.m. 

Sa,m. 
10 a.m. 
11 a.m, 

Saturday I Sunday 

12 noon 
1 p.m. 
2 p.m. 

3 p.m. 
4 p.m. 
Sp.m. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the cost of said services is $10.00 per supervised visitation hour: 
__ 1) Fee shall be paid equally by both parties (Le., $5.00 per hour by each party); or 
__ 2) 0 Plaintiff 0 Defendant shall pay the whole amount of $1 0 per supervised vi~itation hour; or 

6 p.m. 

-X-- 3) Fee for supervised exchange shall hereby be waived. II 

Said payments shall be paid directly to Donna's House, 601 N Pecos Rd, Bldg B, Las Veg!(s, NV Said payment 
sh.alJ be made no later Ulan the date of the exchange. Failure to pay may result 'In cancei!ation of the scheduled 
monitored visitation and the Court may issue sanctions against the responsible party or parties. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the parties shall follOW all nules and direct+ves of Donna's House. Failure 
to follow all rules and directives may result in the immediate termination of services and t~e Court may issue 
sanctions against the responsible party or parties. The general rules are contained on the back of this order. 

,J 

Th is nz.atter,is reset for: 

Date: ~3 "del J 10Ib Time: 

\ 
\ OfD1\ 

1 

Attorney for Plaintiff: ...lQ....,)/VO'--.::...:....:..._~-'-____ ~-:-____ _ 

Attorney for Defendant: ~.Q&J~/~~ 
White: Court Green: Plaintif! Goldenrod: Defendant 

'--------------------... __ ... _-.. -._-_ ...... _----.. ---

Revised 0815/10 
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Divorce - Complaint 

D-12-467820-D 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

COURT MINUTES 

Welthy Silva, Plaintiff 
vs, 
Rogerio Silva, Defendant, 

June 08,2016 2:30 PM Minute Order 

June 08, 2016 

HEARD BY: Hughes, Rena G. COURTROOM: Courtroom 04 

COURT CLERK: Tj£fany Skaggs 

PARTIES: 
Annie Silva, Subject Minor, not present 
Rogerio Silval Defendant, Counter Claimant; Lesley Cohen} Attorney, not present 
not present 
\Ve1thy Silva, Plainti£( Counter Defendant, not Pro Se 
present 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- Per Judge Hughes 

NRCP 1 and EDCR 1,10 state that the procedure in district courts shall be administered to secure 
efficient, speedy, and inexpensive determinations in every action, Pursuant to EDCR 2.23(c} and 
5.11(e), this Court can consider a motion and issue a decision on the papers at any time without a 
hearing. Further; pursuant to EDCR 2.20(c}, this Court can grant the requested relief if there is no 
opposition timely filed. 

This Court has read and considered the current underlying pleadings in this matter, 

This case has a lengthy, troubled history. Since the parties divorce on April 26, 2013, they have been 
before this Court no less than 9 times, primarily on Father s motions to enforce his rights of custody 
and visitation, and regarding his objection to the minor child ( Annie) being home schooled by 
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Mother. The parties are also disputing the handling of the HELOC account after divorce. 

The Decree of Divorce granted the parties joint legal, and Mother primary ph ysical custody of the 
minor child, Annie. Father s visitation period was weekly trom Saturday at 11:00 a.m. to Monday at 
1000 a.m. 
In April 2014, Father filed a motion to have Annie tested to determine her educational level, and to 
ha ve her placed in public school. Mother was home schooling Annie over Father s objection, and 
allegedl y in violation of the joint legal custodial provisions of the Decree of Divorce. A hearing did 
not take place on this motion, because counsel for Father failed to file a valid proof of service. 

In January 2015, Father filed a second motion for academic testing, to have Annie placed in public 
school, to modify child custody to primar)' to Father, and enforce the Decree of Divorce with respect 
to the HELOC. The Decree ordered Mother to refinance or sell the former marital residence because 
Father s name is on the HELOC. Father requested a change in custody based on Mother s decision to 
home school Annie, without his consent. Father alleged that when he objected to Mother about the 
home schooling, she denied him visitation. At the hearing in February 2015, the parties were ordered 
to mediation to address Father s visitation, and for a child interview It was alleged that Annie did 
not wish to visit, with Father. 

In or around April 2015, Mother began withholding the minor child during Father s custodial time. 
In May 2015, Father called the police to assist him in facilitating his visitation, and Mother refused to 
turn over the child. 
The parties stipulated in July 2015 to reunification therapy for Father and Annie. The Court ordered 
reunification therapy with Keisha Wellard and Father to bear the cost. The Court also ordered 
Mother to have math testing performed, and that Father would have compensatory time over the 
summer break The Court further ordered the parties to provide a history of the HELOC payments 
and the current balance. 

Keisha Wellord provided reports in early July and August 2015, informing the Court that Father met 
with her for reunification therapy and paid all fees. In July 2015, Mother arrived for the initial 
a ppointment, but did not leave the parking lot, alleging Annie would not get out of the car. Keisha 
Welford went to meet Mother and Annie in the parking lot and spoke to them. Ms, Weiford spoke 
with Annie and calmed her fears} but then Mother ended the conversation by stating that Annie was 
too stressed to go forward with the appointment. Mother reiterated that /\:rmie does not want to 
meet with her father. Ms. Weiford also reported that Mother called days prior to the first 
appointment and told her Annie did not want to come to the appointment or was unwilling to get in 
the car. Mother wanted to know if lmnie could terminate the reunification session if Father started 
to lie in session. Father met with Ms, Weiford and reported that Annie was upset with him for 
having her tested, and for questioning her home schooling. Ms. Weiford contacted Mother again and 
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requested she brmg Annie to meet with her father for reunification. Mother stated to Ms. Weiford 
that Annie was not willing to meet with her Father because she did not want to be around his 
negative energy. Annie agreed to meet with Ms. Weiford individually. 

The folIowing is an excerpt from Ms. Wellord report of the July 8, 2015 meeting with Amlie. 
Annie definitely displayed irritation with me at our lneeting She reported she told me at the 
beginning of our previous session that she did not want to be reunified, with her Dad. I asked her if 
Mom explained to her that even though she told me that I would still need to meet with her and Dad. 
Annie reported that her mother did not explain that to her be{:ause her mother did not understand 
why I could not take her word only. Annie reported to me that she was not joking, and did not want 
to be reunified. She reported that anyone that knows her is aware that she does not give second 
chances and she has already given her Dad too many chances. She reported that the only reason that 
her Dad is pushing for this reunification is because he likes drama. 

Ms. Weiford reported r am having ahard time distinguishing what were the problems in the 
marriage and what are the problems TIL the parent-child relationship .It seems very much intertwined} 
with Mom s relationship with Dad I am concerned with the possible enmeshment that Annie and 
Mom might ha ve. Ms. Weiford recommended Mother get behind the reunification and share the 
financial responsibility of reunification therapy. Father paid Ms. Weiford a total of $1,800.00 for 
reunification therapy that never occurred. Ms. Weiford then canceled the remaining reunification 
appointments. 

In October 2015, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Mother for not f 0110 wing the Court 
s Order to engage in reunification therapy, and ordered reunification therapy to continue. The Court 
further ordered the parties to equally divide the cost o£ therapy for the previous sessions, and for 
Mother to pay for all future sessions. 
Mother terminated the reunification with Ms. Weiford, reporting that finances were an issue .. and 
Annie was done. 
Before terminating the reunification therapy, Ms. Weiford conducted three (3) sessions with Father 
and Annie. According to Ms. Weiford s report of November 2, 2015, Amlie was tearful at first, but by 
the time of the second session, she was comfortable with her Father and played games with him. 
Annie left the second session cheerfuL Before starting the third session, Annie told Ms. Weiford, she 
did not want to be reunified and did not want to have a relationship with her father. 

Ms. Weiford had authority to contad Annie s therapist and received a report that Annie did not 
report abuse, neglect, or any other issues with her father concerning safety and welfare. In Ms. 
Wellord s opinion, the issues between Annie and her Father had more to do with his conflicts with 
her Mother than with his personal relationship with her. Ms. Weiford further opined that Mother 
was creating the rift between Father and iillnie, because Annie s thoughts appeared to be those of her 
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Mother, trom her difficult relationship with Father, 

In January 2016, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Plaintiff for having violated the 
Court s Orders of May 5,2015, July 21, 2015, October 7,2015, and January 5, 2016 to have the child 
subjected to standardized testjng for math proficiency, Further, because Iv10ther was not facilitating 
reunification therapy, the Court ordered visitation exchanges occur at Donna s House, so the 
exchanges could be observed, and a report to the Court generated, Visitation was ordered for 2.5 
hours on dates certain throughout February 2016, with eventual overnights at the end of February, to 
take place each week On February 16, 2016, Donna s House reported that the parties completed the 
orientation process; but Annie refused to go with her Father for visitation, and they canceled future 
exchanges, 

The Court then issued a referral Order for Outsourced Evaluation Services with Oaudia Schwarz on 
February 28, 2016, Each party was ordered to pay one halt of Ms, Schwarz fees, On March 1f 2016, 
Ms, Schwarz reported to the Court that Father was in compliance with the Court s order and was 
ready to begin services, however, Mother contacted her and explained she cannot pay for services at 
this time Because Mother could not pay for services, the Court AGAlN ordered child custody 
exchanges to resume, at Donna s House, as previously ordered, The Court FURTHER 
ADMONISHED Mother that if she did not encourage and facilitate the exchanges on weekends, 
Annie would spend the entire summer with Father, Mother may be held in contempt, and further 
sanctions could issue against her, Mother brought Annie to Donna s House for the exchange and 
Annie refused to go with Father, 

This Court FINDS that Mother has failed to facilitate Father s visitation with Annie, Because Mother 
has failed to facilitate visitation with Father, she has violated his parental rights and the orders of this 
Court. Mother was ad vised at the last court hearing that if she did not compel the minor child to visit 
with Father on weekends, the child would spend the entire summer with Father, 

Based upon the reasons stated above: IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT 

This Court finds that Plaintiff is in contempt of the Court s order to facilitate visitation on weekends 
with the Father, AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE SHALL ISSl:.JE. 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is also issued against Plaintiff for not complying with the Court s 
orders to refinance the HELOC, on the former marital residence, or in the alternative, to have it sold, 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is further issued against Plaintiff for not having Annie tested for 
Math proficiency in a timely manner as ordered by the Court, 

PRINT DATE 06/08/2016 Page40£5 Minutes Date: June 08,2016 

Notice: Journal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court. 

-,. --·'~D~·----- "--Hughes 000089 



COMMISSION EXHIBIT 7 Page000090 
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Mother shall bring the minor child to Dept L Courtroom #4; on June IS, 2016 at 1:30 p.m It Mother 
fails to deliver the minor child to the courtroom on June 15/ 2016; she shall be deemed in further 
contempt of Court, and sentenced to twenty-five (25) days incarceration. If Mother fails to appearj a 
bench warrant shall issue. 

The Order to Show Cause hearing shaIl be scheduled for July 28,2016 at 1:30 p.rn The Status Check, 
set for July 28, 2016/ at 10:00 am, shall hereby, be VACATED 

Counsel for Defendant shan prepare an Order consIstent with this Court minute! and the Orders to 
Show Cause. 

Oerk's note! a copy, of today's minute order was mailed j to Plaintiff and placed, in counsel's folder! at 
Family Court 

PRINT DATE 06/08/2016 Page 5 of 5 Minutes Date: I June 08,2016 
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06/14/201612:48;45 PM 

.. 

ORDR 
LESLEY E. COHEN, ESQ. 

2 Nevada Bar# 11112 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

REZA ATHARI & ASSOCIATES, PLLC 
3 A Multl.Jurisdictional Firm 

3365 Pepper Ln., Suite 102 
4 lLas Vegas, NY 89120 

Tel: (702) 727-7777 Fax: (702) 458-8508 
5 lesleycohen@atharilaw.com 

6 
Attorney for Rogerio Silva 

7 

8 
t 

9· 

DISTRICT COURT, FANlILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

10 WELTHY SILVA, 

11 Plaintiff, 

12 ! VS. 

13 ROGERIO SILVA, 

14 Defendant. 

15 

) 
) CASE NO,: D-12467820-D 
) 
) DEPT. NO.; J 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

I~------~-----------------------
16 

17 
ORDER 

18 
NRCP 1 and EDCR 1.10 state that the procedure in district courts shall be administered to 

19 secure efficient, speedy, and inexpensive determinations in every action. Pursuant to EDCR 2.23(c) 

20 and 5.11 (e), this Court can consider a motion and issue a decision on the papers at any time without a 

21 hearing. Further, pursuant to EDCR 2.20(c), this Court can grant the requested relief if there is no 

22 opposition timely filed. 

23 This Court has read and considered the current li..Tlderlying pleadings in this matter. 

24 ntis case has a lengthy, troubled history. Since the par-ties divorce on April 26, 2013, they have , 
25 1 been before this Court no less than 9 times, primarily on Defendant Rogerio Silva's ("Father") motions 

26 I to enforce his rights of custody and visitation. and regarding his objection to the minor child ("Annie") 

27 being home schooled by Defendant Welthy Silva ("Mother"). The pa.rties are also disputing the 

28 handling of the HELOC account after divorce. 

Page 1 of 6 
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The Decree of Divorce granted t1}e parties joint legaJ, and Mother primary physical custody of 

2 the minor child, Annie, Father's visitation period was weekly from Saturday at 11 :00 a.m. to Monday 

3 at 10:00 a.m. 

4 In April 2014, Father filed a motion to have Annie tested to determine her educational level, 

5 and to have her placed in public school. Mother was home schooling Annie over Father s objection, 

6 and allegedly in vlolation of the joint legal custodial provisions of the Decree of Divorce. A hearing 

7 did not take place on this motion, because counsel for Father failed to file a valid proof of service. 

In January 2015, Father filed a second motion for academic testing, to have Annie placed in 

9 public school, to modify child custody to primary to Father, and enforce the Decree of Divorce with 

10 respect to the HELOC. The Decree ordered Mother to refinance or sell the fanner marital residence 

11 because Father's name is on the HELOC. Father requested a change in custody based on Mother's 

12 decision to home school Annie, without his consent. Father alleged that when he objected to Mother 

13 about the home schooling, she denied him visitation. At the hearing in February 2015, the parties were 

14 ordered to mediation to address Father's visitation, and for a child interview. It was alleged that Annie 

15 did not wish to visit with Father. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

In or around Apri12015, Mother began vvithholding the minor child during Father s custodial 

time, In May 2015, Father caHed the police to assist him in facilitating his visitation, and Mother 

refused to tum ovei the child. The parties stipulated in July 2015 to reuniflcation therapy for Father 

and Annie. The Court ordered reunification therapy with Keisha Weiford and Father to bear the cost. 

The Court also ordered Mother to have math testing performed, and that Father would have 

compensatory time over the summer break. The Court further ordered the parties to provide a history 

of the HELOC payments and the current balance. 

Keisha Weiford provided reports in early July and August 2015, informing the Court that 

Father met with her for reunification therapy and paid all fees. In July 2015, Mother arrived for the 

initial appointment, but did not leave the parking lot, alleging Annie would not get out of the car. 

Keisha Weiford went to meet Mother and Annie in the parking lot and spoke to them. Ms. Weiford 
27 

i spoke ,vith Annie and calmed her fears, but then Mother ended the conversation by stating that Annie 
28 

was too stressed to go forward with the appointment. Mother reiterated that Alli'1ie does not want to 
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I 
, I 

I meet with her father. Ms. Wei ford .uso reported !hal Mother called days prior to the first appointment 

2 and told her Annie did not want to corne to the appointment or was unwilling to get in the car. Mother 

3 wanted to know if Annie could terminate the reunification session if Falher started to lie in session. 

4 Father met with Ms. Weiford and reported that Annie was upset with him for having her tested, and for 

5 questioning her home schooling. Ms. Weiford contacted Mother again and requested she bring Annie 

6 to meet with her father for reunification. Mother stated to Ms. Weiford that AlLnie was not willing to 

7 meet with her Father because she did not wai1t to be around his negative energy. Annie agreed to meet 

8 with Ms. Wei ford individually. 

9 

10 

111 , 
12 

13 

14 

The following is a..'l excerpt from Ms. Weiford report of the July 8,2015 meeting with Annie: 

Armie definitely displayed irritation with me at our meeting. She reported she told me at 
the beginlung of our previous session that she did not Warit to be reunified, with her Dad. 
I asked her if Mom explained to her that even though she told me that I would still need 
to meet with her and Dad. Annie reported that her mother did not explain that to her 
because her mother did not understand why I could not take her word only. Annie reported 
to me that she was not joking, and did not want to be reunified. She reported that anyone 
that knows her is aware that she does not give second chances and she has already given 
her Dad too many chances. She reported that the only reason that her Dad is pushing for 
this reunification is because he likes drama. 

Ms. Weiford reported I am having a hard time distinguishing what were the problems in the 

16 
marriage and what are the problems in the parent-child relationship, It seems very much intertwined, with 

15 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Mom's relationship with Dad. I am concerned with the possible enmeshment that Annie and Mom might 

have, Ms. Wei ford recommended Mother get behind the reunification and share the financial 

responsibility of reunification therapy. Father paid Ms. Weiford a total of$1,800.00 for reunification 

therapy that never occurred. Ms. Weiford then canceled the remaining reunification appointments. 

In October 2015, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Mother for not following 

the Court's Order to engage in reunification therapy, and ordered reunification therapy to continue. 

The Court further ordered the parties to equally divide the cost of therapy for the previous sessions, 

and for Mother to pay for all future sessions. 

Mother terminated the reunification with Ms. Weiford, reporting that finances were an issue 

and Annie was done. 

Before terminating tl-Ie reunification therapy, Ms. Wei ford conducted three (3) sessions with 

Father and Annie. According to Ms. Weiford's report of November 2, 2015, Annie was tearful at first, 
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1 ! but by the time of the second session, she was comfortable with her Father and played games with him. 

2 IAnnie left the second session cheerfuL Before starting the third sessioll; Annie told Ms. Weiford, she 

3 did not want to be reunified and did not want to have a relationship with her father. 

4 Ms. Weiford had authority to contact Annie s therapist a.T1d received a report that Axmie did not 

5 report abuse, neglect, or any other issues with her father concerning safety and welfare. In Ms. Wei ford 

6 s opinion, the issues behveen A .. nme and her Father had more to do v.ri.th his conflicts with her Mother 

7 than with his personal relationship with her. Ms. Weiford further opined that Mother was creating the 

8 rift between Father and A-rmie, because Annie's thoughts appeared to be those of her Mother, from her 

9 difficult relationship with Father. 

10 In January 2016, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Plaintiff for having Violated 

11 the Court's Orders of May 5, 2015, July 21,2015, October 7, 2015, and January 5, 2016, to have the 

12 child subjected to standardized testing for math proficiency. Further, because Mother was not 

13 facilitating re1ll1ification therapy, the Court ordered visitation exchanges occur at DO!L.1'J.a's House, so 

14 the exchanges could be observed, and a report to the COlli"i generated. Visitation was ordered for 2.5 

15 hours on dates certain throughout February 2016, wiLh eventual overnights at the end of February, to 

i6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2i 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

take place each week. On February 16, 2016, Donna's House reported that the parties completed the 

orientation process, but Awje refused to go with her Father for visitation, and Liley canceled future 

exchanges. 

The Court then issued a referral Order for Outsourced Evaluation Services with Claudia 

Schwarz on February 28, 2016. Each party was ordered to pay one half of Ms. SchVv'arZ fees. On March 

1, 2016, Ms. Schwarz reported to the Court that Father was in compLiance with the Court s order and 

was ready to begin services. however. Mother contacted her and explained she cannot pay for services 

at Ll-tis time. Because Moth.er could not pay for services, the COtL.'t AGAIN ordered child custody 

exchanges. to resume, at Donna's House, as previously ordered. The Court FURTHER 

ADMONISHED Mother that ifshe did not encourage and facilitate the exchanges on weekends, Annie 

would spend the entire summer with Father, Mother may be held in contempt, and further sanctions 

could issue against her. Mother brought A-rmie to DO!L.T1a's House for the exchange and Annie refused 
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to go with Father. the Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file, and being fulling 

2 advised in the premises: 

3 THE COURT FINDS that Mother has failed to facilitate Fahl.er's visitation -with Annie. 

4 Because Mother has failed to facilitate visitation with Father, she has violated his parental rights and 

5 the orders ofthis Court. Mother was advised at the last court hearing that if she did not compel the 

6 minor child to visit with Father on weekends, the child would spend the entire Slh'11mer with Father. 

7 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Plaintiff is in contempt of the Court's order to facilitate 

8 visitation on weekends with Father. Good cause appearing therefore, 

9 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that, based upon the reasons stated. above AN ORDER TO SHOW 

10 CAUSE SHALL ISSUE. 

i1 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is also issued agail1st 

12 Plaintiff for not complying \'Yith the Court's orders to refinance the HELOC, on the former marital 

13 residence, or in the alternative, to have it soid. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

IT IS FlJRTHER ORDERED that Ai'J ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is further issued against 

Plaintiff for not having Annie tested for math proficiency in a timely manner as ordered by the Court. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Mother shaH bring the minor child to Dept. J, Courtroom 

#4, on June 15,2016 at 1 :30 p.m. If Mother fails to deliver the minor child to t.he courtroom on June 

15, 2016, she shall be deemed in further contempt of Court, and sentenced to twenty-five (25) days 

incarceration. If Mother fails to appear, a bench warrant shall issue. 
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Order to Show Cause hearing shall be scheduled for July 

2 28,2016 at 1:30 p,m. The Status Check, set for July 28,2016, at 10:00 am, shall hereby, be 

3 VACATED. 

4 DATED thisLf day ofJune, 2016, 

5 

6 

7 

8 Submitted by; 

,~~M£' 9 

10 HEN,ESQ. 
Nevada B 6605 

11 REZA A THARI & ASSOCIATES, PLLC 
A Muiti..Jurisdictionlll Firm 

12 3365 Pepper Ln., Suite 102 
Las Vegas, NV 89120 

13 Tel: (702) 727-7777 Fax: (702) 458-8508 
1esleycohen@atharilaw.com 

14 Attorney for Rogerio Silva 

15

1' 16 . 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 I 

25 

26 

27 

28 ' 
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0-12-467820-0 

Divorce -

D-12-467820-D 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

COURT MINUTES 

Welthy Silva, Plaintiff 
VS. 

Defendant. 

J line 15, 2016 1:30 PM Request of Court 

15! 2016 

HEARD BY; Hughes, Rena C. COURTROOM: Courtroom 04 

COURT CLERK: Kendall Wilson 

PARTIES; 
Annie Silva, Subject Minor, present 
Rogerio Silva! Defendant, Counter Claimant, 
present 

Lesley Cohen, Attorney, present 

Welthy Silva, Plaintiff, Counter Defendant! 
present 

- REQUEST OF COURT 

Pro Se 

ENTRIES 

Jv1arilyn Caston, bar no. 11654/ present on behalf of Dad. 

Mom served i'villi the Order to Show Cause filed 06/14/2016 by the Court MarshaL 

Parties instructed to leave the courtroom so the Court may speak with Minor. 

IvlATTER TRAILED. 

MATTER RECALLED. 

COURT ORDERED: 

PRINT DATE: 06/21/2016 Page 1 of 3 Minutes Date: 

Notice: Journal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court. 
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1.) Due to :vfom's failure to facilitate visitation, and compel the child to visit with Dad, tl)e Court is 
ordering Dad shaD have TEMPORARY SOLE LEGAL and SOLE PHYSICAL CUSTODY; 

2.) Dad's CHILD SUPPORT obUgation to Mom shall CEASE IlvJ]vfEDIATELY. :\{om shall have an 
obligation to pay CHILD SUPPORT to Dad at the statutory minimillH rate of $100.00 per month, 
based on Mom's income; 

3.) Dad shall errrolllv1inor in a public school in the school zone for his residence; 

4.) Mom shall have NO CONTACT with Minor; 

5.) Dad's counsel shall submit a 11emorandum of Fees and Costs, copying the Court with her billing 
statements, for all work done from April 2015, to Lhe present, within the next twenty (20) days. Mom 
shall have ten (10) days for the date of service of the h1emorandum of Fees and Costs to file any 
Objection to the l\lemorandum; 

6.) Court Marshal is to accompany Dad and minor to his vehicle, and if minor refuses to go with Dad! 
she shall go to Chlld Haven; 

7.) lvls. Cohen shall prepare the Order. 

09/20/2016 at 11:00 a.m. - CALENDAR CALL 

10/11/2016 at 1:30 p.m. - EVIDENTIARY HEARING (stack #4) regarding permanent change in 
custody, 

FUTURE HEAruNGS: 

July 28, 2016 1 :30 PM Order to Show Cause 
Courtroom 04 
Hughes, Rena G. 
Skaggs, Tiffany 

September 20,201611:00 Al'v1 Calendar Call 
Courtroom 04 
Hughes, Rena G. 
Skaggs, Tiffany 

October 11, 2016 1:30 PM Evidentiary Hearing 
Courtroom 04 
Hughes, Rena G. 
Skaggs, Tiffany 

PRINT DATE: 06/21/2016 I Page 2 of 3 I Minutes Date: I 1,'-0"1::: 2nu16 I Ju.ih ... . J, . 
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COMMISSION EXHIBllleW~~Q&)100 
06/15/201605:11:01 PM 

LESLEY E. COHEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar # 6605 
MARIL YN CASTON, ESQ. 
Nevada State Bar # 11654 
REZA ATHARI & ASSOCIATES, PLLC 
A Multi-Jurisdictional Finn 
3365 Pepper Ln., Suite 102 
Las Vegas, NY 89120 
Tel: (702) 727-7777 Fax: (702) 458-8508 
lesleycohen@atharilaw.com 
AttorneyS for Rogerio Silva 

CLERK OF THE COURT 

DISTRICT COURT, FAIvlIL Y DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

WELTHY SILVA, CASE NO.: D-12-467820-D 
DEPT. NO.: J 

Plaintiff, 

VB. 

DATE OF HEARING: June 15,2016 
TIME OF HEARll~G: 1:30 p,m. 

ROGERlO SILVA, 

Defendant. 

ORDER 

This matter having come on for hearing on Jund5, 2016, at 1 :30 p.m., with Plaintiff 

Welthy Silva ("Welthy") appearing personally and representing herself in proper person, 

and Defendant Rogerio Silva ("Rogerio") appearing personally and being represented by 

and through his counsel, Lesley E. Cohen, Esq., and Marilyn Caston, Esq., of Reza Athari & 

Associates, PLLC; the Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file, having heard 

the arguments of counsel and Welthy, having interviewed the minor child of the parties, 

Annie Silva ("Afl.11ie"), born on November 6,2003, and being fully advised in the premises: 

THE COURT FINDS that Welthy has committed extreme parental alienation against 

Rogerio, such that she has precluded Rogerio from having a relationship with Annie. 

1 

APP614 Hughes 000100 



1 

2 

3 

4 '[ 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

25 

26 

28 

COMMISSION EXHIBIT 10 Page 000101 

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Welthy's actions in preventing a relationship 

between Rogerio and Alli1.ie are contrary to Annie's best interest. 

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Weltby was advised at the last hearing if she 

did not facilitate weekend visitation between Rogerio and ATlnie, as previously ordered, she 

would be held in contempt of court and Annie would spend the summer in Rogerio's 

custody. 

Good cause appearing therefore, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that, based on Welthy's failure to facilitate Rogerio's I 

relationship with Annie, and Welthy's decision not to allow Annie to have any visiiation 

\vith her father Rogerio, Rogerio is hereby awarded temporary sale legal and sole physical 

custody of Annie effective immediately. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED t.1at Rogerio is to enroll Annie in public school that he 

is zoned for near his home. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Welthy shall have no contact \'i~th Annie until 

further Order of the Court, and shall not interfere with Rogerio's custodial time. IfWelthy 

violates the tenus of this order, she may be held in further contempt. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that an evidentiary hearing regarding custody is set for 

October 11, 2016, at 1 :30 p.m. on Stack 4 for custody with a calendar calIon September 20, 

2016, at 11:00 a.m. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Rogerio will have twenty days from the date of 

this hearing to file a MemoraIldum of Fees and Costs covering his attorney's fees and costs 

beginning April 2015 forward and We1thy win have 10 days to file any objection to the 

same, 

2 
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that an Order to Show Cause hearing, as specified in 

the Order to Show Cause served upon Wetthy at today's hea..ring, shall ta..1(e place on July 28, 

2016, at 10:00 a.m. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Rogerio's child support obligation to Weithy shall 

cease immediately. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Welthy shall pay child support. Rogerio is 

awarded $100.00 per month as and for c:hild support until further court order or until such 

child (1) becomes emancipated, (2)attains the age of majority, or (3) if attending secondary 

education, until such time as said child attains the age of nineteen (19) years or graduate 

from ttigh school, whichever event occurs first. 

IT IS FURTP..ER ORDERED that pursuant to EDCR 7.50 this order is effective 

immediately. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party shan submit the information required 

in 1'-lRS 125B.055, NRS 125.130 and NRS 125.230 on a separate form to the Court ~ld the 

Welfare Division of the Depfu'1ment of Human Resources within ten days from the date this 

Decree is filed. Such information shaH be maintained by the Clerk in a confidential manner 

and not part of tl-te public record. The parties shaH update the information filed with the 

Court and the Welfare Division of the Depa..rtrnent of Hunlan Resources within ten days 

should any of that infom1ation become inaccurate. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the parties are bound by the provisions of NRS 

125C.200 which provides as foHows: 

If custody has been established and the custodial parent or a parent having joint custody 

intends to move his residence to a place outside this state lh'1d to take the child v.i.th him, he 

3 
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must, as soon as possible and before the planned move, attempt to obtain the \VTitten consent 

of the other parent to move the child from the state. If the noncustodial parent refuses to 

give that consent, the custodial parent shall, before he leaves the state with the child, petition 

the court for pennission to move the child. The failure of a parent to comply with the 

provisions of this section may be considered as a factor if a change of custody is requested 

by the noncustodial parent. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the pa.1:ies are bound by the provisions of NRS 

125.510(6) which provides as follows: 

PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE ABDUCTION, 
CONCEALMENT ORDETENTION OF A CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THIS 
ORDER IS PUNISHABLE AS A CATEGORY D FELONY AS PROVIDED IN 
NRS 193.130. NRS 200.359 provides that every person having a limited right of 
custody to a child or any parent having no right of custody to the child who willfully 
detains, conceals or removes the child from a parent, guardian or other person 
having lawful custody or a right of visitation of the child in violation of an order of 
this court, or removes the child from the jurisdiction of the court without the consent 
of either the court or all persons who have the right to custody or visitation is subject 
to being punished for a category D felony as provided in NRS 193.130. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the terms of the Hague Convention of October 

25, 1980, adopted by the 14th Session of the Hague Conference on Private International 

Law apply if a parent abducts or wrongfully retains a child in a foreign country. The parties 

are also put on notice of the following provisions in NRS 125.510(8): 

If a parent of the child lives in a foreign country or has significant cOlr...mitments in a 

foreign country: 

A. The parties may agree, and the court shall include in the order for custody of 

the 

child, that the United States is the country of habitual residence ofthe child for the purposes 

of applying the terms of the Hague Convention as set forth in subsection 7. 

4 
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(b) Upon motion of one of the parties) the court may order the parent to post a 

bond if the Court determines that the parent poses an imminent risk of wrongfully removing 

or concealing the child outside the country of habitual residence. The bond must be in an 

amount determined by the court and may be used orJy to pay for the cost of locating the 

child and returning him to his habitual residence if the child is wrongfully removed from or 

concealed outside the country of habitual residence. The fact that a parent has significant 

commitments in a foreign country does not create a presumption that the parent poses a,'1 

imminent risk of wrongfully removing or concealing t.~e child. 

IT IS FtJRTHER ORDERED that the parties are hereby notified that, pursuant to 

NRS J 25 B.14 5, child support may be reviewed at any ti..-rne upon a showing of changed 

circu,"11stances, or every three years. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to NRS 125.450, that should a party 

become responsible for child support, that party is hereby placed on notice that he or she is 

subject to NRS 31A.020 through NRS 31A.290, concerning the recovery of payment for 

child support. 

28 5 

APP618 Hughes 000104 



l 

2 

3 

4 

51 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 I 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25

1 
26 

27 

I 
I 

28 

COMMISSION EXHIBIT 10 Page 000105 

Should payments of child support become at least th..'"ifty (30) days delinquent, a wage 

withholding may be issued in accordance \-'lith NRS Chapter 31A. 

DATED this f.;J:day of June, 2016. 

Submitted by: 

LESLE E. HEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar # 6605 
MARILYN CASTON, ESQ 
Nevada State Bar # 11654 
REZA ATHARI & ASSOCIA rES, PLLC 
A Multi~Jurisdictional Firm 
3365 Pepper Ln., Suite 102 
Las Vegas, NV 89120 
Tel: (702) 727-7777 Fax: (702) 458-8508 
lesleycohen@atharilaw.com 
Attorneys for Rogerio Silva 
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COMMISSION EXHIBIT 11 Page 000106 

0-12-467820-0 

Divorce - Complaint 

0-12-467820-0 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

COURT MINUTES 

1J\Telthy Silva, Plailltill 
vs. 
Rogerio Silva, Defendant 

July 28, 2016 1:30 PM Order to Show Cause 

. July 28,2016 

HEARD BY; Hughes, Rena G. COURTROOM: Courtroom 04 

COURT CLERK: Tiffmy Skaggs 

PARTIES: 
Annie Silva, Subject Millor, not present 
Rogerio Silva, Defendmt, Counter Claimmt 
present 
Welthy Silva, Plailltiff, Counter Defendant, 
present 

Lesley Cohen, Attorney, present 

Pro Se 

JOURN AL ENTRIES 

-ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE: PLTPS \nOLATIONS 

Attorney Weatherford, Bar #7949, present! with Plaintiff, in an UNBUNDLED CAPACITY. 

Court addressed, the 5/12/16 Order has not been signed, or filed, regarding Donnals Housej 
therefore, contempt charges can not be addressed. Comt reviewed the history or the case and past 
Orders, regarding the Divorce Decree provision, HELOC briefls filed 8/18/15 and 9/10/15, minors 
testing Order and letter (dated 7/27/15) stating which location Defendant choose to have minor 
tested. Court discussed why Donnals House closed the case and it being a question of fact. 

The Order to Show Cause to proceed, with the math testing issue. 

OPENING STATEMENTS. 

PRINT DATE: 08/03/2016 Page 1 of 2 Minutes Date: I July 28,2016 

Notice: J oumal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court. 
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COMMISSION EXHIBIT 11 Page 000107 

D-12-467820-D 

Witness, Welthy Silva, sworn and testified. 

CLOSING STA TEMENTS. 

COURT stated FINDINGS and ORDERED: 

1. Plaintiff shall be FOUND IN CONTET'v1PT, for FAiLURE to FOLLOW the ORDER, regarding 
having minor MATH TESTED, at a FACILITY of Defendant's CHOOSING (Sylvan). 

2. Plaintiff shall be SANCTIONED $500.00, regarding the CONTEl\.1PT. Said amount shall be 
REDUCED to JUDGMENT, carrying legal interest and collectible by any legal means. 

3, Plaintiff shall PAY Defendant ATTORNEY'S FEES and COSTS. Said amount shan be REDUCED 
to JUDGMENT, carrying legal interest and collectible by any legal means. Attorney Cohen shall FILE 
a :MEMORANDUM of FEES and COSTS, within 10 days Upon RECEIPT of the MEMORANDUM, 
Plaintiff shall have 10 days to FILE a RESPONSE. Counsel shall PROVIDE the DEPARTMENT, with 
a COURTESY COPY 

4. Plaintiff shall be INFORMED, of minors SQ-IOOL SCHEDULE and TEACHER :MEETINGS. 

5 Defendant shall still be PER:t\,1ITfED to have minor MATH TESTED, if he CHOOSES, 

6, The HELOC issue shall be ADDRESSED, at the EVIDENTIARY HEARING, set for 10/11/16, 

Attorney Cohen to prepare an Order, from today's hearing. Attorney Weatherford to review and 
sign. 

FUTURE HEARINGS: 
September 20,2016 11 :00 AM Calendar Call 
Couttroom 04 
Hughes) Rena G. 
Skaggs, Tiffany 

October 11,20 16 1 :30 PM Evidentiary Hearing 
Courtroom 04 
Hughes, Rena G. 
Skaggs) Tiffany 

PRINT DATE: 08/03/2016 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date: July 28, 2016 

Notice: Journal entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the offi6al record of the Court. 
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DOCUMENT VOL. NO. PAGE NO. 

Certified Copy of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law IV APP943-957 
and Imposition of Discipline, filed June 18, 2018 

Certified Copy of Notice of Appeal, filed June 22, 2018 IV APP958-960 

Commission Exhibit 2- Verified Statement of Complaint III APP515-524 
by Welthy Silva, dated June 19,2016 

Commission Exhibit 3- Verified Statement of Complaint III APP525-566 
by Steve Sanson, dated December 19, 2016 

Commission Exhibit 4- Judge Hughes' Responses to III APP567-595 
Interrogatories, dated May 23,2017 

Commission Exhibit 5- Court Minutes from hearing held III APP596-599 
May 12, 2016 and Order for Supervised Exchange 

Commission Exhibit 7- Minute Order, dated June 8, 2016 III APP600-604 

Commission Exhibit 8- Order, filed June 14,2016 III APP605-610 

Commission Exhibit 9- Court Minutes from III APP611-613 
June 15,2016, Child Exchange 

Commission Exhibit 10- Order, filed June 15,2016 III APP614-619 

Commission Exhibit 11- Court Minutes from III APP620-621 
July 27,2016 

Commission Exhibit 13- Affidavit Seeking III APP622-665 
Disqualification of Judge Due to Bias or Prejudice, 
filed January 11,2017 

Commission Exhibit 14- Recorded Interview of Judge III APP666-692 
Hughes, dated January 27,2017 

Commission Exhibit 16- Recorded Interview of Welthy III APP693-749 
Silva, dated February 8, 2017 

Commission Exhibit 18- Formal Statement of Charges, IV APP750-756 
filed October 10,2017 
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DOCUMENT VOL. NO. PAGE NO. 

Commission Exhibit 19-Verified Response and Answer, IV APP757-761 
filed October 30,2017 

First Amended Order Setting Public Hearing and Notice II APP276-278 
of Panel Members, Order Regarding Media Access, 
filed on April 6, 2018 

Formal Statement of Charges, filed October 10, 2017 I APP233-239 

Judge Hughes' Responses to Interrogatories, I APP204-232 
dated May 23,2017 

Letter from Commission on Judicial Discipline to Judge I APPI-203 
Hughes regarding Judicial Conduct Complaints, dated 
April 26, 2017, with Complaints and Investigation File 
attached 

Motion in Limine No.1, dated May 7,2018 II APP279-285 

Objection to Respondent's Exhibits, dated May 18, 2018 II APP293-297 

Opposition to Motion in Limine No.1, dated May 9, 2018 II APP286-292 

Order Denying Motion for Expansion of Time to II APP267-275 
Present Respondent's Defense, filed on April 4, 2018 

Order Denying Motion to Dismiss Complaint, filed II APP312-321 
May 25,2018 

Order Denying Motion to Transfer Hearing to Las II APP253-266 
Vegas, Nevada or, in the Alternative, to do Said 
Hearing by Video, filed on April 4, 2018 

Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Motion in II APP303-311 
Limine No.1, filed on May 23,2018 

Order Setting Public Hearing and Notice of Panel II APP250-252 
Members Order Regarding Media Access, filed on 
January 25,2018 

Prehearing Order, filed January 5, 2018 I APP245-249 

Page 2 of 3 



DOCUMENT VOL. NO. PAGE NO. 

Respondent Exhibit A- JAVS Video of 7/28/16 Hearing IV APP763 
(CD not attached) 

Respondent Exhibit C- Character Letters IV APP764-784 

Respondent Exhibit D- Chronology of Silva Hearings IV APP78S-791 

Respondent Exhibit E- District Court, Family Division IV APP792-840 
Court Minutes 

Respondent Exhibit F - Documentation of Keisha Weiford IV APP841-873 

Respondent Exhibit G- Additional Character Letters IV APP874-879 

Respondent's List of Exhibits IV APP762 

Respondent's Proposed Exhibit B- Information Provided IV APP880-933 
to Family Court Judges Regarding Parental Alienation 
(Not Admitted at Hearing) 

Respondent's Proposed Exhibit C- Character Letters IV APP934-942 
(Not Admitted at Hearing) 

Response to Objection to Respondent's Exhibits, dated II APP298-302 
May 23,2018 

Transcript of Proceedings, dated May 30, 2018 II APP322-499 
III APPSOO-SI4 

Verified Response and Answer, filed October 30, 2017 I APP240-244 
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1 parent's physical custody of a child is a 

2 devastating penalty and it's a devastating sanction. 

3 It wasn't until we received a copy of the 

4 respondent's prehearing brief that we learned the 

5 new defense was, Well, I really didn't hold Ms. 

6 Silva in contempt. And it wasn't until Judge Hughes 

7 testified today that we heard the words "prima 

8 facia" were implied in all of these instances of 

9 finding her in contempt. She said she didn't use 

10 the words "prime facia" because it would confuse a 

11 layperson. 

12 Clearly she could have said the court has a 

13 reasonable basis to believe that Ms. Silva willfully 

14 violated the visitation orders. And judges do have 

15 a responsibility to make their orders clear and 

16 understandable but, instead, we're supposed to now 

17 assume what she meant was something other than what 

18 the order says, and that's makes no sense. 

19 We have at least five instances of the fact 

20 that she said "I find Ms. Silva in contempt. II They 

21 look like real orders, they read like real records, 

22 and they have the effect of real orders. I submit 

23 to you these were real orders. She did find Ms. 

24 Silva in contempt. And that lS consistent with her 

25 answers to interrogatories. She testified -- or I'm 
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1 sorry. She said that in Tab 4, page 55 she was 

2 asked how to explain how her findings of the 
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3 complainant in contempt complies with the NRS and 

4 she explained what NRS 22.01003 deems contempt to be 

5 disobedience or resistance to any lawful writ, 

6 order, rule or process. And then she goes on to 

7 state,J "Ms. Silva willfully violated my orders to 

8 facilitate Mr. Silva's custodial time." 

9 So there was no, I never found her in 

10 contempt, what are you talking about? It was a 

11 clear answer. She was explaining why she found her 

12 in contempt, not that she never did find her in 

13 contempt. 

14 And that is also consistent with the 

15 answers that she gave the investigator. At Tab 14, 

16 page 167, the investigator for the Commission asked, 

17 "Did you find Mother in contempt for failing to 

18 facilitate the visitation? 

19 "Answer: I did," not, Oh, there never was 

20 a finding of contempt. It was just you have to 

21 imply the word "prima facia" and go down that road. 

22 It was a clear answer to a clear question. And then 

23 for her to go on and say, Well, I never really 

24 sanctioned her, again taking away your child that 

25 you had primary physical custody of, you're not just 
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1 giving primary physical custody to the other parent 

2 but to deny contact for four months, that is a 

3 severe penalty for contempt. 

4 And as the Commission well knows, the 

5 Nevada Supreme Court has long held from Dagger to 

6 Sims to Lewis that you cannot use a change of 

7 custody to punish a parent for willful disobedience 

8 of a court order. And although the judge and I 

9 during my examination did not agree, I think it's 

10 clear that the order said that custody is changed. 

11 There was no temporary aspect for a period of time 

12 like four weeks, six weeks, eight weeks. She tried 

13 to say that, Well, because I set another hearing, it 

14 was temporary. But setting of a hearing does not 

15 automatically change the custody to make it a 

16 temporary one. She didn't say, This order shall 

17 continue in effect until the hearing. She said, 

18 Weill have a hearing on it. 

19 So in my mind it was a final order unless 

20 and until the judge changed it. And there's no -

21 there's no distinction with the difference, 

22 basically, between a temporary order and a permanent 

23 order because, until the judge changed the order, it 

24 was going to remain in effect. 

25 I think some of the most telling testimony 
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1 actually came from Judge Hoskin and, essentially, 

2 although we had to rephrase it a few times, it's my 

3 understanding that he said that -- when I asked him, 

4 Is the judge permitted to use a temporary change in 

5 custody as a sword to punish a parent for violating 

6 visitation orders and he said "No," I think that's 

7 exactly what happened. Whether we call it a 

8 temporary or permanent change in custody, there's no 

9 question that Judge Hughes used that sword to punish 

10 her for violating Judge Hughes' visitation orders. 

11 Now, we're not here to evaluate whether or 

12 not the conduct of Ms. Silva justified a change. 

13 We're here to decide did she use that change in 

14 custody as a sword to punish, and I think it's very 

15 clear that that's what occurred. So I think it's 

16 clear that the prosecuting officer has shown by 

17 clear and convincing evidence that Judge Hughes has 

18 violated Count 1 of the formal statement of charges. 

19 Count 2 has to do with the video. The 

20 video, I think, speaks for itself. The defense 

21 suggests that it was the child's emotional breakdown 

22 that was so painful to watch was an act. We heard 

23 all about her acting skills during the examination 

24 by Mr. Terry of the respondent. And the judge also 

25 testified that she was fine during these missing 
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1 nine minutes of tape. 

2 But it's interesting, because her court 

3 clerk said, No, she was upset, and certainly that's 

4 a lot more plausible, I believe, than Judge Hughes' 

5 testimony that she was fine. In any event, I think 

6 the tape speaks for itself. When the realization 

7 hit the child that she was not going to see her mom 

8 and she wasn't even allowed to say goodbye, I think 

9 she had an emotional breakdown, an age-appropriate 

10 emotional breakdown, and I don't think that the 

11 arguments responded to the contrary have any 

12 credibility. 

13 As far as uSlng the term that the place 

14 where she would be taken was something like jail, I 

15 mean, maybe judges could use it in different 

16 circumstances, but In my mind by throwing that 

17 comment In, it was like throwing gas on a fire. You 

18 already had an extremely emotionally upset child and 

19 to throw in the word "jail," I think that's 

20 completely inappropriate. 

21 So I think the evidence lS clear that we 

22 have proven by clear and convincing evidence that 

23 Judge Hughes violated Count 2. There have been some 

24 comments by Respondent's counsel about what needs to 

25 be proven as far as intentional conduct and I think 
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1 the Commission is well aware of the in re fine 

2 decision from 2000. But just to remind the 

3 Commission, the Nevada Supreme Court stated, "We 
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4 have stated the relevant inquiry regarding willful 

5 misconduct is an inquiry into the intentional nature 

6 of the actor's conduct and not whether the actor was 

7 acting out of malice or ill will. The fact that an 

8 actor may have acted with the best intentions does 

9 not relieve the actor of liability. 

10 

11 faith. 

"There's no requirement of a finding of bad 

For acts to be labeled as willful 

12 misconduct, they must simply be a result of the 

13 performer's free will." There's no question that 

14 all of the actions taken by Judge Hughes in this 

15 case were willful under the definition. 

16 The last lssue is what is the appropriate 

17 discipline. I believe that, first and foremost, 

18 Judge Hughes should receive a preliminary reprimand 

19 for her conduct in the Silva matter. I think she 

20 needs to take a class that centers on the 

21 appropriate way to hold a person in contempt and 

22 follow that law. 

23 The final lssue that the Commission may 

24 wish to consider is to impose a fine. And that fine 

25 would be based on whether or not the Commission 
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1 determined that Judge Hughes lacked candor in her 

2 testimony here today. And if the Commission found a 

3 true lack of candor, then I think a fine of $2,500 

4 would be appropriate. Thank you. 

5 JUDGE STOCKARD: Mr. Terry? 

6 MR. TERRY: Thank you. 

7 Ladies and gentlemen of the Commission, 

8 first of all, we appreciate your allowing us to 

9 present our side of the story. We asked you to wait 

10 until you've heard all the evidence. In actuality 

11 when the special prosecutor put Judge Hughes on the 

12 stand, we were able to bring in all the evidence. 

13 We also asked you to watch the acts, not just of 

14 Judge Hughes, but of the father and the mother in 

15 this case. 

16 One of the things we'll ask you to remember 

17 lS who speaks for the father in this situation? You 

18 understand that that video was emotional. We 

19 understand that it's hard on a judge to say, You go 

20 with the parent you don't want to go to because I 

21 think it's in your best interest to do that, based 

22 upon the totality of what I've heard. 

23 The pink elephant in this case, so to 

24 speak, is whether or not you believe that judge used 

25 actions in changing custody as a punishment. Judge 
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1 Hughes and both Judge Hoskin and Judge Steel 

2 indicated this. Judge Hughes could have changed 

3 custody without any type of contempt. All she had 

4 to find was that it was in the best interest of the 

5 minor child. 

6 But the special prosecutor seems to harp on 

7 the fact that, merely because the word II contempt II 

8 was used, that it had to have been a punishment. It 

9 was not a punishment and the facts do not belie 

10 that. 

11 When I asked you to wait until the totality 

12 of this case was in, what youlve learned is Ms. 

13 Silva did nothing to accommodate and to comply with 

14 the orders. Some of her actions were subtle, like 

15 driving the minor child to the place where the 

16 reunification was supposed to occur but then telling 

17 her she didnlt have to get out of the car if she 

18 didnlt want to. 

19 I would suggest to you respectfully that, 

20 even in a case where a parent doesnlt necessarily 

21 believe that the child should be with the other 

22 parent, that that parent has a duty and a 

23 responsibility based on the best interest of the 

24 minor child to say, You may not want to do this, but 

25 I think that itls important that you have a 
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1 relationship with your father. 

2 The father in this case did everything 

3 right. He filed the motions. We start with the 

4 testing situation. Mom violated the original decree 

5 of divorce by removing the child from the private 

6 school and putting her into homeschooling without 

7 even meeting the criteria of what homeschooling was 

8 for. If anybody was looking for the best interest 

9 of this minor child besides Judge Hughes, it was the 

10 natural father. 

11 So when you look at the totality of the 

12 circumstances, you see a progression of approach on 

13 behalf of Judge Hughes. It's not at the first 

14 hearing in February of 2015 that she grants the 

15 motion for change of custody or expands it. And if 

16 you look closely, there's even a point in time when 

17 she takes the visitation rights away from Dad until 

18 there's a further showing by Donna's House of 

19 convincing her that there is a good effort to try to 

20 get reunification. 

21 It's only when Donna's House confirms what 

22 th~ other counselors have confirmed and what now is 

23 Judge Hughes' belief on the parental alienation that 

24 Judge Hughes does what she does, but she doesn't --

25 she does it in the best interest of the minor child. 
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1 Family court judges aren't there for popularity. 

2 They're there because the standard is you have to do 

3 the things that are best for the child even if the 

4 child doesn't agree, even if the other parent 

5 doesn't agree. 

6 Judge Hughes called it a third-party 

7 beneficiary. The minor child went with the father. 

8 Maybe the use of the term "jail" was inappropriate, 

9 but she's not before you for sanctioning for using 

10 the term inappropriate. She's in front of you 

11 because the special prosecutor believes that she 

12 used as a punishment the change of custody. I want 

13 to remind you she had set at that same procedure an 

14 order to show cause. 

15 At the order to show cause she didn't find 

16 Ms. Silva in contempt for the reasons that my 

17 colleague indicated at the proceeding before. So, 

18 again, if you look at the totality of the 

19 circumstances and you ask yourself if you're 

20 going to be a judge, you have to make a decision. 

21 Sometimes those decisions aren't pleasant. 

22 Sometimes we get ridiculed for them. But sometimes 

23 you have to make a decision that's in the best 

24 interest of, in this case, the minor child. 

25 Interesting to note is that by the time 
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1 they went back to court for the order to show cause, 

2 there was a stipulation by the parties that the 

3 custodial situation with some minor adjustments 

4 could remain the same. The minor was put into 

5 public school, she was tested. In whose best 

6 interest was that? Not Mom's. Not Dad's. Dad was 

7 the one that was paying for all this. Mother used 

8 the excuse of, I can't afford it. 

9 On situations like this oftentimes there's 

10 not a cost factor that's involved. Remember the 

11 issue of the sale of the house. The house hadn't 

12 been sold. There was finances that were going to 

13 come out of that. So sometimes we look for excuses. 

14 The biggest excuse In this case was, My daughter 

15 doesn't want to do it. 

16 And there was a constant warning by Judge 

17 Hughes, I'm going to hold you in contempt if you 

18 don't do this, I'm going to hold you in contempt if 

19 you don't do this, not just on the change of custody 

20 issue and the parental alienation, but on the other 

21 lssues that were in front of her. 

22 Judge Hughes did the unpopular thing. She 

23 brought the minor child In so that she could explain 

24 why the necessity. And there was no argument that 

25 it is inappropriate to not have the video running. 
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1 To the contrary! Judge Hughes gave you her 

2 explanation why she didn't want it videoed! for fear 

3 it would get into some type of social media-type 

4 situation! and she was correct in that. Our job is 

5 to protect the mlnors. In this hearing! other than 

6 mistakes, we haven't called the minor anything other 

7 than "the subject minor." 

8 We are a protective society when it comes 

9 to our youth, but sometimes the judge has to 

10 exercise that discretion in a way that the minor 

11 child doesn't want. But if the judge feels that 

12 it's in the best interest of the minor child! you 

13 appeal it. You cannot be held for wrongdoing if 

14 there's an appellate process! and no appeal was done 

15 in this case. To the contrary, there was a 

16 stipulation. 

17 Now, you know what your rules are as well 

18 as I do! okay? And I'm not going to harp on what 

19 the burden of proof is! although it's clear and 

20 convincing evidence, and respectfully to the special 

21 prosecutor, they haven't shown by clear and 

22 convincing evidence that the change of custody was a 

23 punishment. They haven't shown by clear and 

24 convincing evidence that she violated any of the 

25 rules that are set forth in rule -- in Cause of 
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1 Action No.1 or Cause of Action No.2, not by clear 

2 and convincing evidence. 

3 If you find she made a legal mistake, that 

4 lS not something that she should be sanctioned for. 

5 That is not a finding of a violation of the rule. 

6 Every judge -- and I say this respectfully -- makes 

7 a mistake periodically. You get reversed by an 

8 appellate court, you get reversed by the supreme 

9 court, the law changes at a later point in time, the 

10 legislature steps in and makes a change. That 

11 doesn't mean you were acting in bad faith. 

12 And I understand that bad faith isn't the 

13 only issue you have here, but was there a willful 

14 violation of Ms. Silva's rights? No. She had the 

15 opportunity leading up to that hearing and she would 

16 have had the opportunity at the show cause hearing 

17 and, respectfully, it wasn't four months. That 

18 hearing was set before the four-month period of 

19 time. 

20 So with that, we would ask that you find 

21 that the charges in the complaint filed by the 

22 special prosecutor are dismissed. We appreciate 

23 your time. 

24 JUDGE STOCKARD: Thank you. I'd like to 

25 just express, I think, on behalf of both counsel for 
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1 their professional manner in which they presented 

2 their respective cases. We will now retire to our 

3 deliberations and we'll be in recess. 

4 MR. TERRY: Mr. Chairman, may I inquire. I 

5 know the rules allow for it, if you ask for it. We 

6 would be happy to submit briefs, if you want. If 

7 you don't, then I understand. 

8 JUDGE STOCKARD: I think under our rules I 

9 think we won't -- within five days we can request 

10 it, and I think right now I don't think there's any 

11 inclination to request it. I think we'd like to 

12 begin our deliberations. 

13 MR. TERRY: Okay. 

14 JUDGE STOCKARD: Thank you. 

15 MR. BRADLEY: Can we have five minutes to 

16 get our stuff out? 

17 JUDGE STOCKARD: Of course. 

18 (End of proceedings at 1:36 p.m.) 

19 -000-

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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1 STATE OF NEVADA 

2 ss. 

3 COUNTY OF WASHOE 

4 

5 I, CHRISTINA MARIE AMUNDSON, a Certified Court 

6 Reporter in and for the states of Nevada and 

7 California, do hereby certify: 

8 That I was personally present for the purpose 

9 of acting as Certified Court Reporter in the matter 

10 entitled herein; 

11 That said transcript which appears hereinbefore 

12 was taken in verbatim stenotype notes by me and 

13 thereafter transcribed into typewriting as herein 

14 appears to the best of my knowledge, skill, and 

15 ability and is a true record thereof. 

16 

17 DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 7th day of June 2018. 

18 

19 

20 Christina Marie Amundson, CCR #641 

21 000-

22 

23 

24 

25 
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NEVADA COMMISSION ON JUD!CIAL DISCIPLINE 

VERIFIED STATEMENT OF COMPLAiNT 
(Please Cft~8riy TYPE: Or P(1fj[ AI! ReGtnred fnf0rrnat~on; 

Part I: General Information 

Date: La· tq . IC. () 

Name of Person Compieting This Fom1: .... .1a;...;~:;:;,..:;.~.1 l..::.:::r-'-I ...... U .... 'i ....... _""S.......,t .... l_\t"". f"",' ~ ..... ___________ _ 

t 

Daytime Telephone: ffo L- ) 4.(...,0. '1L{'3, '& Email: ~1S k-rBY/ C3L ,\-ku-q:':fnl,.-. C:..Dt ___ 

Part II: .§!:!ecific Information Regardinq ComlJiaint 

Name of Nevada judicial Officer (Only One Name Per Complaint Foml): ~t l-J,~ ~ '-\ C6-+-\E,5 

Name of Court or Judicia! District Involved: E:( G-h.\~-!. ==SUl>)C,hhi&-J<l~ - F·#I.:.~ \ '--'1 CtJLlI<-{' 

Case Number (Please Include Ail Letters and Numbers): V - l 2. - :J L -=1 '6 '2 0 - :D 

When and where did the alleged misconduct or disability occur? 

Date: b· &. {(.,. 

Date: t, .,5'"', (Co 

Time: Z: ~o 'PI"'- Location C!...o'-'<~b. Lf - Ceo t ~ :JrE.cof 

Time: I : ~39J?t:...:.,.. Location <!.cu~\-"o- i:j - \..:01 ~. J?1;C,o';) 

This Case Is (Select One): /Pending In Trial Court 2::SPn Appeal _Not Pending or Closed 

Nature of Complaint (Select One): ./ I have attached my O'lm explanation page(s) 
L I have used the standard Complaint Form 

Revised Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct Secfion(sj Violated. If Known [(Example: Canon 38(4)]: 

! hereby acknowledge the following agreements and/or ',,'aivers: 

consent to lnvestioate. I expressly authorize the Commission on Judicial Discipline (Commfsslon-J. staff 
and contractors. to investigate my complaint and take any and all actions, including lntervie!Ning any relevant 
"!itness(es) or request by subpoena Of other"!ise any documentary evidence and to verify the statements t 
have made herein to be true and correct (or if stated to be on information and belief. that the statements are 
beHeved in good faith to be true and correctl. I agree to promptly supp~ement and amend this complaint if 1 
iearn that the facts ! have alleged are materially incorrect I understand that deliberately misstating the truth 
of any material fact CQuid SUbject me to various sanctions inciuding. but not fimited to, dismissal of my 
compfaint contempt or a separate action for perjury. 
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Part ill Obligations of Complainant (Continued) 

Full Cooperation. I agree to fully cooperate with the Commission, staff and its designated contractors with 
regard to my complaint. I understand that even if I wish to withdraw my complaint that the Commission retains 
independent grounds to pursue it and that the information contained within and attached to the complaint 
becomes the property of the Commission and the Commission may pursue the complaint even if I seek to 
withdraw it I understand that all documents submitted became the property of the Commission and 
wlli not be returned. 

A[lpeai Waminq. [understand that the Commission, its staff and contractors are not an appeliate court and 
that my filing of a complaint does not stay or stop any time I am provided to appeal a decision I disagree with 
or any decision that adversely affects me. I understand that i must timely file an appeal to preserve those 
rights. I acknowledge that filing a complaint with the Commission does not and cannot preserve those rights. 

Legal Advice. ! understand that the Commission, its Commissioners, Commission staff, investigators and 
contractors are precluded from giving me !egal advice regarding my case or actions! should be taking in my 
case and ! understand that should I require advice I win seek appropriate assistance apart from the 
Commission, Commissioners, Commission staff, investigators and contractors. 

Part IV: Attachments 

Relevant documents: Please attach any relevant documents which you believe directly support your claim 
that the judge has engaged in judicial misconduct or has a disability. Highlight or otherwise identify 
those sections that you rely on to support your claim. Do not include documents which do not directly 
support your complaint, for example, a copy of your complete court case. Keep a copy of aU documents 
submitted for your records as they become the property of the Commission and wiil not be returned. 

Part V: Signature and Verification of Complaint 

After being duly swam, I state under penalty of perjury that I am the above-referenced complainant whose 
name appears in Part ! and who submitted this complaint. I know the contents thereof; and the matters 
set forth in this complaint are true and correct based upon my own knowledge, except as to matters stated 
to be on infonnatian and belief, and those matters are believed to be true and correct. I request that the 
conduct set forth above or referenc..oci in the attachments and exhibits provided with the complaint be 
investigated by the Nevada Commission on Judicial Discipline. 

Signature of Complainant 

How Do J Submit My Complaint? Where Can I Obtain Additional Ass;stance? This complaint, along with 
any supporting materials, should be sent by maii to the: Nevada Commission on Judicial Discipline, 
P.O. Box 48, Carson City, Nevada 89702. If you have questions regarding the completion of this form, 
please contact the Commission on JUdicial Discipline at (775) 6874011. in addition, if you have access to 
t18 inteme~ or can obtain access at a local library or other facility, the Commission's web site located at 
http://judlclal.state.nv.us and provides additional information to help you prepare your complaint. The 
web site also includes the full and current text of the Revised Nevada Code of Judlciai Conduct and other 
laws, statutes and rules governing the CommiSSion. 

APP516 Hughes 000002 



COMMISSION EXHIBIT 2 Page000003 

CO V\GJ L h \ w---C-

On June 10, 2016 I received a letter in the mail which had errors by the Judge. I 
have attached a copy and notated errors. It informed me to bring Annie to the 
courthouse or I would be thrown in jail for 25 days. I was very much hoping the 
judge would FINALLY listen to my child and protect her. I was wrong. 
On June 15, 2016 Annie and I went in to court along with her father and his 
counsel. I had no representation because her father, Rogerio Silva has refused 
to pay child support or alimony for more than 6 months and never reimbursed me 
for Annie's medical/dental bills. That has been conveniently ignored. I stated my 
name for the record and then we were all, except for Annie asked to leave. She 
had no child advocate or attorney present. You will have to watch the video to 
see the extreme abuse of discretion committed by Judge Rena Hughes. After 
about 3 minutes, the bailiff came into the hall and stated he was to lIescort the 
mother off the property. fl As you can see on the video, Rogerio and his counsel 
go back in the court room and more questionable actions and over reaching of 
power take place. 
At this time all my parental rights have been stripped without any evidence of 
abuse on my part. Further more the US Dept of Justice cites: Saunderts study 
shows removing a child from the attached parent is a uharmful outcomel! and 
always wrong. 
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STANDARD COMPLAiNT FORM (STATEMENT OF FACTS) 

The following is my expianation as to why the judicial officer named in this complaint has violated the 
Revised Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct or suffers from a disability. 

Please identify yourself as [select one]: ( 1a litigant; [] a witness or interested party; or [ 1 a member 
of the general public who witnessed or viewed this conduct (but not otherwise involved). 

The following are the specific facts and circumstances which you believe constitute misconduct or disability 
(please be as specific as possible about the event(s) or action(s) and attach additional pages, if necessary): 

l 

f have [select one]: [ } appealed the judge'S decision 
f./fnot decided to appeal the decision yet 

(Revised 12128/2Q15) 
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O-12-467820-D 

Divorce - Com lairtt 

D-12-467820-D 

DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

COURT MINUTES 

Welthy Silva, Plaintiff 
vs. 

June 08, 2016 2:30 PM Minute Order 

~une 08,2016 

HEARD BY; Hughes, Rena G. COlJ"RTROOM: Courtroom ()4 

COURT CLERK: Tiffany Skaggs 

PARTIES: 
Annie Silva, Subject Minor, not present 
Rogerio Silva, Defendant, Counter Oaimantl Lesley Cohen, Attorney, not present 
not present 
Welthy Silva, Plaintiff, Counter Defenda.'1t, not Pro Se 
present 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

- Per Judge Hughes 

NRCP 1 and EDCR 1.10 state that the procedure in district courts shall be administered to 5eCUl'e 
efficient, speedy, and inexpensive determinations in every action. Pursuant to BDCR 2.23(c) and 
S.ll(e), this Court can consider a motion and issue a decision on the papers at any time without a 
hearing. Further, pursuant to EDCR 220(cJ, this Cou .... ;: can grant the :requested relief if there is no 
opposition timely filed. 

This Court has read and considered the Cll..1"l'ent underlying pleadi.'1gs in this matter. 

This case has a lengthy, troubled history. Since the parties divorce an April 26, 2013, they have been 
before f4i8 Court no less than 9 times, primarily on Father s motions to enforce his rights of custody 
and visitation, and regarding his objection to the :minor child ( Annie) being home schooled by 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 Page 1 ofS :Minutes Date: June 08, 2016 

Notice: Journal. entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official. record of the Court. 
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~ 
Mother. The parties are also disputing the handling of the I-ffiLOC account after divorce. 

The Decree of Divorce granted the parties joint legal, and Mother pTimary physical custody of the 
minOT child, Annie. Father s visitation period was weekly from Saturday at 11:00 a.m. to Monday at 
10:00 a.m.. 
In April 2014, Father filed a motion to have Annie tested to dete:rmine her educational level, and to 
~~~ placed ir"!-.-E?blic ~oo~ Mother was home schooling .Annie over Eather s objection, and 

(' aIlegedl y in violation of the joint legal custodial provisiOns of the Decree of Divorce. A hearing did 
\e0t take place on this motion, because counsel for Father failed to file a valid proof of service. 
7: \-t£ c.c~'S,c\-"--\--c-:e'0 \0 Ht,(>'(LS:C&--rD0LL/'J(;; tO~ '3 \{gA::'TL"S V\Vb12-Q, 
r In January 2015, Father filed a second motion for academic testing, to have Annie pJaced in public 
\ school! to modify child custody to p:rimary to Father, and enforce the Decree of Divorce with respect 
I to.the HEWC. The Decree ordered Mother to refinance or sell the former marital residence because 
~ther S name is on me HELOC. Father :requested a change in custody based on Mother s decision to 
home school .A.nnie;mthO"..lt his consent Fath~Jthat when he objected to Mother about the 
home schooling, she denied him visitation.. At the hearing in February 2015, the parti~ were ordered 
to mediation to address Father s visitation, and tor a child interview. It was alleged that Annie did 
not vvish to visit, with Father. \ N E \f 51:?- '""bi5i'· •. H~ u \ -\ U-'- \l t S rrr"",l a~ - , 

N 01 'IfU-l~ - ~~\..l\"b \"L~fu~-eD 
In or around A pril2015 f Mother began with.l-tolding the mJnor chiId!'aUIing' Father s custodial time. -rD bO. 

In May 2015, Father called the police to assist hlm in facilitating his visitation, and Mother rclusedto 
tum over the child. - ~ ~-",q ts S'P D ¥:-G to \T *1. ~t:>L' c.. t. (') F ~ l C.3!_ Ie:... ~ \-\-t., \L "'S t::,L-1"=" 

The parties stipulated in JuI Y 2015 to reunification therapy for Father and Annie. The Court ordered 
reunification therapy with Keisha Weiiord andFather to bear the cost. The Court also ordered 
Mother to have math testing perfo:rm....oJ, and that Father would have compensatory time over the 
summer break The Court .further ordered the parties to provide a history of the HELOC payments 
and the current balance, 

Keisha Weiford provided reports in early JuI y and August 2015, Womrlng the Court that Father met 
,t" with her for reunification therapy and paid an fees. In July 2015, Mother arrived for theinitiaI: :.. 312-"'"1::>~?T': 

, s>0 appointment,. but did not leave the parking lot,. alleging Annie would not get out of the Ca!. Keism : r XV ~ eiford went to meet Mother and Annie in the parking lot and spoke: to them.. Ms. 1AT ei£ol'd spoke 
~ (ti~ith Annie andca1medher ~ but then J\.1other ended the conversation by stating that Annie was .. 1) \1> 

:p(V too stressed to go forward with the appointment. Mother reiterated that Annie does not want to N~~ \ 
l ~ meet with her rather. Ms. Wei£ord also reported that Mother called days prior to the fust \ .. U~;Y ~ ~ 

~~ 'v V appointment and told her Annie did not want to come to the appointment or was unwilling to get in 'e 
'/J.:f/ ,{the Ca!. Mother wanted to know if Annie could ten:ninate the :reunification session if Father started ~~;:~ 
~'J ~ cY "to lie in session. Father met with Ms. Weiford and :reported that /\nme was upset with him for -to "(~\L­
~cf .4/.m ving her tested, and for questioning her home schooling. \~. WeifOl'd contacted Mother again and ,\:>v\.,"C 
~ ~ > ~o G 0- tL TH\1-\CQS· D 
~ PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 Page 2 of 5 Vunut:es Date: June 08, 2016 I ~\.5:> 
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requested she bring Annie to meet with her rather for reunification. Mother stated to Ms. Wei£ord 
that Annie was not willing to meet with her Father because she did not wa."1.t to be around his 
negative energy. Arune agreed to meet with Ms. Weiford individmilly. 

The following is an excerpt from Ms. Weiford report of the July 8, 2015 meeting wit..~ Annie. 
Annie definitely displayed irritation "vith me at our meeting. She reported she told me at the 
beginning of our p:revious session that she did not wartt to be reunified, with her Dad. I asked her i£ 
Mom explained to her that evert though she told me that I would still need to meet with her and Dad. 
Annie reported that her mother did not explain that to her because her mother did not understand 
why I could not take her ".roTd only. Annie reported to me frr.at she was not joking, and did not wa..>1t 
to be reunified. She reported that anyone that knows her is aware that she does not give second 
cha.'1.ces and she has already giV€.l. .. her Dad too many chances. She reported that the only reason that ,-\oJ 
her Dad is pushing for this reunLfication is becau...c:e he likes drama. \. u ~ "t:. ....,. .. ,..v. Y l:: 

~Gf"'- '"""'~" .,." .-:,....,v Y...At..< 
Iv ~~ <..~". 

Ms. Weiford reported I am having a hard time distingmshlttg what were thecproblems fu the ~::;('¢"" -..f-... \\.'i!; 
\.J,....f.. ,,-"'" u~ 

maniage and_what are tb.eproblerns in the pa:rent-chlldxelationship .It seems very much. inte:rtwi.'1ed, \" 'b " "" ~ . 
with Mom s relatiooship with Dad. I am concerned with the possible enmeshment that Annie and "I?~' 
Mom might have. WiS. Welford recommended Mother get behind the reunification and share the 
financiall'esponsibility of Iet..m.ification therapy. Father paid Ms. Weiford a total of $l)jOO.OO for 
reunification therapy that never occurred. Ms. WeifOl'd then canceled the remaining reunification 
appointments. 

In October 2015, the Court issued ru .. Order to Show Cause agair.st Mother for not following b'1.e Court 
s Order to engage in reunification therapy, and O!'dered :reurdfication therapy to continue. The Court 
further ordered the parties to equally divide the cost of therapy for the previous sessions, and for 
Mother to pay for all futul'e sessions. 
Mother terminated the reunification with Ms. "-'V elford, reporting that finances were an issue .. and 
A..-rmie was done. 
Bef:O!'e terrninating the reunification therapy, Ms. Weiford conducted three (3) sessions with Father 
and An..'1ie. According to Ms. Wei£ord s reprnt of November 2, 2015, Ar.nie was tearful at first, but by 
the time of the second session! she was comfortable with her Father and played games with hLm. 
An.Tl.ie left the second session cheerful. BetO!'e starting the third session, Annie told Ms. 1-VeifOl'd" she 
did not want to be :reunified a.'1d did not want to have a relationship with her father. 

Ms. WcifOl'd had authority to contact Annie s therapist and received a report that .Annie did not 
report abuse" neglect;. or any oI'l1er issues with her father concerning safety and weI£are. In Ms. 
Vleiford s opinio~ h"'le issues between. An..me and her Father had mOTe to. do with tris conflicts with 
her Mother than with .his personal relationship with her. Ms. Weifard further opined that Mother 
was creating the rift between Father and j'mme, because Anrde s thonghtsappeared to. be those o.ther 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 PageS ofS :Minutes Date: June 08, 2016 
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MotheIj from her difficult relationship with Father. 

In January 2016, &,e Court issued an Order to Show Cause against Plaintiff fOT having violated the 
Court s Orders of May 5, 2015, July 21, 2015, October 7,2015, and January 5, 2016 to have the child 
subjected to standardized testing for math proficiency. Further, bec:an.se Mother was no!: facilitating 
reunification therapy, the Court ordered visitation exchanges occur at Donna s House, so the 
exchanges could be observed}' and a report to the Court generated. Visitation was ordered far 25 
hours on dates certain throug:b.out FebIuary 2016, with eventual overnights at the end of February, to 
take place each week. On February 16,2016, Donna s Hoose reported that the parties completed the 
orientation process .. but Annie r&'Used to go with her Father for visitation, and they canceled future 
exchanges. 

-(; 
The Court then issued a referral Order for Outsourced Evaluation Se1'vices with daudia Schwarz on ."S (Ji 

February 28, 2016. Ear-...h party was ordered to pay one half of Ms. Schwarz fees. On March I, 2016, cT ..>-.::! j 
Ms. Schwarz reported to the Court thatFathe:r was in compliance with the Court s order and was (\)0 fl.';; ""'~ 
ready to begin services, however, Mother contacted her and explained she cannot pay fur services a1f ~4! 
this time. Because Mother could not pay for services, the Court AGAIN ordered child rusted y -<,0~ 1,,- ~ 
exchanges to resume, at Donna s Housef as previously ordered. The Court FURTIIER ,,1. ,): .4 t.J 
ADMONISHED Mother that if she did not encouratY( andJ!tcilitate the exchanges on weekends,' E Y ..-.6"" 
Annie would spend the entire summer with Father, Mother may be held in contempt.. and.further 0-0 
san~ons could issue ~gainst her. ,Mother brought A."1T~~to Donna s 1!rm.se jor the exchange and 0 IJ(v 
Anmerefused to go WIth Father. N0--;:- '"'\f"dA"E. - l M\>v.""\::, ~ ""=F12-lct-ll¥ \!\~ h.\-\~\E; ~o 

-re:> r u~-\--t·tS~ "r-j),. c..i L \~ ~,-.1; {r \l \ 'S cct",,-n Q \....!... ,"9-"'" 
This Court FINDS that Mother has failed to facilitate Father s visitation with Annie. Because Mother 
has failed to facilitate visitation with Father, she has violated his parental rights and the orders of this 
CO"..rrt. Mother was advised at the last court hearing that if she did not compel the minor child to visit 
with Father on weekends, the child would spend the entire summer with Father. 

Based upon the l'easons stated above: IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

This Court finds that Plaintiff is in contempt of the Court s order to facilitate visitation on weekends 
with the Father, AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE SHALL ISSUE. 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is also issued against Plaintiff for not complying with the Court s 
orders to refinance the HELOCf on the former marital residence, 01' in the alte:mati vel to have it sold. 

AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE is further issued agai.:nst Plaintiff for not having A"1nie tested for 
Math proficiency in a timely manner as o:rdered by the Court. 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 Page4of5 Minutes Date: June 08,2016 
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Mother shall bring the nun.or child to Dept. J, Court roorn. #4, on Jlli"1e 15, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. If Mother 
tails to deliver the minor c:hlld to the courtroom on June 15, 2016, she shall be deemed in further 
contempt or Court, and sentenced to nIVenty-five (25) days incarceration. If Mother taiTs to appear, a 
bench warrant shall issue. 

The Order to Shm\' CalL<:e hearing shall be scheduled for July 28, 2Gl6 at 1:30 p.m. The Status Oteck, 
set for July 28, 2016, at 10:00 am, shan hereby, be VACATED. I 

Counsel for Defendant shall prepare an Order consiste.'1t with this Cou,.'1 minute, and the Orders to 
Show Cause. 

Oerkls note, a COPYI of todals minute ord er was rnailed, to Plamtitf and plac:ed, ir, COUl1sePs folder, at 
Family Court. 

PRINT DATE: 06/08/2016 PageS or5 IVIinutes Date: June 08, 2016 
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Re: Silva v. Silva Case No. 0-12-467820-D 

Dear Judge Hughes: 

Your court has all pre trial memorandum. in those papers you will find 
proof as to my financial situation caused by defendant refusing to pay 
child support and reimbursement of medical/dental bills. I will gladly pay 
Ms. Claudia Schwartz when and if Rogerio Silva pays me. 

Sincerely, 
Welthy Silva 
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1-
(For CommIssion Use Only) 

COMMISSIDN CASE NO __ ~ ____ _ 

NEVADA COMMISSION ON JUDICIAL DISCIPLINE 

VERIFIED STATEMENT OF COMPLAINT 
(Ple£lse Cle8Jiy Type or Pnnt 411 RequmKi Informaliolll 

Date: ')\\S '\ \ \JJ 
\ 

Part f: ~eneral Information 

Name of Person Completing This Form: 

go ;;t n \ 

Part II: Specific Information Regarding Complaint 

Name of Nevada Judi,", Officer (Only one, Nam: Paf Compiaint F",",;: .K r lJ Q., & : ){ ':'~ ~S , t 
Name of Court or Judicial DI,mc"nvoived: \;;:. I t1 b t -:s '-l a \ C \ 6 \ "'\:;~S"\Y-I "- Leu, 

Case Number {Please Include All Letters and Numbers): 'b \ d Y (0:1 X d-~ 
When and w\n~~ d\id ~e. alleged miscondUC~Q~abilitY occu~~ , \J C ! 1 

Date: to" Vr .J t \ vYime: () L\D \ \ location l,.l Cd ~ _ D\HJ ~ 
Date: Time: location 

This Case Is (Select One): _F'ending In Trial Court _On Appeal _Not Pending or Closed 

Nature of Complaint (Select One): 0have attached my own explanation pagels) 
_ I have used the standard Complaint Form 

Revised Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct Section(s) Violated, If Known [(Example: Canan 38(4)]: 

Part HI: Ob!lggtjorl§ Qf ~9m!;JiaimlOt 

I hereby acknov-1edge the fcl!o'Mng agreements and/or waivers: 

Consent to Investigate, i expressly aLrthorize the Commission on Judlclai Discipline rCommlsslon"), staff 
and contractors. to iI1Vestlgaie my complaint and take any and all actions, inducting Interviewing any relsvant 
wltnass(es} or requesl by subpoena or otherwise any documentary • .>Vldence and to vettry the statements I 
have made herein to be !rue afld cQrrset (or If stated 10 be on Information end belief, that the statements arn 
believed In good raith to be trUE! Bnd correct). \ agree to promptly supplement and amend this compla!nt If t 
learn ltiat the facts I havs alleged are mater1afly tncnrract. ! understand thai delfberately mISstating the truth 
of any material fact couk! subject me to varlous sanctions Indudlng, but not limited to. dismissal of my 
complaint. contemp1 or a separate action for perjury. 
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Part III Obligations of Complainant (Continued) 

Full Cooperation, I agree (0 funy cooperate with the Commission, staff ar\d its designated contractors with 
regard to my complaint I understand that even if I wish to withdraw my complaint that the Commission retains 
independent giOunds to pursue it and that the information contained within and attached to the complaint 
becomes the property of the Commission and the Commission may pursue the complaint even if I seek to 
withdraw it. I understand that all documenis submitted become the property of the Commission and 
wi!l not be returned, 

Appeal Warning, I understand that the Commission, its slaff and contractors are not an appellate court and 
that my filing of a complaint does not stay or stop any time I am provided to appeal a decision I disagree with 
Of any decision that adversely affects me, I understand that I must timely file an appeal to preserve those 
rights, I acknowledge that filing a complaint with the Commission does not and cannot preserve those rights. 

Legal Advice, I understand that the Commission, its Commissioflers, Commission staff, investigators and 
contractors are precluded from giving me legal advice regarding my case or actions I should be taking in my 
case and I understand that should I require advice I will seek appropriate assistClnce apalt from the 
Commission, Commissioners, Commission staff, investigators and contractors. 

Part IV: Attachments 

Relevant documents: Please attach any relevant documents which you believe directly support your claim 
that the judge has engaged In judicial misconduct or has a disability. Highlight or otherwise identify 
those sections that you rely on to support your claim. Do not include documents which do not directly 
support your complaint. for example, a copy of your complete court case. Keep a copy of all documents 
subm itted for your records as they become the property of the Commission and will not be returned. 

Part V: Signature and Verification of CompJaint 

Signature of Complainant 

How Do ! Submit My Complaint? Where Can I Obtain Additional Assistance? This complaint. along with 
any supporUng materials, should be sent by mail 10 the: Nevada Commission 011 Judicial Discipline, 
P.O. BOK 48, Carson City, Nevada 89702, If you have questions regarding the completion of this form, 
please contact the Commission on Judicial Discipline at (775) 687-4017. In addition, if you have access to 
the internet, or can obtain access at a 10cal librarj or other facility, the Commission'il web site located at 
http://judicialostate.nv.us and provides additional information to help you prepare your complaint. The 
web site also includes the full and current text of the Revised Nevada Code of JUdicial Conduct and other 
laws, statutes and rules governing the Commission, 
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STANDARD COMPLAINT FORM (ST ATEMENT OF FACTS) 

The following is my explanation as to why the judicial officer named in this complaint has violated the 
Revised Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct or suffers from a disability. 

Please identify yourself as [seJect one): [ 1 a litigant; r] a \\~tness or interested party; orA I a member 
of the general public who witnessed or viewed this conduct (but not otherwise involved). 

The foltowing are the specifiC facts and circumstances which you bell eve constttute misconduct or disabilfty 
{please be as specific as possible about the event(s} or action(s) and attach additional pages, if necessary): 

I have [select one]: } appealed the judge~ decision 
J not decided to appeal the decision yet 

Attach Additional Pages as Necessary 

(Revised 12128l20; 5) 
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Judge Rena Hughes Judicia! Discipilne Commission 

1) The Judge had ex-parte comnlunlcation without the 
presents of the mother whom was representing 
herself. Rule 2.9, Ex Parte Communications, 

(A) Ajudge shall not initiate, pennit, Of consider ex parte conummJcations, or 
consider other communjcations made to the judge outside the presence of the parties or 
their lavvyers, concerning a pending or impending matter, except as follows: 

(1) \Vhen circumstances require it, ex parte c0I11rrnmication for scheduling, 
administrative, or emergency purposes, which does not address substantive matters, is 
pennitted, provided: 

(a) the judge reasonably believes that no party will gain a procedural, 
substantive, or tactical ad·vantage as a result of the ex parte communication; and 

(b) the judge makes provision promptly to notify all other parties of the 
substance of the ex parte communication 8..Tld gives the parties an opportUIlity to respond. 

(2) A judge may obtain the \,vritten advice of a disinterested expert on the law 
applicable to a proceeding before the judge, if the judge gives advance notice to the 
parties of the person to be consulted and the subJect matter of the advice to be solicited, 
and affords the parties a reasonable opportunity to object and respond to the notice and to 
the advice received. 

(3) A judge may consult with court staff ffild COUIi offic.ials whose functions are to 
aid the judge in carrying out the judge's adjudicative responsibilities, or ·with other 
judges, provided the judge makes reasonable efforts to avoid receiving factual 
information that is not part of the record, and does not abrogate the responsjbility 
personally to decide the matter. 

(4) A judge may, '-¥lth the consent of the parties, confer separately with the parties 
and their lawyers in an ef:tort to settJ.e matters pending before the judge. 

(5) A judge may initiate, permit, or consider uny ex parte communication "vhen 
authorized by law to do so. 

(B) [f a judge inadvertently receives an unauL~orized ex parte communication 
bearing upon the substance of a matter, the judge shall make provision promptly to notify 
the parties of the substance of the commu..1lication and provide the parties with an 
opportunity to respond. 
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(C) A judge shall not investigate facts in a matter independently, and shall consider 
only the evidence presented and any facts that may properly be judicially noticed. 

(0) Ajudge shall make reasonable efforts, including providing appropriate 
supervision, to ensure that this Rule is not violated by court stru.-'f, Cotrrt officials, and 
others subject to the judge's direction and control. 

2) Judge interviewed child without legal representation or 
advocate. ~c~,~~~ ___ ~ _____ ~~~~.~~ ___________ ~~ __ 

3) The Judge ordered the mother to leave the courthouse while 
leaving the Father and his attorney in the courtroom. 
(Violating Rule 7.50) 

4) The Judge never asked the child ('why didn't she want to live 
with dadH? (9 minutes of the video is missing) 

5) The Judge committed perjury) lied to the child and said "if 
you don't go with dad I will send you to Child Haven it's not 
fun they will put you in a holding cell. (NRS 199.120) 

NRS 199.120 Definition; penalties. A person, having taken a Im:vfu1 oath or 
made affirmation in a judicial proceeding or in any other matter where, by law, an oath or 
affirmation is required and DO otl1er penalty is prescribed, who; 

1. Willfully makes an unqualified statement of that which the person does not kno\\' 
to be true; 

2. Swears or affimls \villful1y and falsely in a matter material to the issue or point in 
question; 

3. Suborns any other person to make such an unqualitled statement or to swear or 
affiITn in such a manner; 

Executes an affidavit pursuant to ~=-=-:"~c.:"- which contains a false statement, 
or suborns any oLher person to do so; or 

5. E.xecutes an affidavit or other instrument which contains a false statement before 
a person authorized to administer oaths or suborns any other person to £10 so, 
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'-!\. is guilty ofperjury or subornation of perjury, as the case may be, ',1Vhich is a category 
D felony and shall be punished as provided in '-'..=--,~'-'--"~-"-

{1911 C&P § 85; A 1949. 111; 1943 NCL § 1 0034J---- (NRS A -'-"-~~ _____ -' 
Q±Q; _c __ '-'_,--'-_.'---'-=--c.-' -,-~,-,,--,,_,,--,--,,-

6) The Judge alienated the child from the mother. (NRS 
chapter 126) 

7) The Judge sealed the case 5 days after we made it public. 

8) Over two dozen mothers have complained about this Judge. 
It is dear that this Judge has a bias towards mothers that 
appear in her courtroom. 

Rule 21>3: Bias, Prejudice, and 
Harassment 
(A) A judge shall perform the duties of judicial office, including administrative duties. 
without bias or prejudice. 

(B) A judge shall not, in the performance of judicial duties. by words or conduct ma..'1ifest 
bias or prejudice, or engage in harassment, including but not limited to bias, prejudice, or 
harassment based upon race, sex, gender, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, 
age, sexual orientation, marital status, socioeconomic status, or political affiliation, and 
shall not pennit court st.a:tI: court officials, or others subject to the judge's direction and 
control to do so. 

(C) Ajudge shall require lawyers in proceedings before the court to refraln fTOm 
manifesting bias or prejudice, or engaging in harassment, based upon attributes including 
but Dot limited to race, sex, gender, religion, national origin, ethnicity, disability, age, 
sexual orientation, marital status, socioeconomic status, or political acftijiation, against 
parties, wit'1esses, lawyers, Or others. 

CD) The restrictions of paragraphs (B) and (C) do not preclude judges or lawyers u'om 
making legitimate reference to the listed factors, or similar factors, \vhen they are 
relevant to an issue in a proceeding. 
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See all three videos: 

Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge Rena Hughes 
against a minor child Part 1 

Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge Rena Hughes 
against a minor child Part 2~3 

Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge Rena ughes 
against a minor child Part 3~3 

o 
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From: Veterans In Politics International fnc. <devi\dog1285@cs.com> 

To: veteransinpolrti <veteransinpoliti@cs.com> 

Subje-ct: Clark County Family Court Judge willfuiJy deceives a young chlld from the bench and it is on the record 

Date: Wed, Nov 16. 20167:49 pm 

Having trouble viewing this email? Ciick here \'lWW. veteransinoolitiQhllrg 

HI, just a reminder that you're receiving this email because you have expresS€o an interest in Veterans In 
Politics International Inc.. Don't forget to add devil dog j 28 5 (QJcs J:QlI) to your address book 50 we'll be sure to 
land in your iobox! 

You may i.jf1·'~"Lb;':::rJ.t'f;: if you no longer wish to receive our emails. 

I r it 
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cnck onto "Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge Rena Hughes against a minor 
child", 

On October 6, 2016 the Veterans In Politics Intenlational 
(VIPI) highlighted the actions of Family Court Judge Hughes in three 

separate videos. 

After doing more research we discovered that Judge Hughes actually 
lied to this young child in open court. 

Judge Hughes made the follo'vving statement: 

II Ifl (l {I 

Click onto video: 
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Part 3 threatened the minor child with Child Haven 

After speaking to the Manager of Child Haven, we were told that thls 
statement made by the Judge is false. 

Click onto Child Haven Website: 

Click onto Child Haven Facebook site: 

Part 1 on the Record 
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Part 2 Heart wrenching video between the 
judge Hughes and a minor defenseless child. 

Ho,,, can a parent helplesslY watch their child be chastised 
bvanyone? 

Andre Haynes, host of the EMG Radio Show and officer of Veterans 

L"1 Politics said the follo\ving: 

When I watched the video of the minor child having a discussion on the 
record with Family Court Judge Rena Hughes without a parent or child 
advocate being present, f was shocked and in disagreement. After I 
saw the manner that Judge Hughes handled the minor child and the 
chi/d's fearful and distraught emotional reaction, I was angry. J was 

angry because' pictured my 7 year old son in the same seat as the 
minor girl, without me, without his mom, without a child advocate and 
without an attorney Minor children are often terrified to speak to adults, 
especially without their parent or someone familiarpresent and 
especially if the adult is perceived to be an authority figure. 
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Does the law allow for Judge Hughes to interview and interrogate a 
minor chifd without their parent or an attorney or child advocate 
present? If the law does allow this are there exceptions to this ruie? is 
there another way that Judge l-Iughes could have handled this 
manner? Those are questions that replay in my mind. My heart goes 
out to the minor child and especially to her mother The worst feeiing 
that a parent can experience is being helpless to defend their 
vulnerable child. If it were my 7 year old son in that video! helpless, 
distraught and angry is exactly how I would feel. Does the law and a 
Judge's behavior take precedence or hold more value than the 
emotions and perceived fear of a child or a parent's ability to protect 
their child? 

We cOlnmend Channel 81-Team for taking a proactive approach to 
expose this judge: 

It was also reported that in the I-Team news coverage that the records 

were sealed on October 11 th five days after we made these videos 

public. 

In an unrelated story we exposed how Judges and Lawyers seal cases 

to cover their o\vn bad behaviors. This is defmitely an example of 

that 

Is this the type of behavior we should continue to expect from 
our judicial system? 
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Should judges continue to cover~up and down-play their 
colleague's bad behaviors? 

Does this Family Court Judge have chHdren of her ovvn? 

Should this Judge be reprimanded for this? 

If you believe that this Judge should face sanctions or I and a 
public apology join us and file a complaint with the Nevada 

Judicial DiscipUne Commission by clicking onto the link below: 

Any Judge that willfully deceives a child and especially on the record 
should be tossed off the bench! 

Please watch the videos in full and come to your own conclusion. 

Learn More 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

WEBSITE NEWS GOALS AND VALUES OFFICERS CONTACT US 

Veterans In Politics International Inc. 
702·283·8088 

S14ARE THIS EMAIL 

devHdog 1285@cs.com 
www.veteransinpolitics.org 

SIGN UP FOR EMA!LS 

Veterans In Politics International Inc., PO Box 28211 J Las Vegas, NV 89126 
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SafeUnsubscribeT
" veteransinpoliti@cs.com 

Forward this email I Llodate Profile [ About our service orovider 

Sent by devildoq1285@cs.com in coliaboration with 

#l-

Tr-y it free coday 
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From: Veterans In Politics International Inc. <devildog1285@cs.com> 

To: veteransinpoliti <vei.eransinpoliti@cs.COffio. 

Subject: Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge Rena Hughes against a minor chlld 

Date: Thu, Oct 6,2016 10;06 pm 

Having trouble viewing this email? Click here www.veteransinpolitics.org 

Hi, just a reminder that you're receiving this email because you have expressed an interest in Veterans In 
Poiities International Inc .. Don't forget to add ~.a~ to your address bOOK 50 we'll be sure to 
land in your in box! 

You may u~ if you no longer wish to receive our emails. 

Deplorable actions amil ourt 
Judge ena Hughes against a 
minor child 
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A child's nightmare; Judge Hughes alienated a 
daughter from her mother 

FINO OUT MORE 

Clark County! Nevada in the 2014 elections former Judge 

Kenneth Pollock battled to retain his seat in the Clark County 
District Court Family Division Department J and had an upset 
by Rena Hughes, 

We have always echoed how important it is to know the 
candidates running for Judgeship because they will impact your 
iife on a very personal level for the rest of your life. 

The events that took place on June 15, 2016 with a minor child 
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IS an pie of family court going horribly wrong, 

The matter was brought to the court; Father requested a 
change of custody because of mother's decision to Home 
School the child. 

The Father is the defendant and represented by Lesley Cohen 
and the mother was in proper person without council. 

The video's you are about to see is upsetting I damaging to the 
child and absolutely appalling (click onto videos). 
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Part 2 Heart \ivrenching video between the Judge Hughes and 
a minor defenseless child. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

Gave dad sale legal and sole physical custody. 

Annie 

Please f donlt wantto go. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

That's too bad Annie. 

APP545 



Deplorable actions by Family Court Judge l J Hughes against am... https .iil.ao!'COlwwebmail-std/en-usfPrintMessage 

6 of 13 

COMMISSION EXHIBIT 3 Page000032 

This is based on Mothers failure to facilitate visitation and to 
compel the child to visit 

When your mother was last in courtl I told her jf you do not go 
with your dad you would spend the entire summer witll him. 

You dedded and your mom decided you were not going to go. 

Annie 

She didn't decide. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

Child support obligation will cease immediately and you are to 
enroll Annie in public school in your district. 

There is to be no contact with Ms. Silva and the minor child. 

Submit a memorandum of fees and cost. 

Annie 

Please I want to be with my mama. 

Please I don't want to be with him. 

-Iudne klona Hunhos 'ifIt:oi' ::1 II ,......., ::J .'It<.ot 

I have made my decision I have already told you that. 

Annie 
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I beg of you, 

Judge Rena Hughes 

You don't need to beg I have made a decision for your best 
interest. 

Annie 

How do you know my best interest, you don't know me. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

Because I told you that I am a grownup and you are a child, 

Annie 

Please, piease, please. 

Can I please see my mama, please? 

Judge Rena Hughes 

Annie stop! 

I already discussed it with you, it won't do any good, and you 
are just upsetting yourself. 

Annie 

I miss her. 
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I just vvant to see her please! I don1t want to go with him. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

You have a father and you are going to spend time with him, 

Annie 

I don't want too. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

Thafs too bad you are going to do it anyway. 

Annie 

i don't want 10, please r am begging you l and you can't do this. 

i don't want to go with you, can I please stay with mama. 
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Part 3 threatened the minor child with Child 

Haven 

Judge Rena Hughes 

The Marshall wiU accompany you to your car, if you have any 

difficulties the child will go to Child Haven. 

Ifs not fun in Child Haven, they put you in a holding ceB, and 

it's like it would be jail! 

Annie 

Can 1 please see my mama? 

Judge Rena Hughes 

You already saw her. 

Annie 
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You don't understand) [ love her! 

I am going to miss her so much, please don!t do this to me. 

Judge Rena Hughes 

I am done do you want to submit the order? 

Annie 

I don1t want to gal 

There are many unanswered questions 
and statements: 

II! Why was the child punished? Drug Abusers and Domestic 
Violence parents have custody of their children. 

~ Did the parties consent to the ex parte interview with the 
child? 

.. Was there a mediator assigned, this is protocol for 
situations like this (to assist with conjoint parenting). 

~ Why was the child in the courtroom much less sitting at 
counsel table during the ruling? 

a Why was mom ordered to leave the courtroom and dad 

and his attorney was present during the questioning of this 
child? Mom has a constitutional right to be present at 
every step of the proceedings. Rule 7.50 requires either a 
writing signed by the party or a stipulation placed on the 
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record to waive the written order requirement Case law 
says an oral order cannot be used 1 only a written order is 
enforceable, No agreement or stipulation between the 
parties or their attorneys will be effective unless the same 

shall, by consent, be entered in the minutes in the form of 
an order, or unless the same is in writing subscribed by the 

party against whom the same shall be alleged, or by the 
party's attorney. 

~ Why Judge Hughes did not ask the child flwhy she does 
not want to live with dadlt? 

II Why did Judge Hughes isolate the mother from this 

decision in court appearing to take advantage of the 
mother, because she had no attorney representIng her? 

II When Judge Hughes was a candidate on 3/12/14 she 

stated in a radio interview PR Connections, that 
compassion is one of her strong suites. Where was Judge 

Hughes compassion with this minor child? 

* Why did Judge Hughes place this child into that kind of a 
setting 1 threaten a child with Child Haven and tell the minor 

child it's like sitting in a holding cell. 

.. Where is the child's attorney or advocate for her rights?! 

.. Why did the Judge not order counseling for both parties? 

<l> Why was the Judge discussing adult issues in front of the 

child, to the child and without child have any support or 
representation?! 

~ Why was the mother who is in proper person not present 

while these adult decisions took place? The mother's rights 
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were grossly disregarded. 

This Judge has psychologicaUy damaged this child. 

This judge appears to be nonchalant and insensitive to this 

child as she takes custody away from her mother (whom the 
child has been with her whole life). This is one of the most 

traumatizing situations a child can go through (removal from 

the nlost important person in their life unjustly and for no good 
reason). 

More damage to this child was done on this day, instead of 

solving a problem, getting supports who can assist this family 
to co-parent the Judge rips this child away from her mother 

without just cause! 

This judge threated this child like a criminal! 

Judge Rena Hughes should be tossed off the bench! 

Please watch the video [n full and come to your own 

conclusion. 

Commission on T ., 
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learn More about the State of Nevada Commission on Judicial Discipline 

UPCOMING EVENTS 

WEBSITE NEWS GOALS AND VALUES OFFICERS CONTACT US 

Veterans In Politics International Inc. 
702-283-8088 

devildog 1285@cs.com 
WWvv. veteransinpolitics. org 

SHARE THIS EMAil SIGN UP FOR EMAllS 

Veterans In Politics International Inc., PO Box 28211, Las Vegas, NV 89126 

SafeUnsubscribe"'" veterans\ngoliti(cilcs,com 

Forward this email! Update Profile I About our service provider 

Sent by devildog1235@lcs.com in collaboration with 

Try It free toddY 
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From: Veterans In Politics International Inc. <devildog1285@cs.com> 

To: veteransinpoiiti <veteransinpol1ti@cs.com> 

Subject: Law Frowns on Nevada Attorney Jennifer Abrams' "Seal-Happy" Practices 

Date: Sun, Nov 6, 2016 10:11 pm 

----- ._---- ----------------------
Having trouble viewing this email? Ciick here wv,.,w. veteransinQolitiC5.Q[Q 

Hi, just a reminder that you're receiving this email because you have expressed an Interest in Veterans In 
Politics Intemationallnc .. Don't forget to add deyllrloo1 28S\mc<,CQJ]J to your address book so we'll be sure to 
land in your inbox! 

You may l!n~L')l::t~\JH;'i" jf you no longer wish to receive our emails. 

LaW' Fro\vns on eva a 
tt rney Jennife rams' 
eal- a ractices 

Clark County, Nevada 
November 6, 2016 

Free access to civil court \ \ 

proceedings is protected I, il'~~~~~~~ 
by the First Amendment fA j 

to the U.S. Constitution. 

FIND OUT MORE 

Its importance cannot be overstated! 

State and federal courts, includLng Nevada's Supreme Court, recognize 

that public access to court proceedings serves vital public policy 
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interests, including, serving as a check on corruption, educating the 

public about the judicial process, promoting informed discussion of 

government affairs, and enhancing the performance of the judge, the 

lavl)'ers and all involved. 

As fonner Nevada Su.preme Court Justice Nancy Saitta wrote earlier this 

year regarding the Supreme Court's rules on sealing civil records, 

rr the cornerstones of an effective, functioning judicial systeltl are 
openness and trallsparency. Safeguarding these cornerstones requires 
public access not on(y to the judicial proceedings but also to judicial 

records and docUlnents. rp 

At least one la\vyer in Nevada, however, Jennifer Abrams, appears to be 

tV seal happyHwhen it C0l11eS to trying to seal her cases. She appears to 

have sealed many of her cases in the past few years, including filing a 

petition to seal in at least four cases just this past week, on 1113/2016! 
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It also appears, however, that at least one of her cases, and perhaps more, 
may have been sealed to protect her own reputation, rather than to serve 
a cOill_pel1ing client privacy or safety interest. 

Learn More 

VeteranB In Politics International (VIPI) recently released a video of 

Abrams bullyrng Judge Jennifer Elliot during a family court hearing 
in a case entitled Saiter v. Saiter, Case No. D-15-521372-D. 
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CHck onto j\Jevada a C:lark Court in 

In response to our article, Abrams sought 1111d obtained a court order 

from Judge Elliott which does not narne VIPI, but which purports to 

apply to the entirety of the general population. VIPI, however, was 

served vvith the Order. The document orders all videos of Abranls i 

September 29,2016 judicial brovvbeating to be taken o:fft~e internet 

Click onto District Court: Judge Bullied by Family Attorney Jennifer Abrams 

The Order further prohibits aIlYone from If publishing , displaying, 

showing or making public allY portion of these case proceedings. It 

The order goes on to state that flnothing from the case at bar shall be 

dissenlinated or published and that any such publication or posting 

by anyone or any entity shall be hnmediately removed. H 

Vlhile the order claims in a conclusory fasmon to be !lin the best 

interests of the children," nothing in the order explains why. Indeed, 

the September 29; 2016 video of the proceedings that is on the 

intenlet focuses on Abrams's disrespectful exchange with the judge, 

and does not materially involve the children in the case. 
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Learn 

Start 12:13:00 in the video the following conversation 
took place in open court. 

Moreover, while the Court Order is broadly stated and purports to 

prohibit the public vievving or dissenlination of Hany portion of these 

case proceedings," such blanket prohibition on public access to the 

entire case is specifically disallowed by law. 

Entire cases cannot be sealed. Moreover, even if a judge wants to 
seal part of the case, the judge must specifically justify such 
sealing and must seal only the minimum portion necessary to 
protect a tlcompeHing privacy or safety interest. It 

The lssue of open proceedings is so important that in 2008 the 

Revievv Journal reported the Nevada Supreme Court convened a 
special task force to address the issue of over-sealing, 

Click onto Standards fOlr sealing civil cases tougher 

The Supreme Court thereafter enacted rules requiring judges to 

specify in writing why sealing a record or redacting a portion of it is 
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